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We are extremely delighted to present our second
Integrated Report <IR>. This is one of our principal
communication documents addressed to all our
stakeholders. This Report contains information on our
operational and financial performance, its influence on
our strategic objectives, along with our ability to create
sustainable value. We will add more of such elements
over the years and keep up with the trust and transparency
with all our stakeholders.
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As FY 2021-22 unfolded, IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
(‘the Company’ or ‘we’) took a proactive decision to
move towards Integrated Reporting <IR>. As we unveil
the report, we will be taking our stakeholders through
our integrated value-creation process done by using six
capitals broadly based on the principles of International
Integrated Reporting Council (‘IIRC’). These capitals
encompass both financial and nonfinancial forms of
capitals viz. Physical, Intellectual, Human, Social and
Relationship and Natural.
RepoRting peRiod, scope And boundARy
The reporting period for this Integrated Report is from
April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022. It includes an overview
of our operations, business segments and key focus
strategies.
RepoRting stAndARds And FRAmewoRks

disclAimeR: This document contains statements about
expected future events and financials of IIFL Samasta
Finance Limited which are forward looking. By their nature,
forward-looking statements require the Company to
make assumptions and are subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties. There is a significant risk that the assumptions,
predictions and other forward-looking statements may not
prove to be accurate. Readers are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on forward-looking statements as a number
of factors could cause assumptions, actual future results
and events to differ materially from those expressed in the
forward-looking statements. Accordingly, this document is
subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its entirety by the
assumptions, qualifications and risk factors referred to in this
Annual Report.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the International
Integrated Reporting <IR> framework. The company
intends to add more transparency and accountability
through the disclosures and information provided in the
Report. The financial information presented in this report
includes the Director’s Report, Management Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A), Corporate Governance Report and
the business Responsibility Report.
mAnAgement AssuRAnce
The Report’s content has been reviewed by our
Company’s senior management, under supervision of
the Chairman. The Board members of our Company have
also provided required insight related to Governance and
overall operating context.

Delivering creDit
to unDerserveD
customers
seRving the undeRseRved hAs been A constAnt
mission At iiFl sAmAstA. compAssion lies At
the centRe oF eveRything we do. ouR vision to
deliveR cRedit to the undeRseRved customeRs
who geneRAlly do not hAve Access to FoRmAl
FinAncing chAnnels is Achieved thRough ouR
unity And integRity.
As ardent believers of changing times and women empowerment, we largely serve
women borrowers and provide them with small-ticket retail loans so that they
can achieve their dreams and stand strong. In this way, we also promote financial
inclusion and equality for women, thereby propelling them to move forward.
The year 2021-22, we facilitated digitized processes and ensured efficient business
operations with the help of our robust systems and by doing so, we have successfully
delivered credit to many underserved customers across the nation.
We are one of the fastest growing microfinance companies in India and our customer
proposition is focussed around providing and enhanced experience through efficiency.
We remain confident in our long-term focus is to deliver credit to more and more
underserved customers reaching the nooks and corners of the country.

iiFl Finance limiteD
our lineage
a strong Pillar oF Fairness,
integrity anD reliability
incoRpoRAted in 1995, iiFl
FinAnce limited stRives to
woRk towARds the mission oF
pRoviding eAsy to AvAil loAns
with A coRe vision: to become
the countRy’s most Respected
FinAnciAl seRvices compAny.
iiFl FinAnce limited hAs oveR
two-And-A-hAlF decAdes oF
expeRience And excellence in
customeR seRvice.
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The Company provides a wide array of product offerings
ranging from Home Loans, Business Loans, Gold Loans
and Microfinance Loans. Over the years, the Company has
garnered immense reputation as one of the most respected
financial services company in India. The Company is an
ardent believer of creating sustainable value for all its
stakeholders and this in turn has helped them maintain a
long-term relationship with its customers, contributing to
our journey of growth.
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Corporate Overview

vision

Statutory Reports

To be the most respected financial services
company in India. Not necessarily the largest or
most profitable.

coRe vAlues
Financial Statements

Our core values have served as a moral compass
in all our operations as we have evolved. At
IIFL, we place FIT (Fairness, Integrity, and
Transparency) at the centre of everything we do.

`

512.1 billion

Assets Under Management

FAiRness
Fairness in our transactions with all stakeholders,
including employees, customers and vendors,
bereft of fear or favour.

`

40.2 billion

Total Income

`

11.9 billion

Profit After Tax

3,296

integRity

Branches

Integrity and honesty of utmost nature, in
letter, in spirit and in all our dealings with
people, internal or external.

28,300+
Happy Employees

3.2%*
GNPA (Consolidated)

tRAnspARency
Transparency in all our dealings with
stakeholders, media, investors and the public at
large.

20.6%
Return on Equity

Our constant endeavour is to create and deliver
value to our stakeholders. At IIFL, we are firm in
our commitment to these ideals, and we will let
go of any growth opportunity that deem unfit.
iiFl samasta Finance limited

note: Numbers as on March 31, 2022
*Recognized as per RBI’s updated prudential
norms and provisioned according to Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) model prescribed in Ind-AS
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about iiFl samasta Finance limiteD
the unDerserveD are
our Priority
An iiFl gRoup compAny, iiFl
sAmAstA FinAnce limited is led
by visionARy leAdeRs who Aim
At woRking towARds women’s
economic
empoweRment.
incepted in mARch 2008, the
compAny is A leAding nAme in
mAking AvAilAble innovAtive
And
AFFoRdAble
FinAnciAl
pRoduct FoR women FRom
unbAnked sections in society
in both RuRAl And semi-uRbAn
AReAs.
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During the year, the Company rebranded itself from
Samasta Microfinance Limited to IIFL Samasta Finance
Limited, standing true to its mission of serving the
marginalized sections of the society. A popular name in
the microfinance segment, the Company aims at helping
customers with income generating activities, education,
and working capital requirements.
The Company provides a wide array of loans to the
underserved sections of the society and to those who
do not have access to the banking system. Today, the
Company caters to over 17 states across the country with
its range of responsible financial products and services. It
acts as a catalyst for sustainable and inclusive economic
growth. The Company also enjoys an enviable reputation
in offering its customers various non-financial services
like life and hospicash insurance, along with financial
counselling.

Annual Report 2021-22

vision
To be the chosen financial products and services
provider backed by technology and passionate
human capital

`

10.17 billion

Total Income

`

0.50 billion

Corporate Overview

64.84 billion

Assets Under Management

Statutory Reports

`

Profit After Tax
To bridge the gap between our customers’
ambition and achievement by providing topnotch
financial products and services

807
Branches

10,448
Happy Employees

vAlues

3.07%

Integrity Always

GNPA

Respect for individuals and communities
Excellence in everything we do

6.32%
Return on Equity

Note: Numbers as
on March 31, 2022

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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mission

our strong ProDuct oFFerings
samriDDhi

samvarDhana

(income generating loan- igl)

(top-up loan)

Enables women customers to access capital so that they
can setup and develop micro enterprises. It also caters
to various needs such as capital requirements, growing
working capital needs, purchasing stock among others.

Facilitates the customers with additional loans. Top up
loans are provided to the Income Generation Loan (IGL)
customers, with good repayment history so that they can
access more cash and boost their income generation
activities.

shiksha

samPark aDvantage

(education loan)

(loan Against property)

Designed to facilitate the underserved children for
learning and education

Provided so that customers can enhance their business
capabilities and also ensuring retail financing by borrowing
the collateral requirement supported by net cash flow at
an affordable rate. The timely, secured and affordable
lending ensures improvement in business capabilities of
customers from rural and semi-urban areas.

surabhi
(dairy cattle loan)
Designed to help women in meeting their dairy
development needs, including purchase of new cattle.
It also includes insurance coverage to mitigate any risk
associated with the same.

samPark
(loan Against property)
Helps in enhancing the business capabilities for selfemployed and salaried persons residing in rural and semiurban areas by providing financial assistance to improve
their living conditions and financial stability. Crafted with
competitive interest rate and collateral requirement.

sajal
(sanitation and Jal loans for Rural india)
Enables customers to avail affordable credit so as to secure
the basic necessities of life like sanitation and hygiene.
These loans facilitate multiple purposes like setting
up filtration units, tap water, house water connections,
water storage facilities within the households, toilet
construction/improvement. This is a small-ticket loan
provided to existing IGL customers, ranging from ₹ 4,000
to ₹ 30,000 without any collateral.

suviDha

swabhimaan
(micro enterprise loan)
Designed to provide timely and affordable lending
solutions to micro-enterprise loans without any collateral
requirement to cater to the expansion needs of the
customers. The product is supported by net cash flow at
a higher but affordable interest rate.

(product loans)
Provides a better lifestyle to customers by offering loans
to purchase daily use items like cook stoves, water
purifiers, solar lights, mobile phones and various other
lifestyle related products.
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Hear it from our customers, on how, we at, IIFL Samasta
enabled them to attain new heights and empowered
them in gaining financial strength thereby making life
better for themselves and their families.

“I can’t thank IIFL Samasta enough for enabling me
with an opportunity to live a dignified life.”

Statutory Reports

Corporate Overview

how our underserved customers
rose to new heights?

Mamta Devi, from Bihar, commenced her beauty parlour business 5 years
ago. However, the pandemic and consequent lockdowns led to immense loss
in her business. All the family members had lost hope of business revival.
This led Mamta Devi to visit local lenders of loan and seek some financial
assistance, unfortunately no one came to her rescue. To add to the difficulties,
even her family members lost their jobs.
Understanding the crisis, IIFL Samasta (Motihari Branch) disbursed a loan
to her and helped her come out of the situation. This enabled her to feed her
family and live a dignified life, especially at a time when there were no earning
members in the family. The Company further disbursed a second cycle loan
during the pandemic so that she and her family could sustain during the
tough times.

“A woman who is determined to rise is
unstoppable.”

sushilamma - Fierce and Limitless

Sushilamma, a resident of Oorukere, TumakuruDist, Karnataka was
worried about the surging household expenses amidst her husband’s
low-paying job. She made up her mind to assist her husband and earn
some money for the rising needs of the family.
Having an entrepreneurial mindset, she came up with an idea of
setting up a provisional store as most people in the surrounding area
knew her personally. She learned about IIFL Samasta Finance and
approached our filed representative from Tumakuru branch along
with other group members of her centre.
In July 2017, she began her journey with a loan amount of ₹ 25,000.
Sushilamma started her business along with the support of her
husband and children and started earning an average income of ₹
5,000-₹ 6,000 per month back then.
In her journey of over 4 years and her cordial relationship with
Samasta, Sushilamma has been able to avail a further loan benefit
with higher ticket size of ₹ 60,000 and also a Top-up loan of ₹ 25,000
through which she has witnessed new business and has also doubled
her income.
With Samasta’s continued support and service, Sushilamma is
confident of building her business further and building a bright future
for herself and her family.
Sushilamma remains a role model and a good guide for all the
women in and around her village who are willing to start their own
small ventures.
Sushilamma says, that IIFL Samasta is playing a major role in
supporting small but ambitious women entrepreneurs and the thing
she admires the most about Samasta is the transparency which we
follow in our business.

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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mamta devi - Pro-woman, Pro-family, Pro-life

note From the
managing Director
Dear Shareholders
FY 2021-22 had been a challenging
year. The second wave of COVID-19 and
the consequent lockdown significantly
impacted the earning capacity of our
customers. While microfinance is
recognised as the vehicle of last mile
delivery for financial inclusion, the
fact that our customers are from the
informal sector, their livelihood was
severely affected due to the pandemic,
thereby impacting their ability to service
the loan.
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During the last two years, in spite of repayment issues due
to migration, we have established strong connect with our
customers than ever before both in terms of physical reach
and through electronic mode. We have clear addresses
and contact information because of which we were able
to communicate accurately with the customers. This
engagement has enabled us to understand our customers’
requirements better during the difficult time and respond
with suitable products for them.
Since the lockdown many of our customers have
become comfortable making digital payments. While
our disbursements have been cashless for many years,
repayments have been largely in cash till the pandemic
struck. Our customers make use of the UPI and BBPS
options provided by the company to make digital payments.
Over 1.5 lakh customers use our mobile app and some of
the digital payments are done through this app.
We have ensured that our employees were taken care of
well during the tough times. We had organised vaccination
camps for our employees and ensured cost of vaccination
for our employees and their families were borne by
the company. We had also provided paid leaves to our
employees to recuperate from COVID-19.
Compared to the previous crises that had affected the
sector, the impact of the pandemic on the sector was
unprecedented. In spite of this, the sector has been resilient
enough to bounce back with a strong growth towards the
end of the financial year, with the customers optimistic
about their prospects.
While growing our microfinance portfolio, we have also
made significant strides in the retail loan and dairy cattle
loan segments. This portfolio not only helps in diversifying
the portfolio and thereby reducing the risk, but also helps in
retaining our vintage microfinance customers by graduating
them to retails loans.

We will continue to invest in technology to improve efficiency
and minimise frauds. We have systems in place to ensure
all the decisions are data-driven. Our past investments in
technology have paid dividends during the last two years.
The recent RBI guidelines will help us to acquire new
customer and expand our portfolio. While the microfinance
universe in December 2021 was 55 million, the increase
in household income to ₹ 3 lakhs gives us an opportunity
to serve 56 million more households. The guidelines also
allow us to increase our non-microfinance portfolio to 25%.
This provides us scope to innovate and introduce new loan
products for the new set of customers.
In FY 2022-23, we will continue to improve the portfolio
quality. Along with the growth of microfinance portfolio
we will continue our diversification into retail loans. We
will continue to invest in developing people, enhancing
processes, innovating new products, implementing smart
technology.
With increased economic activity due to receding effect of
the pandemic, the credit demand is picking up. Through the
right investments in the past few years, Samasta is well
placed to take advantage of this demand and is poised for
growth in FY 2022-23.
Warm Regards,

venkatesh n.
Managing Director

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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As our customers got back on their feet after the lockdown,
the demand for new loans due to increased economic
activity led to uptick in disbursements in the second half of
FY2021-22. Top up loans were provided to a few customers
to restart their livelihood. As the industry portfolio grew by
10% (from ₹ 2.59 trillion to ₹ 2.85 trillion) in the financial year,
portfolio of Samasta grew by 35%

since the lockdown many of our
customers have become comfortable
making digital payments. while our
disbursements have been cashless
for many years, repayments have
been largely in cash till the pandemic
struck. our customers make use of
the upi and bbps options provided
by the company to make digital
payments. over 1.5 lakh customers
use our mobile app and some of the
digital payments are done through
this app.

Financial Statements

The RBI had announced moratorium till the end of September
2021 which many of our customers had availed. In addition,
loans were restructured on our customers’ requests.
Restructuring option was provided only to customers with
better repayment track record. With these concessions, once
the lockdown eased up and as the customers restarted their
livelihood, the repayments started improving significantly.

our strong value creation Process
inPuts

a strong business moDel

FinAnciAl cApitAl
Our equity and debt funding from
investors to cater to our customers’
financial needs, support business
operations and maximize shareholder
value.

ouR business

physicAl cApitAl
Our branches, support centres, physical
infrastructure used to connect with our
customers and provide better services.

As a prominent microfinance organisation in
India, we provide affordable financial loans to
the underserved section of the society, especially
women from rural and semiurban areas of the
country.

intellectuAl cApitAl
Our technology-backed infrastructure
coupled with market knowledge,
extensive experience, and credit
underwriting to process loans, manage
risks and deliver effective customer

ouR Focus
Supporting financial inclusion
and women empowerment

service.
providing affordable
microfinance loans

humAn cApitAl
Our talented and skilled workforce
vital to the process of developing and
delivering our financial products and

expanding geographical
reach across india

services.

enhancing our digital
infrastructure

sociAl And RelAtionship
cApitAl
Our sustainable relationships with
Government, regulators, customers,
societies to sell our product and
services.

prudent credit underwriting
Robust risk management
framework and asset quality

nAtuRAl cApitAl
Our judicious consumption of the
resources for the prosperity of
business and steps to environmental
conservation.
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value createD For our stakeholDers

Growing revenue and profitability and maximising
returns on investment

Revenue: ₹ 10.17 billion
PAT: ₹ 0.50 Billion

Statutory Reports

investoRs

ouR oFFeRings

customeRs
Providing innovative and affordable loans

sAmRiddhi

Catering to the underserved sections of the society

(income generation loan (igl))

Offering digital platform for loan application process
coupled with artificial intelligence-driven credit
underwriting and loan disbursement

shikshA
(education loan)

Offering multiple digital payment modes to provide
customers with multiple repayment options.

suRAbhi
(dairy cattle loan)

employees
Providing training and development opportunities for
skill and knowledge enhancement

sAmvARdhAnA
(top-up loan)

Counselling and support for fast-track career
progression

suvidhA

Recognising and rewarding on performance basis

(product loan)

sAJAl

communities
Promoting financial inclusion by reaching out to those
with informal credit document

(sanitation and Jal loans
for Rural india)

Uplifting and empowering women in our communities
Providing healthcare facilities and educational
infrastructure support to the communities we work
around

sAmpARk
(Retail loans)

swAbhimAAn
(micro enterprise loans)

goveRnment And RegulAtoRy
bodies
Strong corporate governance framework
Ethical and transparent business practices
Relevant regulations and guidelines followed

enviRonment
Cashless disbursement
Minimum paper consumption

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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Roe: 6.32 %

Financial caPital
creating a Framework oF shareD
Financial value For all
ouR FinAnciAl cApitAl
Financial Capital at IIFL Samasta is a combination of equity and debt raised from the
Company’s investors. The Company utilizes these funds to provide the customers
with a hassle-free borrowing experience and secure their financial future.

income (₹ in million)
10,174.60

60.08%
CAGR

7,021.30
5,821.1

3,397.5

968

17-18

Net Profit (₹ in million)

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

loan Assets under management (₹ in billion)
1068

64.84

80.75%

50.49%

CAGR

47.95

CAGR

663.90
34

528

497.80
22.8

8.4
25.8
17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22
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18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

29.4

Corporate Overview

29.2

Return on Average Assets (%)
4.8

4

11.8

1.9

6.32

0.94

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

capital Adequacy Ratio (cAR) (%)

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

gross npA (%)

25.8

3.07

20.5
18.8

18.54

17.83
1.82
1.5

0.3
17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

cost of funds (%)

17-18

0.3

18-19

net interest margin

13.5

9.1

9.3

17-18

18-19

12.8
11.7

19-20

20-21

21-22

(%)
9.2

9.4
8.8

11.9
10.71

17-18

18-19

19-20

20-21

21-22

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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0.5

2.8
17-18

Statutory Reports

Return on equity (%)

Physical caPital
marking our Presence to be
available to all
ouR physicAl cApitAl
Tier II and Tier III cities in India face a lot of difficulties in obtaining quality finance owing to
the insufficient income documentation and credit profile. This results in the lower-middle
class facing a lot of challenges in obtaining affordable credit for their business activities.
IIFL Samasta is in a constant endeavor to minimize the challenges faced by the lowerincome and marginalized sections of the society so that they can also avail financial credit
seamlessly.
We facilitate this through our physical locations and branches across the country so that customers can interact with us and
also build a relationship with us through the lending process. Our presence has enabled us to build a sustainable relationship
with our customers.
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Uttar Pradesh

Assam

41

92

17

Bihar

113
Jharkhand

Gujarat

20

Madhya Pradesh

30

57

61

Chhattisgarh

18

West Bengal

Tripura

7

Odisha

85
Maharashtra

22

Pondicherry
Goa

2

2
Karnataka

103

807

Branches across
the country
Tamil Nadu

Kerala

112

25

189

New Branches opened
during the FY 2021-22

This map is a generalised illustration only for the ease of the reader to understand the locations and it is not intended to be used for reference
purposes. The representation of political boundaries and the names of geographical features/states do not necessarily reflect the actual position.
The Company or any of its directors, officers or employees, cannot be held responsible for any misuse or misinterpretation of any information or
design thereof. The Company does not warrant or represent any kind in connection to its accuracy or completeness.

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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Rajasthan

intellectual caPital
accelerating growth
through Digital Presence
ouR intellectuAl cApitAl
With the advent of technology, the manner in which the world performs and delivers has
changed manifold. At IIFL Samasta, a lot of importance is given to incorporating digital
solutions in everyday work. Right from our interaction with our customers, employees and
stakeholders to delivering seamless loans, digitalization has changed the entire picture.

The financial services space is witnessing a massive
change. Digital solutions have left a very meaningful impact
on our industry and have helped us in enabling financial
inclusion for the underserved.
Our Intellectual Capital encompasses our strong digital
infrastructure and includes our technology-led digital
systems that enable us to provide innovative products
and services for our customers. Our robust technological

16

platforms and quick disbursement processes provide
a means to the customers of most remote locations to
avail our loan offerings. Our digital system has helped us
immensely since the time of the pandemic when most of
the processes took place online. Moreover, this has also
helped us in spreading financial literacy in the remotest of
areas and facilitates seamless loan disbursement. We are
well-placed to function as a leading microfinance institution
in the country, thanks to our strong digital presence.

Annual Report 2021-22
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going cashlite

Internal Efficiencies

IIFL Samasta has taken a step forward in its Cashlite
journey over the years. The Company facilitates Digital
payments for customers through UPI and Aadhar Enabled
Payment Services. The branches of Samasta have been
made cashless through various initiatives like business
correspondence (BC) point deposits, cash management
services and efficient formats of bank deposits.

We have invested significantly in improving our internal
workflows using Zoho platform

During the year under review, there has been increased
penetration of Digital Collections platforms through UPI,
Whatsapp Pay, BBPS, AEPS and Nach. To reduce the cashcarrying risk of our CROs, we have laid the foundation
for a strong network of transit BC points to enable direct
Customer Cash Drop model. The BC network was given a
boost of 50x as compared to the previous year

MAVRC, our inhouse monitoring tool, has further evolved
and helped us enhance field level efficiencies.
At IIFL Samasta, we also implemented several interdepartmental workflows on Zoho to reduce Turn Around
Time (TAT), errors, people dependency and enhance the
overall efficiency of processes. It also helps in monitoring
and controlling the quality of work done by field
employees of various departments through accurate
results captured by questionnaire administration
in MAVRC. Several department modules were also
introduced during the period.

imProveD customer engagement
customer Application – “sakhi”
Our microfinance customer app, Sakhi, was enriched with
several new features like Pay EMI online and Notifications
and Alerts to enhance the functionality of the app and
make it more user-friendly and promote more usage.
channelized business growth and paperless loan
disbursement

o Pre-Approved Loans - For Fast track loan
Processing
o Route Optimization & Geo Analytics - New rules,
Machine Learning Algorithms modified to suit
o latest field scenario and sustainability
o Paperless Customer On-boarding through e-Sign
Integration

Various enhancements and customization were done
to support guided business decisions, channelized
growth and error-free reconciliation with minimum
human intervention;

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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embracing eFFiciency

human caPital
PeoPle - our PriDe

We, at IIFL Samasta, are strong believers of the notion that our human capital is our most
vital asset. Our employees across all the branches in the country play an instrumental role
in helping us achieve our mission of serving the underserved and women empowerment.
Our passionate human capital works with great deal of grit and enthusiasm and it is their
unwavering faith in us that keeps us going.
IIFL Samasta believes in giving the best employee experience
as they are the greatest assets for us. Employees serve
our customers, and they are our brand ambassadors in all
forums. Thus, it becomes important to have high employee
engagement through various measures to improve efficiency
in customer service and ensuring customer delight.
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Despite various challenges faced by the financial industry,
which we are part of, we marked a historic milestone of
being certified among Top 100 Great Place to Work for 2022
across industries and topped the 30 Best Places to Work in
BFSI and NBFC in our very first attempt.
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iiFl

Under this initiative, the senior management of the
company connected with the branches and its employees
through IIFL Samasta Sangam vide an electronic platform
across all the locations across India. We conducted over
40 sessions across the country. We also celebrated IIFL
Samasta Foundation Day and had grand celebrations at all
our branches and head office.
On the event of International Women’s Day and under
our ‘Rachana’ initiative, we organized games and a hi-tea
session for our women employees.
To bring in increased efficiency and boost productivity,
continuous efforts were made to measure the performance
and regular feedback and tips have been considered to
improve efficiency.

employee engAgement
During the year under review, the HR team of the company
conducted regular branch visits and ensured that the
employees were aware of all the latest policies applicable
to them and the company at large. Moreover, it was ensured
that referral bonus schemes were downloaded to boost
more referrals and encourage maximum tenure of the
employees.

employee Recognition
Continuous connect, mentoring and consistent recognition
helped in boosting employee morale, resulting in gaining
management trust and employees going the extra mile. We
held virtual online recognition for employees who walked
the extra mile in improving customer experience.

gAuRAv
An awards session for all the quarters was commemorated
with the involvement of our Chief Executives from Head
Office and Zonal Heads. This gave the employees a high

sense of achievement and recognition among the Top
Management. About 16% of our employees have showcased
their extraordinary achievements which were recognized
and rewarded by our Top Management.
We had already built an online appreciation module in
our HRMIS to imbibe the culture of appreciation across
functions as they worked in tandem to fulfil the organization’s
objectives. It also left a positive impact on our employees to
overcome anxiety and depression during the crisis. We have
created multiple badges for employees to acknowledge
and appreciate each other for their support received during
tough times in their day-to-day work.
We launched series for employee success stories, to
recognize the employees who have been through the
journey of IIFL Samasta. We shared their career path with
us and what makes them successful at work and also
shared their tips and learning. This worked as guidance to
the other fellow colleagues. The main objective of this was
to recognize long tenured employee with their contributions
and create a sense of pride within them and increase
belongingness with the organization.
We celebrated the 15th Anniversary of Samasta in March
2022, where we commemorated the entire journey. Branches
were granted special allowance for celebrations locally.

employee well-being
Given that our employees’ health comes first to us, IIFL
Samasta ensured all employees are double vaccinated.
Among other measures, we always listen to the voice
of our employees during the normal course of business,
specifically during challenging times. We prioritize their wellbeing and workload balancing to drive better productivity.
We believe in the philosophy that engaged employees thrive
for high customer delight. In this area, we have implemented
various HR practices ensuring wellness and motivation of
our employees. The wellness index raised from 3.8 to 4.3
(measured on a scale of 5) over a period of six months.
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employee communicAtion
sAmAstA sAngAm

social anD relationshiP caPital
oF the PeoPle, For the
PeoPle, by the PeoPle
ouR sociAl And RelAtionship cApitAl
At IIFL Samasta, we are ardent believers of the notion that true and full measure of progress
and growth lies beyond numbers or conventional economic indices. It is best reflected in
the difference that our communities feel in their lives. As a prudent corporate citizen, our
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) measures are driven towards development of the
underserved to promote social empowerment and act as a catalyst of growth for the society
at large.
rearing, preventive health care measures, ignoring the
importance of quality fodder and less utilization of Artificial
Insemination technology.

livestock initiAtives
livestock development program
Animal husbandry is an integral component of Indian
agriculture, supporting the livelihood of almost 55% of
the rural population. The objective of animal rearing is to
make the livestock useful for human beings for a variety of
purposes, many of which have an economic value.
Therefore, it has a huge potential for providing non-farm
employment and income in rural areas. A large number
of people in India, being less literate and unskilled depend
upon agriculture for their livelihoods. But agriculture being
seasonal in nature provides employment for a maximum
of 180 days in a year. The landless and less land people
depend upon livestock for utilizing their labour during the
lean agricultural season.
Improving the productivity of farm animals is one of the
major challenges. The average annual milk yield of Indian
cattle is 1,172 liters which is only about 50% of the global
average. This is because of poor knowledge of livestock
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IIFL Samasta has set up 12 livestock development centers
across Karnataka, Rajasthan, Tamil Nadu, and Bihar. These
centers are equipped with all the safe practices related
to cattle well-being & allied animal husbandry-related
activities. The field staff has a motorcycle fitted with a threeliter cryocan that can easily move around the village. Such
staff constitutes of trained technicians with skills required
for community mobilization and organizing extension
events. The center’s activities include up-gradation of local
indigenous low milk-yielding cows & buffaloes through
artificial insemination, with the use of high pedigree frozen
semen of indigenous / exotic breeds and educating the
farmers on cattle rearing.

12

Centers developed
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6,704
AI performed

In spite of having a large cattle population in the district of
Mandya, Mysore, and Ramanagar, the region under fodder
production is hardly 1-2 percent of the total cropped area.
Keeping the problem of poor health and low productivity in
view and to meet the nutritional requirement of livestock,
IIFL Samasta with support from BAIF NGO started the
project to establish improved fodder plots in the irrigated
areas and tree-based fodder species for the dryland areas.
We provided BNH 10 variety strips and Lucarne fodder
seeds to 625 identified farmers with field level inputs on
cropping methods. The result of these demonstrations has
been encouraging in terms of an increase in milk yield.

pReventive heAlth cARe meAsuRes
Lack of knowledge and information on cattle health
management among the farmer community impacts the
livestock. It is important for all the farmers to have basic
knowledge of cattle health management. This helps farmers
to take preventive measures for animals before cattle fall
into serious illness.

Health Camps

5

Training Programs

women empoweRment
IIFL Samasta, in collaboration with Praan NGO has taken
a project on enhancing the sustainable income among
rural women through entrepreneurial activities. The project
identifies potential women in rural India, helps them
to engage in various entrepreneurial activities through
capacity-building programs, and links these entrepreneurs
to local and mainstream markets to sell their products. This
helps women to improve the financial conditions of their
families and to lead a better life. We have launched this
project in the Aurangabad district of Bihar state. We plan to
train more than 200 women under this project.
This project has been launched in the last quarter of the
financial year. The project team has met more than 500
women in villages of Aurangabad and Rafihganj Block and
has provided them orientation on various entrepreneurial
opportunities available in rural areas. Among them, 85
women were selected for the training program and these
women were trained on mushroom cultivation, goat rearing,
tailoring, etc. Post this training, women are supported to
start their business activities. Our field staff makes regular
visits to provide onsite support to these women and also
help them to link with marketplaces to sell their products.

IIFL Samasta conducted 4 health camps and 5 training
programs through which farmers gain an understanding of
the general livestock health status, management practices,
and prevalent diseases/problems. Also, we have joined
hands with the Department of Animal Husbandry to conduct
vaccination and deworming camps. The main purpose of
the camps is to improve immunity, milk production, and the
overall well-being of the livestock, ensuring early treatments
of few common ailments thus avoiding long-term damage
to the animals.
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Most of the dairy cattle farmers in India give less importance
to fodder production and animals generally consume
naturally grown grasses and shrubs which are of low quality
in terms of protein and available energy. They are thus,
heavily dependent on seasonal variations and this results
in fluctuation in fodder supply affecting the supply of milk
round the year. For appropriate growth and development of
livestock, feed management is of great importance.

Financial Statements

pRomotion oF FoddeR cultivAtion

FinAnciAl initiAtives
IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd believes that lack of financial
literacy is a critical barrier to financial inclusion. Due to lack
of knowledge about finance and financial products, people
are unable to access banking & financial services and are
therefore kept out of the financial market. Recognizing this
fact, IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd. has made constant efforts
to educate underprivileged communities on financial literacy
across the country. Our current project in the Saharsa district
of Bihar is aimed to educate Women Self Help groups, Youth,
SMEs and farmers on financial literacy, to bring symbolic
change in saving habits and the inculcation of the banking
system and enrolment in government schemes.
Since its initiation in April 2021 Financial Literacy Program
by IIFL Samasta Finance has progressed significantly and
has likewise evolved enroute. Numerous goals have been
accomplished as on March 31, 2022.

120

Training sessions

Nadu. Under this project, we connect with unemployed
youth from the underprivileged communities and provide
them details on the importance of this skilling program.
Post the screening, youth enroll in the training program and
acquire job-specific intensive training for 45 days. Post the
training, youth are provided with job placement and followup support.

2

Training Centers Mysore and Coimbatore

93

Youth Enrolled

600

Provisional Number of Youth to
be trained in the upcoming year

5,048

Beneficiaries trained

educAtionAl initiAtives
shiksha ki udaan: scholarship for girl students

90

Kiosks set up

552

Beneficiaries attained
financial inclusion, with more
than 800 people having visited

youth development initiAtives
youth skill development and sustainability program
IIFL Samasta, in collaboration with Lok Bharthi Education
Society has set up well-equipped training centers in the
Mysore block of Karnataka and Coimbatore block in Tamil
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Education is one of the most significant means for
empowering an individual or community in general and
women and girls in particular. The level of educational
attainment and literacy rate are indicators of the general
development of any society. Gender equality and
empowerment of women are indispensable for achieving
prosperity and sustainable development of the society
as a whole. As per the recent Census, the total literacy
rate in India stands at 74% and the rate of literacy among
women is 65.46%. The government data also suggests
that a substantial percentage of girls quit formal education
because of financial constraints, non-availability of
educational institutions in the close vicinity and lack of
regular & safe means of travel. In such a scenario, we need
special schemes and financial support programs to increase
women’s participation in the education system. Financial aid
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1,214

No. of meritorious girl students benefited
through scholarship programs

enviRonmentAl initiAtives
project paryavaran: tree plantation
As a part of the Corporate Social Responsibility, IIFL
Samasta organized a city-based tree plantation events
in collaboration with SankalpTaru Foundation. The tree
plantation program solely aimed at spreading greenery and
helping cities fight the disasters of pollution. In the long run,
the initiative will rejuvenate the entire region with a green
abode, apart from planting strong trees to fight back any
natural calamity.
With the city-based employee engagement tree plantation
campaign, IIFL Samasta Finance Ltd planted a total of
900 trees across 4 polluted cities of India which included
Vadodara (Gujarat), Bangalore (Karnataka), Kolkata (West
Bengal) and Bhubaneswar (Odisha).

covid-19 sAFety meAsuRes
Despite all the efforts from the government and frontline warriors, COVID-19 continued its brutal journey in
the country. Many people lost their loved ones. During
these challenging times, vaccination was the only hope
for the nation. It is a proud moment for all of us that our
scientists worked tirelessly and developed the vaccination
in a very short time to protect us all from the COVID-19
virus. However, in our vastly populated country, vaccinating
the entire country was a task easier said than done. The
government urged companies and civil societies to join
hands with them. Recently, the government made changes
to CSR Policies which allowed the companies to take up
community vaccination as one of their CSR initiatives.
IIFL Samasta has taken steps to provide free vaccination
to the neighbors in the community around its offices in
Karnataka, Tamil Nadu and Kerala. Vaccination drives were
organized in collaboration with local private hospitals. A
total of 1,003 people have been vaccinated in these camps.

iiFl samasta Finance limited
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During the last year, most of the Indian states saw heavy
rainfall. Maharashtra saw the highest rainfall in the month
of July 2021 in 40 years and whereas the year 2021 has
been the rainiest in Kerala in the last six decades, say
climatologists, with the state having received 110%
excess rainfall from the north-west monsoon. The excess
precipitation has caused devastating damage to life and
property in these states. During such a crisis IIFL Samasta
extended its hands to provide necessary items to flood
victims. Also, we have witnessed the active involvement of
our field employees to distribute relief kits to 658 community
people in Maharashtra and Kerala.

Statutory Reports

IIFL Samasta takes lots of pride in supporting young
girl students to continue their education. We started our
scholarship program in the FY 2020-21 and supported 300
girl students initially. In the current year we have extended
our scholarship program and provided scholarships to 1,214
meritorious girls students from financially weaker sections
of the society.

disAsteR RelieF Activities

Financial Statements

can be a very effective way of encouraging girls to pursue
higher education. Such schemes can also motivate parents
to support girls in continuing their education.

boarD oF Directors
n. venkAtesh, Managing Director
Venkatesh N is the Founder and Managing Director of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited.
He has over 22 years of experience in the financial services industry as an entrepreneur.
Venkatesh was also the Founder of the erstwhile PNV Techno Acquisitions Private
Limited that marketed financial products, and Affluence Edifice, that provided wealth
management services for individuals. Venkatesh holds a Bachelor’s degree in
computer Science and has completed the Harvard Business School-ACCION Program
on Strategic Leadership in Microfinance.

d. shivApRAkAsh, Whole Time Director & Chief Information Officer
Shivaprakash co-founded IIFL Samasta in 2008. He leads IIFL Samasta’s technology
initiatives which include the setting up of comprehensive IT infrastructure for
lending activities and enhancing process efficiency through automation. His purview
includes enabling a data-driven culture through the analytics platform and driving
the implementation of strategic initiatives across the organisation. He also oversees
Operations to ensure seamless execution of business strategies. Shivaprakash
has over two decades of experience spanning the software and financial services
industries. Before co-founding IIFL Samasta, he managed global technology projects
for Wipro. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in computer Science & Engineering from PSG
college of Technology and a Diploma in Microfinance from the Indian Institute of
Banking & Finance.

RAmAnAthAn AnnAmAlAi, Independent Director
Ramanathan was the Chief General Manager in the Micro Credit Innovations
Department of NABARD and has extensive experience in development banking in the
agriculture and rural sectors. He managed the SHG Bank Linkage programme, the
largest microfinance programme in the world. As in-charge of the Financial Inclusion
department, he has managed Financial Inclusion Fund and Financial Inclusion
Technology Fund.

vikRAmAn AmpAlAkkAt, Independent Director
Vikraman retired as Chief General Manager of SIDBI Foundation for Micro Credit.
As CGM, along with other functions, he has headed the SIDBI Foundation for
Microfinance. Vikraman has extensive experience in the Microfinance sector. In his
experience spanning 38 years, he was with Reserve Bank of India for 5 years, IDBI for
16 years and SIDBI for 17 years. He is also on the board of other Microfinance and
Financial corporations.
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Badri regularly writes for newspapers and magazines in Tamil and English on current
affairs and politics and appears on Tamil TV news channels in discussion programs.

mAlini b eden, Independent Director
Malini has been a Development Specialist and Strategy Consultant for over two
decades and has significant experience of working for the marginalized and drawing
them into policy across several developmental themes. She has been part of bilateral
agencies and government Boards at the state, national and international levels in
areas such as economic empowerment, health and donor relations. She presently
heads Women’s Education Project, Trust India as Director and Founding Trustee.
WEP-India provides Leadership Academy to NGOs who work among young women
from underprivileged communities across India.

mr. monu RAtRA, Director
Mr. Monu Ratra is a veteran in the mortgages industry with nearly two decades of
experience. Mr. Ratra has been associated with brands like HDFC Ltd., ICICI Bank and
Indiabulls Housing. Prior to his current role he was associated with Indiabulls HFC
as National Business Manager. Mr. Ratra has been a part of the pioneering teams
leading various functions to provide excellence through process and quality initiatives,
contributing to industry-leading growth. While with the last company, his efforts and
vision led to building of a growth sales structure, starting from a scratch, in a start up
like environment.
At IIFL Home Loans, Mr. Ratra brings strong focus on developing and delivering
customer satisfaction with ease and low turnaround time. Mr. Ratra is passionate
about building stronger businesses, adapting and aligning company with new
technology and digital era, and maintaining everlasting culture of customer centricity.
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Badrinarayanan Seshadri has a B.Tech in Mechanical Engineering from IIT Madras
and a PhD in Mechanical Engineering from Cornell University, US. He co-founded
the world’s leading cricket portal Cricinfo.com. He is currently running Synprosoft, a
software services company providing IT solutions on the Zoho platform, and Kizhakku
Pathippagam, a leading Tamil book publisher. He also co-owns Aargee Staffing
Services Pvt Ltd, an IT Staffing company.
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bAdRinARAyAn seshAdRi, Independent Director

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
the year ended March 31, 2022, Assets Under Management
(AUM) of the Company has grown by 1688.27 CR (35.20%).
Loan book has grown by 1655.94 Crore (40.22%) y-o-y as
on March 31, 2022.

Dear Members,
IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
(Erstwhile Samasta Microfinance Limited)
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 27th (Twenty
Seventh) Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements and the Auditors’ Report of your Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2022. The Company
is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as a
Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company
(“NBFC”) not accepting public deposits (NBFC-ND-SI). The
summarized results for the year ended March 31, 2022 are
as under:
1.

2.

Particulars

Financial Highlights of M/s. IIFL Samasta
Finance Limited.

16,26,705

5,71,024.44

3,69,475.57

Loan portfolio
(` in lakhs)

648,384

4,79,557

Securitization/
Assignment
(` in lakhs)

44,758

67,880

BC loan portfolio
(` in lakhs)

26,354

-

807

618

1,62,161

1,38,789

90.30%

88.29%

No of Branches

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Total Revenue

10,19,92,75,758

7,02,20,21,550

9,60,98,25,861

6,20,04,85,998

Earnings before tax

58,94,49,897

82,15,35,552

Earnings after tax

50,60,44,363

66,62,31,920

No. of centres
Repayment rate
3.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
As required under Section 92(3) of the Act and the
rules made thereunder and amended from time to
time, the extract of Annual Return of the Company in
the prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the website
of the Company at https://iiflsamasta.com/investorrelations/.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, your Company’s total income
amounted to 10,19,92,75,758. Profit before tax stood at
58,94,49,897. Profit after tax stood at 50,60,44,363. During
4.

Year ended
March 31, 2021

17,51,909

Loan disbursement
(` in lakhs)

The financial results/highlights of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31,
2022 are as under.

Total Expenses *

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Active borrowers
(Own Portfolio)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:

A.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS:

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22:
The Board duly met for 5 (Five) times during the financial year under review.
The meetings of Board of Directors and attendance of the Directors are as given below:

SL.
No.
1

Date of Meeting

Venkatesh Shivaprakash
N.
D.

Ramanathan
A.

Badrinarayan
S.

Vikraman
A.

Malini B.
Eden

Monu
Ratra

April 23, 2021

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

2

July 21, 2021

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

3

October 22, 2021

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

4

January 21, 2022

N

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

5

March 17, 2022

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y –Yes, N –No
5.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board, based on the representations received from the management, confirms that:
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6.

b)

The Board has selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period.

c)

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities; and

d)

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concerns basis.

e)

The directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively.

f)

The directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company has received declarations from the
Independent Directors stating they meet the criteria as
specified under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

8.

9.

AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors & their Report:
M/s Brahmayya & Co., Chartered Accountants, [Firm
Registration No. 000515S], having their office at 10/2,
Kasturba Road, Khivraj Mansion, Bengaluru- 560001 was
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on July 24, 2021
to fill the casual vacancy caused due to the resignation
of M/S V Sankar Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants
by virtue of the RBI Circular Ref.No. DoS.CO.ARG/
SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021.
The Board has duly examined the Statutory Auditors’
Report for the FY 2021-22, which is self-explanatory.
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse
remarks or disclaimer made by the auditor in their
report for the year under review and requires no further
comments thereon.
Secretarial Auditor & their Report:

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors
and the Secretarial Auditor have not reported any
instances of frauds committed in the Company by its
Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee under
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of
which needs to be mentioned in this Report.
7.

Managerial Personnel and other senior management
personnel shall be based on their contribution towards
the overall development of the Company as well as
their participation in the meetings of the Company. The
terms and conditions for appointment of Independent
Directors are uploaded on the website of the Company
and may be accessed via web link https://iiflsamasta.
com/investor-relations/ and the Nomination &
Remuneration Policy of the Company can be accessed
via web link - https://iiflsamasta.com/investorrelations/

COMPANY’S POLICIES ON APPOINTMENT OF
DIRECTORS, REMUNERATION AND OTHER MATTERS:
The Company takes a cautious approach in relation
to appointment of Directors on the Board of the
Company. It shall appoint such persons who have
relevant expertise and vast experience in the field of
microfinancing. The remuneration of Directors, Key

Corporate Overview

In the preparation of the annual accounts, for
year ended on March 31, 2022, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and
that there are no material departures;

The Company has re-appointed Mr. Lakshmeenarayan
Bhat, Practicing Company Secretary as the Secretarial
Auditor under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
for the period under review.
Secretarial Auditors Report in form MR-3, submitted by
Secretarial Auditors of the Company for FY 2021-22 is
enclosed with this report as Annexure IV. Further, there
are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks
or disclaimer made by the auditor in their report for the
year under review and requires no further comments
thereon.
Internal Auditor & their Report:
The Company has re-appointed KPMG, as Internal
Auditor under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013
for the period under review.
The Board has duly examined the Internal Auditors’
Report for the FY 2021-22, which is self-explanatory.
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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a)

Statutory Reports

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
remarks or disclaimer made by the auditor in their
report for the year under review and requires no further
comments thereon.
Internal Audit:
As part of the effort to evaluate the effectiveness of
the internal control systems, your Company’s internal
audit function reviews all the control measures on
a periodic basis and recommends improvements,
wherever appropriate. The Audit Committee regularly
reviews the audit findings as well as the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control measures.
The Company has its own Internal Audit Team headed
by Head – Internal Audit of the Company. The said
team submits its report before the Audit Committee on
a set interval.

14. DIVIDEND ON EQUITY SHARES:
During the year under review, your Directors has
recommended final dividend of ` 0.10 paise per equity
share subject to the approval of shareholders at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
15. IMPACT OF COVID -19 PANDEMIC:
The detailed disclosure on the material impact of
Covid–19 pandemics on the Company is forming
part of the Financial Statements of the Company. You
may refer to Note no. 58 of the Standalone Financial
Statements for the same.
16. FUND ALLOCATION:
Total Borrowings:
The Company’s overall borrowing as on March 31,
2022 was ` 5,208.37 Crore.

10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:
The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with relevant rules made thereunder pertains
to the disclosure of loans, guarantee and security are
not applicable to a Non-Banking Financial Company.
Further, the investments made by the Company
during the FY 2021-22 are disclosed in Note No.
7 of the Financial Statements.

i)

During the year under review, your Company has
raised funds of ` 124.80 Crore through issue of
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on private
placement basis and outstanding NCDs as on
March 31, 2022 was ` 573.80 Crore.
ii)

11. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITH RELATED PARTIES:
The particulars relating to the contracts or
arrangements with related parties have been placed in
Form No. AOC-2 enclosed as Annexure I to this Report
and suitable disclosures as required in compliance
with accounting standards with related parties are
disclosed in note 38 of the financial statements in the
annual report.
12. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
During the year under review, the Company has
transferred 20% to Special Reserve in accordance with
Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
13. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES
As on March 31, 2022, all shares held by the Shareholders
are in Demat form, except two shareholders, whose
shareholding is lesser than 0.001%.
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Non-Convertible Securities (Non-Convertible
Debentures/Market Linked Debenture)

Commercial Paper.
During the year, the Company had raised funds
through Commercial Papers (CPs). During the
year under review, the Company had redeemed
CPs of ` 25.90 Crore on February 10, 2022 and
raised CP of ` 25.90 Crore. The outstanding CPs
as on March 31, 2022 was ` 25.90 Crore.

iii)

Term Loan
In the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the
Company has raised ` 3,824.00 Crore through
Term Loan and outstanding Term Loan as on
March 31, 2022 was ` 4,608.67 Crore.

17. CREDIT RATING:
During the period under review, your Company has
received credit rating from CARE for its borrowing
program
as
under:
Facilities

Rating

Long term Bank facilities

CRISIL AA-/Stable
(Reaffirmed)

Non- Convertible
Debentures

CRISIL AA-/Stable
(Reaffirmed)
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Secured Redeemable
CRISIL PPMLD AA- r/
Principal Protected -Market Stable (Reaffirmed)
Linked Non- Convertible
Debenture (PP-ML-NCD)
Commercial Paper
18.

CRISIL A1+ (Reaffirmed)

22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/
OUTGO IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULE, 8 OF COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2015:
a)

There are no matters to be reported under this
head as the Company is not engaged in powerintensive activities and hence not applicable to
this Company.

NAME & CONTACT DETAI LS OF DEBENTURE
TRUSTEES:

The details of Debenture Trustees of the Company are
as
follows:
Facilities
Rating
CATALYST TRUSTEESHIP BEACON
TRUSTEESHIP
LIMITED (Erstwhile GDA LIMITED
Trusteeship Limited)
Address- GDA House, First 4C & D Siddhivinayak
Floor, Plot
Chambers,Gandhi
Nagar, Opp MIG Cricket
No. 85 S. No. 94 & 95,
Club,Bandra (East), Mumbai
Bhusari Colony
400051
(right), Kothrud,
Pune– 411038
Phone- 022 49220555
Phone 022-26558759
Fax No- 022 49220505
Fax No-022-26558759
Email-ComplianceCTLEmail- compliance1@
Mumbai@ctltrustee.com
beacontrustee.co.in
Website-www.
Website: https://
catalysttrustee.com
beacontrustee.co.in
19. IIFL FINANCE LIMITED IS HOLDING COMPANY:
IIFL FINANCE LIMITED (Formerly known as IIFL
Holdings Limited) is the holding Company.
20. CREDIT BUREAU SUBSCRIPTION:
In order to address the issue of multiple lending or
over indebtedness and also to know the credit history
of the customer, the Company continues to submit
monthly and weekly data to Highmark, CIBIL, Equifax
and Experian Credit Bureaus and also use their credit
report for each of the loan sanctions. This coupled
with intense follow-ups and efficient processes have
resulted in constantly building high quality assets with
minimal delinquencies.
21. MATERIAL CHANGES DURING AND POST END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR:
During the year under review, the name of the Company
has been changed from “Samasta Microfinance
Limited” to “IIFL Samasta Finance Limited” w.e.f
September 01, 2021.

Energy Consumption:

b)

Technology Absorption:
There are no matters to be reported under this
head as the Company is not entered into any
technical collaboration agreements.

c)

Foreign Exchange Outflow/Inflow:
The Company has no transactions in foreign
currency during the FY 2020-21.

23. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business, and
sound risk management is critical to the success of the
organization. As a financial intermediary, the Company
is exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and
the environment within which it operates. The Company
has identified and implemented comprehensive policies
and procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk
throughout the Company. The risk management
process is continuously improved and adapted to
the changing risk scenario and the agility of the risk
management process is monitored and reviewed for
its appropriateness in the changing risk landscape.
The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes
taking stock of the risk landscape on an event-driven
basis. The Company has an elaborate process for risk
management. This rests on the three pillars of Business
Risk Assessment, Operational Controls Assessment
and Policy Compliance Processes. Major risks identified
by the businesses and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing
basis. These are discussed with both the Management
and the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Some of the risks relate to competitive intensity and the
changing legal and regulatory environment. The Risk
Management Committee of the Board reviews the risk
management policies in relation to various risks and
regulatory compliance issues.
Company identifies the following as key risks:
1.

Political Risk

2.

Concentration Risk

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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3.

Operational Risk

4.

Liquidity Risk

5.

Information Security Risk

Companies Act, 2013 throughout the year.
However, following changes were made to the
Board composition:
i)

Retiring by rotation:

24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Shivaprakash D (DIN:
02216802), retires at the ensuing AGM, and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Board of Directors duly constituted the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee as per section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has duly
adopted CSR policy which can be can be accessed via
link - https://iiflsamasta.com/investor-relations/

The brief resume/details relating to Director who
is to be re-appointed is furnished in the Notice of
the ensuing AGM. The Board of Directors of your
Company recommends the re-appointment of the
Director liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed
herewith and marked as Annexure II
25. STATEMENT SHOWING ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEE:
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the directors
individually as well as the evaluation of the working
of its Committees. A structured exercise was carried
out based on the criteria for evaluation forming part of
the Directors Appointment, Remuneration & Evaluation
Policy, including framework for performance evaluation
of Directors, Board & Committees, familiarization
Program for Independent Directors Criteria for
Evaluation and the inputs received from the Directors,
covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning
such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and
its committee, attendance at meetings, Board culture,
duties of directors, and governance.
A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate
the performance of individual Directors including
the Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated
on parameters such as level of engagement and
contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding
the interest of the Company and its stakeholders
etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The
performance evaluation of the Chairman and the
Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors. The Directors have expressed
their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
26. DETIALS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES
OF THE BOARD AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
A)

Board of Directors:
The Board of Directors of the Company was
duly constituted as per the requirement of the

30

The current composition of the Board of Directors
is
as
below:
SI.
No.

Name of the Director

Designation and
Category

1

Mr. Venkatesh N.

Managing Director

2

Mr. Shivaprakash D.

Whole-Time Director

3

Mr. Monu Ratra

Non-Executive Director

4

Mr. Vikraman A.

Non-Executive,
Independent Director

5

Mr. Badrinarayanan S.

Non-Executive,
Independent Director

6

Mr. Ramanathan A.

Non-Executive,
Independent Director

7

Ms. Malini B Eden

Non-Executive,
Independent Director

B)

Committees of the Board:
To focus effectively on the issues and ensure
expedient resolution of diverse matters, the Board
has constituted the following set of Committees
with specific terms of reference/scope.

i)

Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee currently consists of the
following members:
1.

Mr. Vikraman Ampalakkat

2.

Mr. Badrinarayanan Seshadri

3.

Mr. Monu Ratra

All the recommendations of the Committee have
been adopted by the Board.
The meetings of the Audit Committee and
attendance of its members are as given below:
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iv)

Name of Directors

Information Technology Strategy Committee:
The Information Technology Strategy Committee
currently consists of the following members:

Monu
Ratra

Vikraman
A.

Badrinarayanan
S.

April 22, 2021

Yes

Yes

Yes

1.

Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah

2

July 20, 2021

Yes

Yes

Yes

3

October 21, 2021

2.

Mr. Badrinarayanan Seshadri

Yes

Yes

Yes

4

January 20, 2022

No

Yes

Yes

ii)

Sl.
No.

Date of Meeting

Monu Ratra

Badrinarayanan S.

April 23, 2021

Yes

Yes

2

July 21, 2021

Yes

Yes

3

January 21, 2022

Yes

Yes

Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

1

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee
currently consists of the following members:
1.

Mr. Ramanathan Annamalai

2.

Mr. Badrinarayanan Seshadri

3.

Mr. Vikraman Ampalakkat

The Asset and Liability Committee currently
consists of the following members:

4.

Mr. Monu Ratra

1.

Mr. Narayanaswamy Venkatesh

2.

Mr. Sabari Krishna

3.

Mr. Anantha Kumar T.

4.

Mr. Naveen Kumar Malik

5.

Mr. Aditya Shetty

v)

All the recommendations of the Committee have
been adopted by the Board.
The meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and attendance of its
members
are
as
given
below:

vi)

The Risk Management Committee currently
consists of the following members:

Sl.
No.

1
2
3
4

Mr. Narayanaswamy Venkatesh

2.

Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah

3.

Mr. Ramanathan A.

4.

Mr. Monu Ratra

Independent Directors Meeting:
In compliance with Schedule IV of the Companies
Act 2013, Independent Directors had scheduled
their separate meeting on March 17, 2022 without
the presence of any non-independent directors.
All the Independent Directors were present at the
meeting.

Risk Management Committee:

1.

Asset Liability Committee:

All the recommendations of the Committee have
been adopted by the Board.

Sl. Date of Meeting
Name of Directors
No.
Ramanathan Badrinarayanan Vikraman Monu
A.
S.
A.
Ratra
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
1 July 21, 2021
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
2 October 22, 2021

iii)

Name of Direct ors

vii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
currently consists of the following members:
1.

Mr. Venkatesh N

All the recommendations of the Committee have
been adopted by the Board.

2.

Mr. Shivaprakash D

The meetings of the Risk Management
Committee and attendance of its members are
as
given
below:

3.

Ms. Malini B Eden

4.

Mr. Ashwini Kumar

Date of
Meeting

Name of Directors
Ramanathan Badrinarayanan Vikraman
A.
S.
A.
April 23,2021
Yes
Yes
Yes
July 21, 2021
Yes
Yes
Yes
October 22, 2021
Yes
Yes
Yes
January 21, 2022
No
Yes
Yes

Monu
Ratra
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

The meetings of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee and attendance of its
members
are
as
given
below:
Sl.
No.

1
2
3

Date of Meeting
Venkatesh
N
July 07, 2021
Yes
December 01, 2021
Yes
March 24, 2022
Yes

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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Name of Directors
Shivaprakash Malini B Ashwini
D
Eden
Kumar
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
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viii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee
currently consists of the following members

Mr. Manoranjan Biswal-Company Secretary

Senior Management of the Company as on March 31,
2022 are:

2.

Mr. Vikraman Ampalakkat

a.

Mr. Venkatesh N.-Managing Director

3.

Mr. Ramanathan Annamalai

b.

Mr. Shivaprakash D.-Whole-Time Director.

c.

Mr. Manoj Pasangha - Chief Business Officer

d.

Mr. Naveen Kumar Mallik- Chief Operating Officer

e.

Mr. Anantha Kumar T-Chief Financial Officer

f.

Mr. Sabari Krishna-Chief Risk Officer and

g.

Mr. Ashwini Kumar-Chief People Officer.

During the FY 2021-22, following General Meetings were
held
and
the
details
are
given
below:
SI.
No.

Name of the
Director

Designation and Category

1

May 24, 2021

Extra- Ordinary General Meeting

2

June 28, 2021

Annual General Meeting

July 24, 2021

Extra- Ordinary General Meeting

4

October 27, 2021 Extra- Ordinary General Meeting

5

January 31, 2022 Extra- Ordinary General Meeting

C)

Board of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management.
During the Financial Year under review, the following
changes were made in the FY 2021-22:

b)

d.

Mr. Venkatesh N

Details of General Meeting:

a)

Mr. Anantha Kumar T-Chief Financial Officer and

1.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee was
constituted on January 21, 2022 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and/or Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
2015.
In compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, Stakeholders Relationship
Committee meeting was held on March 17, 2022
and all the Committee members attended the
said meeting.

3

c.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on
July 21, 2021 took on record the resignation of Mr.
Pramod Kulkarni from the position of Company
Secretary.
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on
July 21, 2021 took on record appointment of
Mr. Manoranjan Biswal as the Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act,
the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on
March 31, 2022 are:
a.

Mr. Venkatesh N-Managing Director

b.

Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah-Whole Time Director
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27. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR
ASSOCIATES:
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint
Venture or Associates companies.
28. NON-APPLICABILITY OF MAINTENACE OF COST
RECORDS:
The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder pertaining to
maintenance of cost records as well as appointment
of Cost Auditors are not applicable to the Company.
29. COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Board of Directors affirms that the Company has
complied with the applicable mandatory Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.
30. DEPOSITS:
The Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) as Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC under Section
45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and classified as NBFCMFI. The Board of Directors hereby confirm that the
Company has not accepted any public deposit during
the year under review and will not accept deposit in
future without prior approval of Reserve Bank of India.
31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT& MATERIAL ORDER PASSED
BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL:
There was no significant & material order passed by
Regulators/Courts/Tribunal during the period under review.
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The Company has a well-established and adequate
internal financial control and risk management
framework, with appropriate policies and procedures,
to ensure the highest standards of integrity and
transparency in its operations and a strong corporate
governance structure, while maintaining excellence in
services to all its stakeholders. Appropriate controls
are in place to ensure: (a) the orderly and efficient
conduct of business, including adherence to policies,
(b) safeguarding of assets. (c) Prevention and detection
of frauds/errors, (d) accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and (e) timely preparation of
reliable financial information. An independent internal
audit system is in place to conduct audit of all the
branches, regional offices, Zonal offices as well as
head office.
Further, the Company had appointed M/s KPMG,
Chartered Accountants as its Internal Auditors vide the
Board Meeting dated April 23, 2021 which conducted
audit on the internal controls of various functions of the
Company including Operations, Finance, Compliance,
Human Resource and Information Technology.
The Company controls, risk management measures,
accounting procedures, financial management and
operations has an Audit Committee, which regularly
reviews and monitors systems, internal of the
Company based on the observations made by the
Internal Audit Head as well as KPMG.
33. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED
BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
not applicable to the Company hence there is no
requirement to maintain Cost Records as specified
by the Central Government hence such accounts and
records are not made and maintained.
34. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT
0F WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
The Company has in place Anti-Sexual Harassment
Policy named “Policy Against Sexual Harassment.’ in
line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints
Committees (ICC) has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment.
Your Directors further state that during the year under
review, there was no complaint received.

Authorized Share Capital
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company was
increased from the existing ` 4,00,00,00,000 to
` 6,00,00,00,000 vide Extraordinary General Meeting
dated May 24, 2021.
Current Structure of Authorized Share Capital of the
Company is hereunder:
“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
` 600,00,00,000 (Rupees Six Hundred Crore Only)
divided into,
a.

59,80,00,000 (Fifty-Nine Crore Eighty Lakh Only)
Equity shares of ` 10 (Rupees Ten only) each
aggregating to ` 5,98,00,00,000 (Rupees Five
Hundred Ninety- Eight Crore Only), and;

b.

20,00,000 (Twenty Lakh Only) Preference Shares of
` 10 (Rupees Ten Only) aggregating to `2,00,00,000
(Rupees Two Crore Only) comprising of,

a)

1,45,000 (One Lakh Forty-Five Thousand Only)
Redeemable
Non-Convertible
Cumulative
Preference Shares of ` 10 (Rupees Ten only) each
aggregating to ` 14,50,000 (Rupees Fourteen
Lakh and Fifty Thousand Only) and;

b)

18,55,000 (Eighteen Lakh Fifty-Five Thousand
Only) Preference Shares of ` 10 (Rupees Ten
Only) each aggregating to ` 1,85,50,000 (Rupees
One Crore Eighty-Five Lakh and Fifty Thousand
Only).”

Paid-up Share Capital
The Paid-up Share Capital of the Company has
increased from ` 3,20,81,33,360 to ` 4,98,22,31,900
as on March 31, 2022 pursuant to allotment of 12,
21,00,121 Equity shares of FV of ` 10 each on June 28,
2021, 4,14,82,300 Equity shares of FV of ` 10 each on
March 30, 2022 and 1,38,27,433 Equity shares of FV of
` 10 each on March 31, 2022.
36. DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL
MECHANISM:
In Compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9)
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made
there under, the Company has adopted a Whistle
Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil
mechanism for employees to report genuine concerns
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics
policy. The Policy also provides for adequate safeguard

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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II.

against victimization of Whistle Blower who avails of
such mechanism and also provides for the access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the
Whistle Blowers have been denied access to the Audit
Committee.
Whistle Blower Policy is uploaded on website
of the Company at https://iiflsamasta.com/
wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Whistle-BlowerPolicyRevision-2.0-1.pdf
37. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:

Disclosure under Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:
i)

There was one employee during the year who was
employed throughout the financial year and was in
receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the
aggregate, was not less than one Crore and two lakhs
rupees;

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to
the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year:
Mr. Venkatesh N., Managing Director: 95.63;
Mr. Shivaprakash D., Whole Time Director: 43.63;

ii)

The details of the employee are as follows,

If employed throughout the financial year or part
thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year
which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn
by the managing director or whole-time director
or manager and holds by himself or along with his
spouse and dependent children, not less than two
% of the equity shares of the Company

Name: Mr. Venkatesh N

The % increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Designation: Managing Director

Managing Director – 45%

Remuneration received: ` 15,566,800

Whole Time Director – 12%

Nature of employment: Permanent

Chief Financial Officer – 30%

Qualifications and Experience: Mr. Venkatesh N is
the Founder and Managing Director of IIFL Samasta
Finance Limited. He has over 21 years of experience
in the financial services industry as an entrepreneur.
He was also the Founder of the erstwhile PNV Techno
Acquisitions Private Limited that marketed financial
products, and Affluence Edifice, that provided wealth
management services for individuals. He holds a
bachelor’s degree in computer Science and has
completed the Harvard Business School-ACCION
Program on Strategic Leadership in Microfinance.

Company Secretary – N.A.
iii)

Median increase in Rupees: -19020 (Annually)
Median increase in %: -13.28 (Annually)
iv)

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of
Company: 10,448

v)

Average percentile increase already made in the
salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison
with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances for increase
in the managerial remuneration; 8.11%.

vi)

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the Company: Yes, we affirm
that the remuneration was as per the remuneration
policy of the Company.

Date of commencement of employment: February 01, 2004
Age: 46
Last Employment: NA
Percentage of equity shares held: 0.27%
Whether such employee is a relative of any director or
manager of the Company- No
There was no employee during the yearI.

If employed for a part of the financial year, was in
receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at
a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than
eight lakhs and fifty thousand rupees per month;

34

The % increase in the median remuneration of
employees in the financial year:

38. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT:
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report has
been enclosed as Annexure III to this Report.
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DETAILS REGARDING ANY PROCEDINGS PENDING
UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

c.

Management Discussion and Analysis ReportAnnexure III

No application was made and no proceeding is
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the year.

d.

Secretarial Audit Report- Annexure IV.

Not Applicable
41. AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE
VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOANS FROM
BANKS/FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS:
Not Applicable
42. ANNEXURE FORMING PART OF THIS REPORT OF
DIRECTORS:
The Annexure referred to in this Report and other
information which are required to be disclosed are
annexed herewith and form a part of this Report of the
Directors:
a.
b.

Statement on Related Party Transactions in Form
No.AOC-2 -Annexure I
Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Annexure II

Your Directors place on record their sincere
appreciation for the assistance and guidance provided
by the regulators, stock exchanges, other statutory
bodies and Company’s bankers for the assistance,
cooperation and encouragement extended to the
Company.
Your Directors also gratefully acknowledge all
stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, dealers,
vendors, banks and other business partners for the
excellent support received from them during the year.
Your Company’s employees are instrumental in your
Company scaling new heights, year after year. Their
commitment and contribution is deeply acknowledged.
Your involvement as shareholder is also greatly valued.
Your Directors look forward to your continued support.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN: 01018821
Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bengaluru

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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ANNEXURE - I
FORM NO. AOC 2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and
Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
1.

188:
2.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
a)

Name of the related party and nature of relationship:

b)

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

c)

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions:

d)

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

e)

Justification for entering into such contracts/arrangements/transactions:

f)

Date of approval by the Board:

g)

Amount paid as advance, if any:

h)

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under the first proviso to section

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name
IIFL Finance Limited

Nature of
Relationship

Nature of Transactions

Vikraman
A.

Malini B.
Eden

Monu Ratra

Holding Company Inter Corporate Deposit
received

1 Year

April 23, 2021

5,50,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit
Repaid

1 Year

April 23, 2021

5,50,00,00,000

IIFL Finance Limited

Holding Company Service Fee on Business
Correspondence- Income

1 Year

April 23, 2021

7,21,33,412

IIFL Finance Limited

Holding Company Interest Expense

1 Year

April 23, 2021

7,45,06,849

IIFL Facilities Services
Limited

Group Company

Interest Expense

1 Year

April 23, 2021

6,260

IIFL Wealth Prime
Limited (Erstwhile
IIFL Wealth Finance
Limited)

Group Company

Interest Expense

1 Year

April 23, 2021

1,96,65,418

1 Year

April 23, 2021

2,24,99,99,975

1 Year

April 23, 2021

74,99,99,980

1 Year

April 23, 2021

67,54,853

1 Year

April 23, 2021

65,71,715

IIFL Finance Limited

IIFL Home Finance
Limited

Holding Company Capital Contribution
Received (Equity plus
securities premium)
Group Company

Capital contribution
received
(Equity plus securities
premium)

IIFL Wealth
Management Limited
IIFL Finance Limited

Group Company

Arranger Fee

Holding Company Reimbursement of
Expenses

For IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

For IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

N Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN: 01018821
Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bangalore

D Shivaprakash
Whole Time Director
DIN: 02216802
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The Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities of IIFL Samasta Finance
Limited for Financial Year ended March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9
of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2015]
Outline of CSR Policy
IIFL Samasta Finance as an organization is very committed towards the development of the society and our key objective is
to improvee the quality of life of our community. Our CSR initiatives are directed to provide benefit to all the people irrespective
of their background details. However, a special focus is given to women, girl child, aged population and those coming from
the marginalized communities. This helps in contributing to the sustainable development of the society & environment and to
nurture our planet for the future generations.

Corporate Overview

FORM NO. AOC 2

Statutory Reports

ANNEXURE - II

1.

Striving for the economic development of the community to positively impact the society at large.

2.

Carrying out developmental initiatives which are purely sustainable in nature.

3.

To operate in a socially, environmentally and economically responsible manner.

2.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl.
No.

Name of
Director

Designation/Nature of
Directorship

Financial Statements

Objective of our CSR initiatives are:

Number of meetings of CSR
Committee held during the year

Number of meetings of CSR
Committee attended during the year

1

Venkatesh N.

Managing Director

3

3

2

Shivaprakash D

Whole Time Director

3

3

3

Malini B Eden

Independent Director

3

1

4

Ashwini Kumar

Chief People Officer

3

3

3.

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the Company.
https://iiflsamasta.com/csr/

5.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Sl.
No.
1

Financial Year
Nil

Amount available for set-off from preceding
financial years (in `)

Amount required to be set-off for the
financial year, if any (in `)

Nil

Nil

2
3
4
6.

Total
Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5).
Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) is ` 98,30,46,275

7.

8.

(a)

2% of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ` 1,96,60,925

(b)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years. - Nil

(c)

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any-Nil

(d)

Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ` 1,96,60,925

(a)

CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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Total Amount
Spent for the
financial year.
(in `)

Amount Unspent (in `)
Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

1,42,67,543
(b)
(1)
Sl.
No.

Details

(2)
Name of the
Project.

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII
as per second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount.

Date of transfer.

Name of the Fund

Amount.

Date of transfer.

53,93,382

April 20, 2022

-

-

-

of

CSR

(3)
Item from
the list of
activities
in
Schedule
VII to the
Act.

amount

spent

against

ongoing

projects

iv
Livestock
Development
Program

Yes

Ramnagar and 5 years
Mandya districts
of Karnataka

15,90,015 7,64,851

135(6) (in `).
8,25,164
NO

2

Iv
Promotion
of fodder
cultivation
and
preventive
health care
measures
Enhancing
Ii
sustainable
income for
rural women
through
entrepreneurial
activities

Yes

Ramnagar,
3 years
Mysore, Mandya
districts of
Karnataka

24,98,381 12,93,050

12,05,331

NO

Yes

Aurangabad
district of Bihar

32,00,000 16,00,000

16,00,000

NO

(c)
(1)
Sl.
No.

Details

(2)
Name of the
Project.

o

f

the

(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
Amount
Amount
Mode of
Location of the Project
Amount
transferred Implementation
project.
duration. allocated spent in
- Direct (Yes/
for the the current to Unspent
financial CSR Account
No).
project
State. District.
for the
Year (in `).
(in `).
project as
per Section

1.

3

for

(4)
Local
area
(Yes/
No).

CSR

amount

1 year

spent

against

other

than

ongoing

projects

PRAN

for

(4)
Local
area
(Yes/
No).

(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
Location of the Project
Amount
Amount
Amount
Mode of
project.
duration. allocated spent in
transferred Implementation
for the the current to Unspent
- Direct (Yes/
project
financial CSR Account
No).
State. District.
for the
(in `).
Year (in `).
project as
per Section

i

Yes

Saharsa in Bihar, 3 years
Banasawar
in Rajasthan
Bargarh in
Odisha
East
5 years
Champaran,
BIhar

60,67,380 35,16,876

135(6) (in `).
25,50,504
NO

11,65,273 4,66,109

6,99,164

NO

3 years

68,40,090 11,40,090

57,00,000

NO

Financial
Literacy
Program

5

Livestock
Iv
Development
centre

Yes

6

ii
Youth SKill
Development
and
sustainability
program

Yes

Mysore
Karnataka,
Coimbatture
Tamil Nadu
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year:

(11)
Mode of Implementation
- Through Implementing
Agency
Name
CSR
Registration
number.

BAIF
CSR00000259
Institute for
Sustainable
development
BAIF
CSR00000259
Institute for
Sustainable
development

(3)
Item from
the list of
activities
in
Schedule
VII to the
Act.

4.

financial

the

CSR00005178

financial

year:

(11)
Mode of Implementation
- Through Implementing
Agency
Name
CSR
Registration
number.

Learning
Links
Foundation

CSR00000640

BAIF
CSR00000259
Institute for
Sustainable
development
Lok Bharti
CSR00001361
Education
Society

Yes

Karnataka,
2 years
Rajasthan, Bihar

1,02,671

2,47,13,971 1,20,31,137

Total
(1)
Sl.
No.

33,52,832 32,50,161

(2)
Name of the Project.

(3)
Item from the list
of activities in
Schedule VII to the
Act.

1

Financial Literacy
Program

2

Flood Relief Activities

3

Covid 19 vaccination
drives for community

(4)
Local area
(Yes/No).

(5)
Location of the
project.
State.
District.

Buddy4study CSR00000121
India
Foundation

NO

1,26,82,834

(6)
(7)
Amount
Mode of
allocated for Implementation
the project - Direct (Yes/No).

Yes Bangalore, Karanataka,
BubhaneshwarOdisha,
Yes Maharashtra and
Kerala
Yes Karnataka and Tamil
Nadu

(in `).
3,72,000

No

3,71,285

Yes

14,65,087

Yes

(8)
Mode of Implementation Through Implementing Agency
Name
CSR Registration
number.
CSR00000590

Sankalpa
Taru
Foundation

22,08,372

Total

(d)

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads- ` 28,034

(e)

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- NA

(f)

Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- `1,42,67,543

(g)

Excess

amount

for

Sl.
No.

set

off,

if

any-

Particular

NA

Amount (in `)

1

2% of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)

` 1,96,60,925

2

Total amount spent for the financial year

` 1,42,67,543

3

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

NA

4

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years, if any

NA

5

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

NA

9.

(a)

Details

of

Unspent

CSR

amount

for

the

preceding

three

S l . Preceding financial year.
Amount transferred to
Amount spent
Amount transferred to any fund specified under
No.
Unspent CSR Account under in the reporting
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any.
section 135 (6) (in `)
financial year (in `). Name of the Amount (in `).
Date of
Fund
transfer.
1. 2018-19
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
2. 2019-20
21,32,413
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
3. 2020-21
72,89,452
72,89,452
Nil
Nil
Nil
Total
94,21,865
72,89,452

(b)
(1)
Sl.
No.

financial

years:

Amount remaining to
be spent in succeeding
financial years. (in `)
Nil
21,32,413
Nil
21,32,413

Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing project as of the preceding financial year(s):

(2)
Project ID.

1.

201801

2

202106

(3)
Name of the Project.

(4)
Financial
year in
which the
project was
commenced.

Livestock Development 2018-19
Program
Promotion
of
fodder 2020-21
cultivation and preventive
health care

(5)
Project
duration.

(6)
(7)
(8)
Amount spent on Cumulative amount
Total amount
allocated for the the project in the spent at the end of
project (in `). reporting financial reporting financial
year. (in `)
year (in `).

(9)
Status of
the project Completed /
Ongoing.

5 years

7,64,851

7,64,851

26,01,038

ongoing

3 years

12,93,050

12,93,050

19,24,175

ongoing
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Shiksha
Ki Udaan:
Scholarship
for girl
students
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3
4

202107
202108
Total

Financial Literacy
Scholarship Program

2020-21
2020-21

3 years
3 years

19,81,390
32,50,161
72,89,452

19,81,390
32,50,161
72,89,452

35,16,876
50,85,161
1,31,27,250

ongoing
Ongoing

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through
CSR spent in the financial year
(asset-wise details).

-NA-

(a)

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).-

(b)

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset-

(c)

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their
address etc

(d)

Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital
asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend 2% of the average net profit as per section 135(5).
Due to COVID crisis we couldn’t take up new CSR project. This unspent amount will be utilized for the ongoing project in
the FY 2022-23
Sd/-

Sd/-

Venkatesh N

(Chairman CSR Committee).

Managing Director
12. Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee
Through this report, IIFl Samasta Limited seeks to communicate its commitment towards CSR to the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs. The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and
policies as laid down in this report. The Board of the Company and the CSR Committee is responsible for the integrity
and the objectivity of all the information provided in the disclosure above. All projects reported have been selected based
on careful evaluation of the extent to which they create sustainable positive outcomes for marginalized segments of
society. The Company has adopted measures to ensure that these projects are implemented in an effective and efficient
manner so that they are able to deliver maximum potential impact. In line with the requirements of the Section 135, the
Company has also established a monitoring mechanism to track the progress of its CSR projects.

For IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

For IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

N Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN: 01018821
Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bangalore

D Shivaprakash
Whole Time Director
DIN: 02216802
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
them into feats & milestones, setting a benchmark for the
industry itself.

Statutory Reports

Geographical Deepening (Branch Expansion)

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited and its operations:
Business Growth
As on end of FY 2021-22, IIFL Samasta served 17.52 lakhs
customers. Gross loan portfolio (GLP) of ISFL reached
` 6483 Crore with an increase of 35.2% from the previous
year. In such uncertain times, Samasta took a strategic
approach of focusing on existing customer base, and
helping the customers to restart their livelihood generation
activities thus in process improving collection efficiency of
the organization. Despite the pandemic, we were able to
cross 6000CR AUM with elan, which was a crucial milestone
for this financial year.

With a vision to increase the quality portfolio, and to provide
financial services to further states, branch expansion was
carried out with the philosophy of geographical deepening.
The idea was to develop better control and monitoring
system for portfolio management. In the FY 2021-22, IIFL
Samasta opened 189 branches in 13 states:
1.

Bihar

2.

Chhattisgarh

3.

Gujarat

ISFL launched multiple initiative to provide additional
financial support to customers who were making timely
repayments, also to the customers who needed financial
credit to kick-start their livelihood. ISFL strives to serve the
people belonging to bottom of pyramid via its widespread
network of 807 branches across the country, with a strong
dedicated team of more than 6600 field staff.

4.

Jharkhand

5.

Karnataka

6.

Kerala

7.

Madhya Pradesh

8.

Odisha

With RBI guidelines on NBFC-MFI dated March 14, 2022,
RBI have ensured equal opportunities for all NBFC-MFIs
and have ensured customers are not exploited by the
lenders.The method of credit appraisal and under-writing
has always been forte for ISFL. Further building on the
knowledge, ISFL has developed holistic and customercentric process for income and obligation assessment
which in turn helps in developing quality portfolio and
improving customer experience. ISFL is well equipped
to accommodate changes in the current system, backed
by a robust risk framework, past experience and internal
process/policy framework.

9.

Rajasthan

Now, both the management and the team are confident
and ready to conquer obstacles & challenges and convert

10. Tamil Nadu
11. Tripura
12. Uttar Pradesh
13. West Bengal
As on March 31, 2022, the number of branches stand at
807, spread strategically across 17 states as compared to
618 branches as on March 31, 2021.
1.

Assam

2.

Bihar

3.

Chhattisgarh

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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NBFCs have played a major role in complementing banks
and other financial institutions, and help fill the gaps in
availability of financial services with respect to products
as well as customer and geographical segments. Strong
linkages at the grass root level makes them a critical cog
in catering to the unbanked masses in rural and semiurban reaches, enabling the Government and Regulators
to further the mission of financial inclusion. The sheer size
of the market in terms of financially excluded households
presents large opportunities for a business model that
offers sustainable credit to the unbanked and underbanked at affordable rates and a repayment cycle spread
over a longer duration. The dynamics of the NBFC sector
is reflective of its evolving role in niche areas of specialized
services.

Corporate Overview
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4.

Goa

Risk Management

5.

Gujarat

6.

Jharkhand

7.

Karnataka

8.

Kerala

9.

Madhya Pradesh

Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business, and
sound risk management is critical to the success of the
organization. As a financial intermediary, the Company is
exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and the
environment within which it operates. The Company has
identified and implemented comprehensive policies and
procedures to assess, monitor and manage risk throughout
the Company. The risk management process is continuously
improved and adapted to the changing risk scenario and
the agility of the risk management process is monitored
and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk
landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks
includes taking stock of the risk landscape on an eventdriven basis. The Company has an elaborate process for
risk management. This rests on the three pillars of Business
Risk Assessment, Operational Controls Assessment and
Policy Compliance Processes. Major risks identified by the
businesses and functions are systematically addressed
through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These
are discussed with both the Management and the Risk
Management Committee of the Board. Some of the risks
relate to competitive intensity and the changing legal and
regulatory environment. The Risk Management Committee
of the Board reviews the risk management policies in
relation to various risks and regulatory compliance issues.
Risk evaluation for new product, process is conducted
during the new product approval process.

10. Maharashtra
11. Odisha
12. Puducherry
13. Rajasthan
14. Tamil Nadu
15. Tripura
16. Uttar Pradesh
17. West Bengal
Products
Currently, IIFL Samasta’s product bouquet contains a
diverse product line, designed to cater to the specific
financial requirements for a variety of customer segments.
These products are as following:
1.

Income Generation Loan (IGL)

2.

Top Up Loan

3.

Product Loan

4.

Emergency Loan

Company identifies the following as key risks vis a vis risk
mitigation plans:

5.

Education Loan



Political Risk

6.

Water and Sanitation Loan (SAJAL)



Concentration Risk

7.

Surabhi



Operational Risk

8.

Sampark (Mortgage Loan)



Liquidity Risk

9.

Swabhiman (Unsecured Loan)



Information Security Risk

10. Hospicash Insurance

Political Risk

For the above mentioned loan products, the tenure varies
from 6 months to 10 years, whereas the loan amount varies
from ` 5,000 to ` 15,00,000.

The Company recognizes political risk as one of the major
risks facing the industry and believes that political risk can
be mitigated through responsible lending and fair pricing by
way of.

Customer Segment
Our main target customers are the economically backward
women of the weaker sections of society with a view
to generate employment and empower them. However,
with the availability of other large ticket size products,
IIFL Samasta aims at tapping into the “missing-middle”
customer segment with a repayment capability for larger
EMIs.
42

Concentration Risk
The Company aims to avoid unbalanced concentration
in both its loan portfolio and borrowings. To mitigate
the concentration risk, the Company has well defined
Geographic and Borrower dependence norms.
Operational Risk
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Liquidity Risk
The Company places significant importance on liquidity
management and has a bias for liquidity mainly to address
operational requirements and corporate commitments.
Along with funding strategy and asset liability management,
the Company is in the process of defining liquidity metrics to
ensure sufficient liquidity in line with business requirements
and aid risk mitigation.
Information Security Risk:
Information Security Management System (ISMS) is an
integrated collection of methods, rules, and regulations
within a Company for continuous control and improvement
of information security. The primary goal of an ISMS is to
identify risks related to the information it processes and
manage those risks in a targeted manner.
Samasta had established an ISMS with numerous benefits:


Compliance with
requirements



Proof of information security for third parties



Identification, evaluation, and handling of existing risks



Improved cost-effectiveness through planning of
risk-based measures

regulatory

and

contractual

Risk-based approach and recognized standards:
Existing risks are identified, evaluated, and handled in
the context of their relation to the selected values. Risk
management creates a valid and, above all, transparent and
reproducible foundation for drawing up and implementing
suitable measures to People, Process and Technology.
In addition, within the four parameters of targeted risk
acceptance, risk avoidance, risk transfer or risk reduce. As
part of our risk management process, the actions are taken
are derived from Best practices and we have implemented
ISO/IEC 27002:2013 standards and are certified for ISO
27001:2013 Information Security Management Standards.
These standards supplement risk management processes
and serve as a solid foundation for achieving desired level
of information security for IIFL Samasta Finance Limited.
IIFL Samasta Finance Limited believes on the integrated



Corporate organization



Personnel security



Physical security

Product and Process Design – The Company adopts a
standardized approach to product design and operational
procedures at the branches and centres to enable
predictability of transactions as a risk mitigation

Corporate Overview

approach is the key to success for an ISMS since it focuses
on protecting essential information across every link in the
value chain of business and key risks are addressed by
means of following:

Audit and Internal Controls
Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance
and consulting activity which has been designed to add
value and improve our organization operations. It helps
organization accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined and risk based approach to evaluate
and contribute to the improvement of the organization’s
governance, risk management and control process.
Head of Internal audit reports functionally to the audit
committee board and administratively to the Managing
Director.
As on March 31, 2022, the total team strength consists of
124 members. The field auditors have been deployed in each
state where IIFL Samasta operates. The team members will
report to the respective regional team leader who will further
report to the zonal manager for administrative activities.
All the assurance and consulting activities including
deployment of staff are planned and monitored by the HO
team.
To be effective, the internal audit department have qualified,
skilled and experienced staff who work in accordance with
the code of ethics and are in the process of implementing
the standards prescribed by the Institute of Internal Auditors
International Professional Practices framework (IPPF).
Regular Risk based internal audits and thematic audits are
conducted across the branches pan India based on the
portfolio, disbursement, PAR, collection efficiency, attrition
and audit frequency. Quarterly audits are conducted across
the functional units in the respective region.
All the activities are automated. Findings are captured in the
field through tab and reports are circulated through the audit
portal. The summary of the reports is shared with the senior
management on weekly/monthly basis for their review and
further course of action. Quarterly reports are presented
to the audit committee with the recommendations and
management action plan.
To improve Internal audit efficiency and effectiveness, the
following are the initiatives taken up during the year

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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The core business of the Company is to provide collateralfree loans in rural areas, and consequently, requires
enhanced operational risk management. To mitigate the
operational risk, the Company adopted Integrated cash
management system – The Company has embarked its
journey to adopt cashless collections process. Currently, the
same is under pilot run in select states. Once the same is
successful, the platform will be rolled out to other branches
on pan India basis. This initiative will help the Company to
mitigate risks related to cash misappropriation and robbery.
Further, the collection process will be very effective on
account of adopting this initiative.
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As a consulting activity, Supported FCU team for
screening the loan portfolio of the branch staff involved
in misappropriation

the vision of the organization.

As a consulting activity, supported business team by
motivating customers for collection during lockdown
by tele calling and during interaction with customers in
centre meeting visits

1.

Enhance efficiency of people and processes

2.

Improve Customer Engagement

3.

Channelized Business
Disbursement process

Data analytics on documentation and KYC to check
any anomalies/fraudulent activities
Quarterly survey conducted among the team members
and other stakeholders to understand their concerns
and to obtain feedback on the internal audit quality and
for improvement
Monthly online professional development trainings
and assessments provided to team members to
upgrade their skills
Team member’s enrollment for IIBF Certificate in
Microfinance and AML-KYC examinations
Team supervisors undergoing training on IPPF
implementation guidelines

Financial Performance:
Particulars (`)

FY 2021-22

FY 2020-21

Net Interest
Income

6,10,94,46,520

4,31,96,19,226

Other Income

7,14,07,505

3,25,10,402

Total Income

6,18,08,54,025

4,35,21,29,628

Operating
Expenses

3,28,57,76,169

2,24,89,79,855

Operating Profit

2,89,50,77,857

2,10,31,49,773

Provisions

2,30,56,27,960

1,28,16,14,222

58,94,49,897

82,15,35,552

Profit before
Exceptional
Items & Tax
Exceptional
Items
Profit Before Tax
Taxes
Profit After Tax

With this focus, all our Technology Initiatives were driven
towards:

growth

and

Paperless

Embrace Efficiency:
Cashlite
1.

Digilite (Go Cashless)

2.

Customer Deposit (instead of CRO collecting cash and
getting exposed to “Cash carrying risk”).
Increase penetration of Digital Collections platforms
such as UPI, WhatsApp Pay, BBPS, AEPS, Nach was
the focus of the year gone by.
In order to reduce the Cash Carrying Risk of our CROs,
we laid the foundation to the “Customer Direct Cash
Drop Model” through an intermittent step called
“Transit BC points’’ where the BC network was given
a boost of 50X as compared to the previous year.
Customer cash drop was enabled through an auto
reconciled API based methodology.
Zoho and MAVRC - Several inter-departmental
workflows were implemented on Zoho to reduce TAT,
errors, people dependency and enhance efficiency
of processes. The quality of work done on field by
employees of various departments can monitored
and controlled through accurate results captured
by questionnaire administration in MAVRC- several
departmental modules were introduced during the
period.
Improve Customer Engagement:

-

-

58,94,49,897

82,15,35,552

8,34,05,534

15,53,03,632

50,60,44,363

66,62,31,919

IGL Customer Application -”Sakhi“
Our exclusive Microfinance Customer App, Sakhi was
enriched with several new features, such as “Pay EMI
online”, ‘‘Notifications and Alerts” etc. to make the app
more user friendly and more frequently used.
Channelized Business
Disbursement process:

Information Technology
IIFL Samasta Finance Limited has witnessed an exponential
growth in the last five years. Hence, it was critical for us
to sustain the growth by ensuring that all processes were
at the best efficiency levels and also ensure that our
manpower led activities were conducted with the best TAT,
lowest redundancy and finest outcome in alignment with
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growth

and

Paperless

There
were
many
enhancements
and
customization done to support guided business
decisions, channelized growth and error free
reconciliation with least human intervention.
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Pre-Approved Loans - For Fast track loan
Processing



Route Optimization & Geo Analytics - New
rules, Machine Learning Algorithms modified
to suit latest field scenario and sustainability

Human Resources

Despite various challenges faced by the financial industry,
which we are part of, we marked a historic milestone of
being certified among Top 100 Great Place to Work for 2022
across industries and topped the 30 Best Places to Work in
BFSI and NBFC in our very first attempt.

IIFL Samasta believes in giving the best employee experience

1.



Paperless Customer On-boarding-e-Sign
Integration

Corporate Overview



as they are the greatest assets for us. Employees serve
our customers, and they are our brand ambassadors in all
forums. Thus it becomes all the more important to have high
employee engagement through various measures to improve
efficiency in customer service and ensuring customer delight.

Employee Communication:

The Management connected with the branches and its employees through IIFL Samasta Sangam through electronic

platform across Pan India locations. We conducted over 40 sessions across Pan India.
We celebrated IIFL Samasta foundation day and had grand celebrations pan India and HO.
During the International Women’s Day, under our “Rachana” initiative, we have conducted games and hi-tea for our
women employees.

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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To bring in increased efficiency and boost productivity, continuous efforts were made to measure the performance and
regular feedback and tips to have better collection efficiency.
2.

Employee Focus:
2.1 Employee Recognition:
Continuous connect, mentoring and consistent
recognition helped in boosting employee morale,
resulting in gaining management trust and
employees going the extra mile. We held virtual
online recognition for employees who walked the
extra mile in improving customer experience.
“Gaurav” awards for all quarters were
commemorated with the involvement of our
Chief Executives from Head Office and Zonal
Heads. This gave the employees a high sense
of achievement and recognition among the Top
Management. About 16% of our employees have
showcased their extraordinary achievements
which were recognized and rewarded by our Top
Management.

successful here, their tips and learnings here.
This worked as a guidance to the other fellow
colleagues. The main objective of this was to
recognize long tenured employee with their
contributions and create a sense of pride within
them and increase belongingness with the
organization.
We celebrated 15th Anniversary of Samasta in
March 2022, where we commemorated the
entire journey. Branches were granted special
allowance for celebrations locally.
2.2 Employee Engagement:
HR Branch visits and ensuring all new policies,
referral bonus schemes etc were downloaded
to have the employee buy-in and encourage
referrals to boost employee tenure.

We had already built online appreciation
module in our HRMIS to imbibe the culture of
appreciation across functions as they worked in
tandem to fulfil the organization’s objectives. It
also gave positive impact to overcome anxiety
and depression during the crisis. We have created
multiple badges for employees to acknowledge
and appreciate each other for their support
received during required times in their day to day
work.
We launched series for employee success
stories, to recognize employees who have been
through the journey of IIFL Samasta. We shared
their career path with us and what makes them
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We always listen to the voice of employees
during the normal course of business, specifically
during challenging times. We prioritize their

2.4 Employee Volunteering Activities as a Responsible Corporate Citizen:
Employee volunteering
Our employees are not only involved in driving business, but in also impact by giving back to the communities where
they operate. Upon conducting meetings and visits, they promote a plethora of initiatives that we as an organization
have to offer to the community. They carry application forms, process guidelines wherever they travel. This enables
the beneficiaries to get immediate aid. Despite having busy schedules, our culture has enhanced their joy of giving
back to the society, creating a sense of satisfaction in each employee.
Our employees volunteer in activities related to nature and its conservation. They organize camps and drives for
tree plantation, giving their time and energy, even taking a day off for this priceless contribution.

“Shiksha ki Udaan”: Keeping the larger objective
of progress of women and their economic
empowerment in the forefront, our employees
came forward to be our campaigners for “Shiksha
ki udaan” project.
“Shiksha ki udaan”, an initiative of IIFL Samasta, is
a scholarship program to support the meritorious
girl students coming from financially weaker
sections of the society. Under this scholarship
program, girl students who are currently studying
in Class 9 up to graduation are provided with
financial support of ` 5,000 to cover their
academic expenses. Over 1,000 girl students
have been our beneficiaries over the last one year.

Over 1214 girls have continued their education
3.

Maximizing Human Potential:
ICA is a career advancement program, where
vacancies, across departments and areas of operation,
are primarily filled with internal eligible employees. This
approach has given equal opportunity to employees,
ensured fast track career growth and met their career
aspirations.
708 employees have been promoted through
ICA program in FY 2021-22
Immersive Learning: Our approach of learning
pedagogy is immersive with essence of real time
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Given that our employees’ health comes first
to us, IIFL Samasta ensured all employees are
double vaccinated.
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wellbeing and workload balancing to drive better
productivity. We believe in the philosophy that
engaged employees thrive for high customer
delight. In this area, we have implemented various
HR practices ensuring wellness and motivation of
our employees. The wellness index raised from
3.8 to 4.3 (measured on a scale of 5) over a period
of 6 months.

2.3 Employee well-being:
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simulations and role plays. To cater to the training needs
of our diverse workforce we ensure customized learning
programs in 9 regional languages leading to clarity on their
job role.
Data science training: We have identified employees who
have acumen for analytics & data science. We have imparted
training through external agencies for them. This bunch of
talented employees are now, engaged in developing data
models and business dashboards, that give key insights to
Management for decision making. Thus, we ensured that
organizational goals and individual aspirations are well
aligned, thus being win-win for both.
Leadership development programs across all levels to
strengthen our leaders and thus create a high performing
organization.
Leaders as Coach: We have developed our leaders on
coaching skills to further develop future leaders of IIFL
Samasta. This encompasses enriching their skills on
Emotional Intelligence and give good direction to develop
the team to the fullest potential. Our leaders also participate
in “Coach the Coachee” succession planning programs and
coaching the mid-management on the same skills, so that
they further take care of their teams till the last mile.

Continuous performance feedback culture (Monthly/
Quarterly)
Unlike annual feedback, this feedback is done on a
continuous basis. Through our machine learning
intervention, every month we get the scorecard of the field
employees which are published to front line managers.
The people managers who are trained on SBI and GLOW
approach give constructive feedback and feed forward
guiding them for better planning and execution for coming
months. Similarly, for enabling functions we have quarterly
approach.
The best performing employee names are displayed in the
branches, which leads to their motivation and pride. The
low performing employees are given constructive feedback
through structured Performance Improvement Plan. People
managers hold discussions with them and identify specific
training needs.
Conclusion
With the expansion of the branch network already taken
place and equity infused by IIFL, the credit rating of the
Company has improved and banks are willing to lend loans
at lower interest rates. The platform has been laid for
entering into other states for disbursal of more micro loans
and reaching the needy customers across the country and
we are confident of reaching new heights while satisfying
our customers.

For IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

For IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

N Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN: 01018821

D Shivaprakash
Whole Time Director
DIN: 02216802

Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bangalore
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[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
IIFL SAMASTA FINANCE LIMITED
110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa Layout, Bengaluru- 560027
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by IIFL Samasta Finance Limited (herein after called the ‘Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided and representation made by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on 31st March 2022 according to the provisions of:
1.

The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made there under;

2.

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

3.

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

4.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

•
•
•
•
5.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,1992;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,2008;
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015;
The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and Rules framed there under

Directions, Guidelines and Notifications issued by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time with respect to the ‘NonBanking Financial Company-Micro Finance Institutions’ (NBFC-MFIs)
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
a)

Secretarial Standards and Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

b)

The Listing Agreements entered in to by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange(s) w.r.t. Debt listing

I further report that during the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
Further the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, and Independent Directors. The were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review.
Other statutes, Acts, laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards etc., as applicable to the Company are given below:
Labour Laws and other incidental laws related to labour and employees appointed by the Company either on its payroll or on
contractual basis as related to wages, gratuity, provident fund, ESIC, compensation etc.;
(i)

Acts as prescribed under Direct Tax and Indirect Tax;

(ii)

Acts prescribed under prevention and control of pollution;

(iii) Acts prescribed under environmental protection;
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(iv) Land Revenue laws of respective States;
(v)

Labour Welfare Act of respective States; and

(vi) Local laws as applicable to various offices of the Company.
Further, Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
During the period under review, decisions were carried through unanimously and no dissenting views were observed, while
reviewing the minutes.
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
I further report that during the audit period the Company has undertaken following events/actions having a major bearing on
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above:
1.

Rights issue made during the year:
Sl. No.

No of Shares issued

Date of Allotment

Nature of Security

1.

122,100,121

June 28, 2021

Equity Shares

2.

41,482,300

March 30, 2022

Equity Shares

3.

13,827,433

March 31, 2022

Equity Shares

Private Placement of Rated, Listed, Senior, Secured, market linked NCDs made during the year
Sl. No.

No of Shares issued

Date of Allotment

1.

748

May 31, 2021

2.

500

October 26, 2021

2.

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 4,00,00,00,000 (Rupees Four Hundred Crore only)
39,80,00,000 (Thirty Nine Crore Eighty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.10 (Rupees Ten Only) each and 20,00,000 (Twenty
Lakh) Preference Shares of Rs.10 (Rupees Ten Only) divided in to 1,45,000 (One Lakh Forty Five Thousand) Redeemable
Non-Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each aggregating Rs.14,50,000 (Rupees
Fourteen Lakh and Fifty Thousand Only) and 18,55,000 (Eighteen Lakh Fifty-Five Thousand) Preference Shares of Rs.10/(Rupees Ten Only) each aggregating to Rs.1,85,50,000 (Rupees One Crore Eighty-Five Lakh and Fifty Thousand Only) to
Rs. 6,00,00,00,000 (Rupees Six Hundred Crore only) 59,80,00,000 (Fifty Nine Crore Eighty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.10
(Rupees Ten Only) each and 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakh) Preference Shares of Rs.10 (Rupees Ten Only) divided in to 1,45,000
(One Lakh Forty Five Thousand) Redeemable Non-Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each aggregating Rs.14,50,000 (Rupees Fourteen Lakh and Fifty Thousand Only) and 18,55,000 (Eighteen Lakh
Fifty-Five Thousand) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each aggregating to Rs.1,85,50,000 (Rupees One
Crore Eighty-Five Lakh and Fifty Thousand Only) vide Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on May 24, 2021.

3.

The subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company has increased from 320,81,33,360 to 4,982,231,900 by way of rights
issue of 177,409,854 Equity shares issued to IIFL Finance Ltd & IIFL Home Finance Ltd during the reporting period.

4.

The Company has altered its Memorandum of Association with respect to Name Clause by changing its name from Samasta
Microfinance Limited to IIFL Samasta Finance Limited vide Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on July 24, 2021.

5.

During the reporting period the Company has adopted IIFL Samasta Finance Limited Employee Stock Option Plan –
2021 vide Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on October 27, 2021.

For Lakshmeenarayan & Co.
Practicing Company Secretaries
Lakshmeenarayan Bhat
Proprietor
FCS No: 10615
Date: April 23, 2022
CP No. 15003
Place: Bengaluru
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa Layout
Bengaluru- 560027
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

7.

We have prepared the Secretarial Audit Report based on the Audited Financials with respect to certain financial
Transactions, Loans, and advances etc.

For Lakshmeenarayan & Co.
Practicing Company Secretaries
Lakshmeenarayan Bhat
Proprietor
FCS No: 10615
CP No. 15003

Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bengaluru
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ANNEXURE A’

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion
1.

2.

We have audited the financial statements of IIFL
Samasta Finance Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, its profit, other total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those

Emphasis of Matter
4.

We draw attention to Note 58 of the Annual Financial
Statements which describes the uncertainties due to
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and management’s
evaluation of the impact on Company’s financial
performance is dependent on future developments,
which are uncertain.
Our opinion is not qualified on the above said matter.

Key Audit Matters
5.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India(‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

To the Members of IIFL SAMASTA FINANCE LIMITED
(Erstwhile Samasta Microfinance Limited)

Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Contd.)
Key Audit Matter

How our Audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(a) Expected Credit Loss
Refer note 2 (c) of significant accounting policies and note 40
for credit disclosures.
As at March 31, 2022, the Company has total gross loan
assets of ` 5,772.72 Crores (2021: ` 4,116.78 Crores)) against
which an Expected Credit Loss (‘ECL’) of ` 254.80 Crores
(2021 ` 155.44 Crores) has been accrued.
The ECL approach as required under Ind AS 109, Financial
instruments, involves high degree of complexity and requires
significant judgement of the management.

Our audit focused on assessing the appropriateness
of management’s judgment and estimates used in the
impairment analysis through procedures that included, but
were not limited to, the following:


Evaluated the Company’s accounting policies for
estimation of expected credit loss on loan assets
in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,
Financial Instruments;



Obtained an understanding of the modelling techniques
adopted by the Company including the key inputs
and assumptions. Since modelling assumptions and
parameters are based on historical data, we assessed
whether historical experience was representative of
current circumstances and was relevant in view of the
recent impairment losses incurred within the portfolios.



Assessed the design and implementation, and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over the modelling
process including governance over monitoring of the
model and approval of key assumptions



Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company’s
process of determination of significant increase in
credit risk in accordance with the applicable accounting
standard and the basis for classification of exposures
into various stages.



Assessed the key judgments and assumptions relating
to the macro-economic scenarios including the impact
of COVID 19 Pandemic, RBI guidelines/notification and
the associated probability weights.



Obtained the approved policy of board of directors to
understand the relief measures sanctioned to various
class of borrowers in accordance with the directions
given by the RBI and tested, on sample basis, the
compliance with respect to asset classification and
provisioning norms as per such directions.



Tested management’s computation
performing following procedures:



Evaluated management’s groupings of borrowers on the
basis of different product lines and customer segments
with different risk characteristics.



Tested classification of loans into various categories
based on their past due status and other loss indicators.
On a sample basis, inspected the repayment schedule
from the underlying borrower agreements and collection
made on due dates;

The Management is required to determine the ECL that may
occur over either a 12-month period or the remaining life of
an asset, depending on the categorization of the individual
asset. The key areas of judgment include
1.

Categorization of loans in Stage 1, 2 and 3 based on
identification of:
a)

exposures with Significant Increase in Credit Risk
(SICR) since their origination and

b)

Individually impaired / default exposures.

2.

Techniques used to determine Loss Given Default
(‘LGD’) and Probability of Default (‘PD’) to calculate an
ECL are based on past experience.

3.

The impact of different future macroeconomic
conditions in the determination of ECL.

These parameters are derived from the Company’s
internally developed statistical models, historical data and
macro-economic factors and a change in such models
or assumptions could have a material impact on the
accompanying financial statements.
These factors required the models to be reassessed based on
the available information including the additional risk profiling
due to the impact of COVID-19 Pandemic, geographical,
political and economic risk to measure the ECL.
Management has made a number of interpretations and
assumptions when designing and implementing models that
are compliant with the standard. The accuracy of data flows
and the implementation of related controls is critical for the
integrity of the estimated impairment provisions.
Considering the significance of the above matter to the
financial statements and the significant auditor attention
required to test such complex accounting estimates, we have
identified this as a key audit matter for current year audit.
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of

ECL

by

2. Identification and Measurement of NPA:
As per RBI’s circular dated November 12 , 2021 read with
earlier circular dated October 1, 2021 on “Prudential norms
on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
pertaining to Advances, Automation of NPA and provisioning
is required to be implemented by all lending Institutions.
The NPA provisioning as per ECL methodology followed
by the Company are not fully automated in Software
Applications used by the Company for Loans Management
and are performed manually through excel spreadsheets.
Further, marking of linked accounts at borrower level as NPAs
are done manually. These may have impact on the accuracy
and completeness of the provision accrued for NPAs.



Performed test of details of the input information used
in ECL computation on a sample basis.



Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the computation.



Performed analytical procedures by determining various
ratios or percentage-based measures to review overall
reasonableness of the estimate determined by the
management.

Performed other substantive procedures, included but not
limited to the following:
•

Assessed the appropriateness of asset classification
and adequacy of related provisioning by performing
procedures such as computation of overdue ageing,
assessment of borrower level NPA identification and
verification of applicable provision rates as per ECL
policy of the Company on test check basis;

•

Selected samples of performing loan accounts to
assess, independently, whether such loan accounts
should be classified as NPA;

•

Recompilation of the amount of ECL provisioning on
the total advances base considering the stage wise
categories of advances, LGD (Loss given default) and
PD(Probability of default) arrived by the Company.

Considering the significance, we have identified this as a key
audit matter for current year audit.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the financial statements

6.

7.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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8.

In preparing the financial statements, Management
and the Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board
of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.


Conclude
on
the
appropriateness
of
management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial
statements
9.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

10. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:






Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or override of
internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
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11. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements
in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.
12. We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
13. We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
14. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
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(g)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
15. As required by Sec 197(16) of the Act, we report that
the Company has paid remuneration to its directors
during the year in accordance with the provisions
of and limits laid down under section 197 read with
schedule V to the Act.
16. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Appendix - A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extend applicable.
17. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)

We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the financial statements.

(b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account for the
purpose of preparation of the financial statements.

(d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

(e)

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating
IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

The Company does not have any pending
litigations which would impact its financial
position in its financial statements the
financial statements;

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses;

iii.

There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

a.

The Management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium
or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any
persons or entities, including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with
the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b.

The Management has represented
that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received
by the Company from any persons
or entities, including foreign entities
(‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company
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effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Appendix-B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements.
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key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
c.

Based on such audit procedures
performed as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the
management representations under
sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain
any material misstatement.
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d.

The Board of Directors of the Company
have proposed final dividend for the
year which is subject to the approval
of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The amount of
dividend proposed is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 000515S

Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bengaluru
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G. Srinivas
Partner
Membership No: 086761
UDIN No. 22086761AILZCE2203

In our opinion, the investments made, during
the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

(i)

(c)

The Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangible Assets
(a)

(A) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’) and relevant
details of Right-of-use assets.
(B) The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of tangible
and intangible assets.

(b)

The Company has a regular program of physically
verifying all fixed assets at its offices in a phased
manner, which in our opinion is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets.
Based on the information and explanation given
to us and on verification of the records of the
Company, the Company has physically verified
the fixed assets as per their program during the
year. No material discrepancies as compared to
book records were noticed on such verification.

(ii)

(c)

According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

(d)

The Company has not revalued any of its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e)

No proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The Company is not carrying on any trading or
manufacturing activities and hence does not have
inventories. Therefore, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a)

The Company has not provided any loans
or advances in the nature of loans or stood
guarantee or provided security to any other entity
during the year, and hence reporting under clause
3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has no loans,
investments, guarantee and security which meets the
requirements of section 185 and 186 of the Act.
(v)

The Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public, within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules
framed thereunder. We are informed that no order has
been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any
court or other tribunal.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given
to us, in respect of the class of industry the Company
falls under, the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1)
of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause (vi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company
vii) (a)

According to the records of the Company, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues payable including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, and Cess
and other material statutory dues as applicable
to the Company with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax,
and Cess were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for
a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b)

According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no dues in respect of income
tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods
and service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess
which have not been deposited on account of
dispute.

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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The Appendix referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to
the members of the Company on the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022, we report that:
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(ix)
(a)

(x)

On the basis of verification of records and
according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to Financial
Institutions, Banks and monies raised by issue
of debentures. The Company has not raised any
loan from Government.

(b)

The Company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender;

(c)

The Company has applied the loans for which the
loans were obtained.

(d)

On an overall examination of financial statements
of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e)

The Company has not raised any loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f)
of the Order is not applicable.

(a)

According to the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not
raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer or debt instruments or term
loans and hence the reporting under clause 3 (x)
is not applicable.

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

During the year, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly
or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
Based upon the audit procedures performed
for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per the
information and explanations given to us by the
Management and the representations obtained
from the management, we report that no material
fraud by the Company and on the Company by
its officers or employees, except for 128 cases of
frauds in the nature of ‘fraudulent encashment /
manipulation of books of accounts’ amounting to
` 63,97,720/-, on the Company have been noticed
or reported during the year.
No report under sub-section (12) of section 143
of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
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(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of
this report.
(c)

We have taken into consideration the whistle
blower complaints received by the Company
during the year (and upto the date of this report),
while determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.
(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, based on verification of
the records and approvals of the Audit Committee,
the Company is in compliance with Section 177
and Section 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.
(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to
us and on an overall examination of the books of account
(a)

In our opinion the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b)

We have considered, the internal audit reports
for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into noncash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him as referred to in section 192 of companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable.
(xvi) (a)

The Company is registered under section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b)

In our opinion, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.
(xx) (a)

The unspent amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects have been transferred to a special
account in accordance with the provisions of
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of ongoing projects, the Company
has transferred unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of
the previous financial year, to a Special account
within a period of 30 days from the end of the said
financial year in compliance with the provision of
section 135(6) of the Act.

In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has not
transferred the unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) amount as at the Balance Sheet date out of the
amounts that was required to be spent during the year,
to a Special Account in compliance with the provision
of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act till
the date of our report since the time period for such
transfer i.e. 30 days from the end of the financial year
has not elapsed till the date of our report.
(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable
in respect of audit of financial statements of the
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included
in respect of said clause under this report.
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 000515S

Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bengaluru

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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(b)
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(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors
of the Company during the year because of the
predecessor auditor not eligible to continue as statutory
auditors as per the RBI guidelines as amended.
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.
Managements
Controls

Responsibility

for

Internal

Financial

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
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In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial Control system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.
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For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 000515S

Date: April 23, 2022
Place: Bengaluru

G. Srinivas
Partner
Membership No: 086761
UDIN No. 22086761AILZCE2203
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2022
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021

3
3
4

4,55,08,08,859
2,55,56,28,994
9,86,93,322

1,78,70,10,465
1,54,44,11,947
8,69,85,006

5

8,48,45,567

6
7
8

55,18,62,67,844
5,00,000
51,96,30,247

3,05,99,607
39,63,02,60,944
5,00,000
50,77,89,958

9
10
11
12
13
13
14

14,10,58,538
1,63,74,019
63,12,41,303
5,04,836
9,12,37,772
6,73,77,250
1,32,391
63,94,43,00,942

1,18,40,015
1,61,26,237
34,61,18,403
5,31,516
6,26,47,738
5,62,88,979
10,37,287
44,08,21,48,102

4

9,86,93,322

8,69,85,006

-

-

8,06,03,416

8,60,14,864

Note
No.

ASSETS
1
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above
(c) Derivative financial instruments
(d) Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Other Receivables
(e) Loans
(f) Investments
(g) Other Financial assets
Non-Financial Assets
(a) Other non-financial assets
(b) Current tax assets (Net)
(c) Deferred tax Assets (Net)
(d) Investment Property
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
(f) Right to Use
(g) Other Intangible assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1
Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Payables
(I) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(II) Other Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Debt Securities
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
(e) Subordinated Liabilities
(f) Lease Liability
(g) Other financial liabilities
2
Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net)
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-financial liabilities
3
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity
2

15

16
17
18
19
20

5,14,80,83,770
46,03,36,59,529
1,40,72,04,341
7,41,82,995
91,35,84,192

8,82,92,74,954
25,54,11,18,371
1,27,85,62,710
6,17,65,249
1,59,95,59,729

21
22
23

5,51,16,011
8,45,85,688
5,57,55,501

1,15,81,955
5,43,36,393
3,78,79,578

24
25

4,98,22,31,900
5,01,06,00,276
63,94,43,00,942

3,20,81,33,360
3,28,69,35,933
44,08,21,48,102

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000515S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

G.Srinivas
Partner
M. No. 086761

N. Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN : 01018821

D. Shivaprakash
Whole-Time Director
DIN : 02216802

Anantha Kumar T
Chief Financial Officer

Manoranjan Biswal
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022
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(Amount in `)
Year Ended
March 31, 2021

9,84,23,24,692
26,09,04,540
2,46,39,020

6,88,59,23,563
10,28,64,271
7,23,314

10,12,78,68,252
7,14,07,505
10,19,92,75,757
3,95,10,25,187
1,38,57,70,281

6,98,95,11,148
3,25,10,402
7,02,20,21,550
2,54,56,40,521
55,29,51,309

32
33
13, 14
34

98,72,54,224
2,36,65,02,967
7,86,01,904
84,06,71,298
9,60,98,25,861
58,94,49,896
58,94,49,896

85,29,14,313
1,57,53,54,868
6,32,23,192
61,04,01,795
6,20,04,85,998
82,15,35,552
82,15,35,552

35
35
35

36,76,90,322
(19,47,155)
(28,23,37,633)
8,34,05,533
50,60,44,363
50,60,44,363

43,49,98,351
8,69,253
(28,05,63,971)
15,53,03,633
66,62,31,919
66,62,31,919

35
35

(1,10,66,704)
27,85,268

(30,86,716)
7,76,865

35

(82,81,436)

(23,09,851)

(82,81,436)
49,77,62,927

(23,09,851)
66,39,22,068

1.22
1.22

2.38
2.38

Note
No.

Revenue from operations
Interest Income
Fees and commission Income
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized
cost category
Total Revenue from operations
Other Income
Total Income
Finance Costs
Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized
cost category
Impairment on financial instruments
Employee Benefits Expenses
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Others expenses
Total Expenses
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Profit before tax
Tax expense:
Current Tax
Tax related to Earlier Years
Deferred Tax
Total Tax Expense
Profit Before impact of rate Change on Opening Deferred Tax
Impact of Change in the tax rate on Opening deferred tax
Profit for the period
Other Comprehensive Income
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Subtotal (A)
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss
Subtotal (B)
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising Profit and
other Comprehensive Income for the period)
Earnings per equity share
Basic (`)
Diluted (`)

26
27
28
29
30
31

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000515S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

G.Srinivas
Partner
M. No. 086761

N. Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN : 01018821

D. Shivaprakash
Whole-Time Director
DIN : 02216802

Anantha Kumar T
Chief Financial Officer

Manoranjan Biswal
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022
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Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Particulars
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

SR.
No.
1

2

3

4
5
6

Particulars
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation, and extraordinary item
Adjustments for
Depreciation
Net (gain) / loss on derecognition of financial instruments under
amortized cost category
Interest income
Short Term Capital Gain
Gratuity and Leave Salary
Profit on sale of assets
Dividend income
Provisions for Standard and Non Performing Assets
Bad Debts Written Off
Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in Trade Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in loans
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans & Advances
Increase / (Decrease) in Long term Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables
Changes in Working Capital
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchase of Investments
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Deposit
Sale of Investments
Interest received
Dividends received
Net cash from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Interest paid
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)
Year Ended
March 31, 2021

58,94,49,896

82,15,35,552

7,86,01,904
6,73,96,545

6,32,23,192
12,42,51,401

(10,64,62,829)
(7,01,55,716)
2,19,67,859
98,72,54,224
1,31,83,73,735
2,886,425,619
(5,42,45,960)
(17,86,16,34,860)
(25,58,26,924)
(5,79,41,216)
(1,23,11,75,700)
(3,49,94,378)
(54,11,448)
(19,50,12,30,487)
(16,61,48,04,868)
(29,00,00,000)
(16,90,48,04,868)

(8,23,18,551)
(3,05,96,802)
1,49,64,749
85,29,14,313
42,86,99,909
2,192,673,763
(1,20,60,031)
(18,03,79,92,813)
2,30,347
35,64,676
1,02,59,89,577
(1,50,62,513)
5,07,07,569
(16,98,46,23,188)
(14,79,19,49,426)
(41,00,00,000)
(15,20,19,49,426)

(9,37,06,919)
80,909
(61,17,79,41,103)
(1,01,12,17,048)
61,24,80,96,819
8,42,11,147
(95,04,76,195)

(3,32,37,960)
1,53,974
(27,84,32,48,279)
(74,48,03,319)
27,87,38,45,082
9,42,87,789
(65,30,02,713)

2,99,99,99,955
45,50,76,94,067
(27,59,79,38,082)

89,99,99,998
39,01,24,04,750
(24,33,95,78,004)

20,90,97,55,940
3,05,44,74,876
1,46,64,19,226
4,52,08,94,102

(16,04,06,670)
15,41,24,20,074
(44,25,32,064)
1,90,89,51,290
1,46,64,19,226

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
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IIFL Samasta Finance Limited (Erstwhile IIFL Samasta
Finance Limited) has its registered office at Bangalore, India
and was Incorporated under the Provisions of Companies
Act,1956. The Company has obtained certificate of
registration from RBI dated September 05, 2013. The
Company is categorized as systematically important Non
Banking Finance (non - deposit accepting or holding)
Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC MFI) under
the provisions of RBI Act 1934. The Company is engaged
in providing micro finance services to women who are
enrolled as members and organized as Joint Liability Group
('JLG'), Small business loans and loans against property.
The Company is a subsidiary of IIFL Finance Limited.

The areas involving critical estimates are:

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
a)

b)

Historical cost convention:
"The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for the following:

c)

1)

certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) are measured at fair value
as stated in notes;

2)

defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at
fair value."

Use of estimates and Critical Estimates and
judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and notes thereto. The
management believes that these estimates and
assumptions are reasonable and prudent. However,
actual results could differ from these estimates.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in the current and future period.

Determining inputs into the ECL measurement
model - (Refer Note g)

ii)

Estimation of defined benefit obligation - (Refer
Note r (II))

The areas involving critical judgements are:

Basis of Preparation of financial statements:
"The financial statements, together with the comparative
period date as at and for the year ended March 31,
2022, comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015], as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.
The Company has followed statutory requirements,
circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) for Non-Banking Financial Companies
(NBFC), time to time."

i)

d)

i)

Classification of financial assets : Assessment of
the business model within which the assets are
held and assessment of whether the contractual
terms of the financial asset are Solely Payment
of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

ii)

Derecognition
securitization.

iii)

Categorization of loan portfolios

of

financial

assets

and

Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. At the acquisition date, identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured
at fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed
include contingent liabilities representing present
obligation and they are measured at their acquisition
date fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable. The consideration transferred is measured
at fair value at acquisition date and includes the fair
value of any contingent consideration. However,
deferred tax asset or liability and any liability or asset
relating to employee benefit arrangements arising
from a business combination are measured and
recognized in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 12, Income Taxes and Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits
respectively.
Where the consideration transferred exceeds the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill.
Alternatively, in case of a bargain purchase wherein the
consideration transferred is lower than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity,
and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
out to be different than those originally assessed.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgments is included in the relevant notes together
with information about the basis of calculation for
each affected line item in the financial statements.
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assumed, the difference is recorded as a gain in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as capital reserve. The costs of acquisition excluding
those relating to issue of equity or debt securities are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
In case of business combinations involving entities
under common control, the above policy does not
apply. Business combinations involving entities under
common control are accounted for using the pooling of
interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity
or business are accounted at their carrying amounts
on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary
adjustments required to harmonise accounting
policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration
paid over the share capital of transferor entity or
business is recognized as capital reserve under equity.
e)

Non Financial Assets:
Measurement
i)

Property, Plant and Equipment
PPE (Property Plant and Equipment) is recognized
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
PPE is stated at original cost net of tax, if any,
less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes
professional fees related to the acquisition of
PPE and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalized in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policy, less GST to the extent credit of
tax is availed. Following initial recognition, items
of property, plant and equipment are carried
at its cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All repairs
and maintenance are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

ii)

Intangible Asset
Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible
assets arising on acquisition of business are
measured at fair value as at date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets
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with finite useful life are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.
iii)

Investment Property
Investment Property are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Transaction costs are included
in the initial measurement. The cost of a purchased
investment property comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable expenditure. Directly
attributable expenditure includes, for example,
professional fees for legal services, property transfer
taxes and other transaction costs. Following
initial recognition, an entity shall measure all of
its investment properties in accordance with Ind
AS 40's requirements for cost model.
Depreciation/ Amortization
Depreciation on each item of PPE and Investment
Property is provided using the Straight-Line
Method based on the useful lives of the assets
as estimated by the management and is charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The estimate
of the useful life of the assets has been assessed
based on the nature of the asset, the usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the
operating conditions of the asset, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers warranties
and maintenance support, etc. Freehold land is
not depreciated.
Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized
on a Straight Line basis over the estimated useful
economic life and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
Individual assets costing up to ` 5,000 has been
depreciated in full in the year of purchase.
No depreciation is charged from the month in
which assets are sold. Depreciation/ Amortization
on PPE, Investment Property and Intangible
Assets added or disposed off during the year is
calculated on pro- rata basis with reference to the
date of addition or deletion.
Estimated useful life of the assets is as under:
Class of assets
Buildings *
Furniture and fixtures *
Office equipment *
Electrical Equipment *
Vehicles *
Computers *
Software *
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Useful life in years
20
5
5
5
5
3
3

Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of PPE, Investment
Property and Intangible Asset is derecognized
(eliminated from the balance sheet) on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
the de-recognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized.
f)

g)

Financial Instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to
a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.
i)

Business Model Assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the
objective of a business model in which an asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects
the way the business is managed and information
is provided to management.
Assessment of whether contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’
is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and
for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs,
as well as profit margin.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortization and are
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired. Assets
that are subject to depreciation and amortization are
reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may
not be recoverable. Such circumstances include,
though are not limited to, significant or sustained
decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse
changes in the economic environment.
An impairment loss is recognized whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its Cash Generating
Unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less cost to sell and value in use. To calculate
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market rates and
the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does
not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Fair value less cost to sell
is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from
the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction
between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost
of disposal. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in
depreciation and amortization expenses.

Financial Assets
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Impairment losses are reversed in the Statement
of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined if no impairment
loss had previously been recognized.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows
are SPPI, the Company considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition.
Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition, except in the period
after the Company changes its business model
for managing financial assets.
Initial recognition and measurement:
The Company recognizes a financial asset in
its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value
plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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* For these class of assets, based on internal
assessment
and
independent
technical
evaluation carried out by external valuers the
management believes that the useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets. Hence
the useful lives for these assets is different from
the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.
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However, trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at
transaction price.

For the above category, income by way of interest
and dividend, provision for impairment are
recognized in profit or loss and changes in fair
value (other than on account of above income or
expense) are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in other equity.
On disposal of debt instruments at FVOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in other equity is reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement:
For subsequent measurement, the Company
classifies a financial asset in accordance with the
below criteria:
i.

The Company’s business model for managing
the financial asset and

ii.

The contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

iii.

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless
it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI
as explained above. This is a residual category
applied to all other investments of the Company
excluding investments in subsidiaries and
associate. Such financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair
value changes are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its
financial assets into the following categories:
i.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

ii.

Financial assets measured at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

iii.

Financial assets measured at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

i.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortized
cost if both the following conditions are met:
a)

b)

The Company’s business model objective
for managing the financial asset is to
hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and
The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances,
trade receivables, loans, investments and other
financial assets of the Company. Such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.
ii.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a company of similar financial
assets) is derecognized (i.e. removed from the
Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following
occurs:
i.

The contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial asset expires;

ii.

The Company transfers its contractual rights to
receive cash flows of the financial asset and has
substantially transferred all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset;

iii.

The Company retains the contractual rights to
receive cash flows but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows without material
delay to one or more recipients under a ‘passthrough’ arrangement (thereby substantially
transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset);

iv.

The Company neither transfers nor retains,
substantially all risk and rewards of ownership,
and does not retain control over the financial
asset.

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of
the following conditions are met:
a)

The Company’s business model objective
for managing the financial asset is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b)

The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

70

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

In cases where company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset,
the Company continues to recognize such financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in
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On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as
mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured at
FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount
and the consideration received is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment of financial assets:
The Company recognizes loss allowance for
Expected Credit Loss “ECL” on the following financials
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL :
i)

Loans

ii)

Trade Receivables

Loans
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL, except for financial instruments
whose credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, for which a 12-month ECL is
computed.
Life-time ECL is based on the result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument.
12-month ECL is based on the result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognized is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. They are measured as follows :
Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the
reporting date: As the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive);
Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date: As the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows.
Trade Receivables
For trade receivables, the Company applies the
simplified approach which requires life-time ECL to be
recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of
financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement
of financial position for financial assets measured at
amortized cost as a deduction from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.
Write off
Loans are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering in its entirety or a portion
thereof. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the borrower does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the writeoff. This assessment is carried out at the individual
asset level.
Financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to recovery activities in order to comply with the
Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
ii)

The Company categorizes loan assets into stages
based on the Days Past Due status:
Stage

Past Due

ECL

Regulatory
Standards

Stage 1 30 days
past due

12 Month ECL Equivalent
to standard
assets as
Stage 2 31-90 Days Life time ECL
per RBI
Past Due
Stage 3 More than
90 Days
Past Due

Life time ECL

Equivalent to
NPA assets as
per RBI

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement:
The Company recognizes a financial liability in
its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Having
regards to the terms and structure of issuance,
Financial Liabilities are categorized as follows
(i) recognized at amortized costs (ii) recognized
at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) (iii)
where there is an embedded derivative as part of
the financial liability, such embedded derivative
is separated and recorded at fair value and the
remaining component is categorized as on
amortized costs.
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Measurement of ECL
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the financial asset. In that case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability. The financial
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
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Subsequent measurement:
(i)

(ii)

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

All financial liabilities of the Company
categorized as at amortized cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method.

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

All financial liabilities of the Company
categorized at fair value are subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and
loss statement.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly

(iii) For derivatives embedded in the liability,
the embedded derivative is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit and loss
and the liability is subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized
when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
h)

Derivative Financial Instruments

Level 3 —inputs that are unobservable for the asset or
liability
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the
financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization at the end of each reporting
period and discloses the same.
k)

i)

Derivatives Financial Contracts are initially recognized
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
i)

Offsetting Financial Instruments

ii)

Fair Value
The Company measures financial instruments at
fair value in accordance with the accounting policies
mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
i.

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii.

In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantages market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that
categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value.
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Functional and presentation currencies:
Items included in the financial statements are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company
operates (‘the functional currency’). i.e. in
Indian rupees (INR) and all values are rounded
off to nearest Rupees except where otherwise
indicated.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
j)

Functional Currency

l)

Transactions and balances
a.

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into functional currency using exchange
rates at the date of transaction.

b.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Securitization transaction
In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of securitization
where the risks and rewards are not transferred
completely, the assets are not derecognized and the
liability to Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) is shown
under borrowings. The gain arising on securitization is
amortized over the life of the securities issued by SPV.
Loss, if any, is recognized upfront in the Statement
of Profit and Loss for all types of Securitization
Transactions.
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n)

Revenue Recognition
i)

Income from financing activity:
Interest income is recognized using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) method for all financial
assets measured at amortized cost. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset, to its gross carrying amount. The
calculation of the effective interest rate includes
transaction costs and transaction income that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of a
financial asset.
For financial assets that are not Purchases
Originally Credit Impaired “POCI” but have
subsequently became credit-impaired (or
‘stage-3’), for which interest revenue is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to their
amortized cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss
provision).

ii)

Other revenue from operation:
Fee and commission income that are not integral
part of the effective interest rate on the financial
asset are recognized as the performance
obligation is are performed. There is no significant
financing component in the consideration.

iii)

Other Income:
Dividend income is recognized when the right to
receive income is established.
All other income is recognized on an accrual
basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate
realization / collection.

o)

Taxes on Income
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction

Deferred tax provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize
those temporary differences and losses.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
Current and deferred tax is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unclaimed tax
credits that are carried forward as deferred tax assets.
Presentation of current and deferred tax:
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and
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In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of assignment
with complete transfer of risks and rewards without
any retention of residual interest, gain arising on the
assignment is recorded upfront in the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the loan is derecognized from
the Statement of Assets and Liabilities immediately
on sale of the loan. However, in cases where the risks
and rewards are not transferred completely, then the
gain arising on the assignment is amortized over the
remaining life of the loan. Loss, if any, is recognized
upfront in the Statement of Profit and Loss for all types
of Assignment Transactions.

adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge
is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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deferred tax income/expense are recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income.
The Company offsets current tax assets and current
tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and where it intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are
offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right
to set off corresponding current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the Company.
p)

Provisions and Contingencies
The Company recognizes provisions when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event exists and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle such obligation and the amount of
such obligation can be reliably estimated.
If the effect of time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as
a finance cost.
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

q)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash
Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand,
bank balances, demand deposits with banks where
the original maturity is three months or less and other
short term highly liquid investments.

r)

Employee Benefits
I.

Defined contribution plans:
Defined contribution plans are post-employment
benefit plans (such as Provident Fund) under
which the Company pays fixed contributions
into benefit schemes and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions. The Company’s contributions to
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defined contribution plans are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year
to which they relate.
II.

Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity is post employment benefit and is in the
nature of Defined Benefit Plan. The present value
of the obligations under defined benefit plans is
determined based on actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The obligation is measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash flows using a discount
rate based on the market yield on government
securities of a maturity period equivalent to the
weighted average maturity profile of the defined
benefit obligations at the Balance Sheet date.
Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability or asset) and any change
in the effect of asset ceiling (if applicable) is
recognized in other comprehensive income and
is reflected in retained earnings and the same is
not eligible to be reclassified to profit or loss.
Defined benefit costs comprising current service
cost, past service cost and gains or losses on
settlements are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as employee benefits expense.
Interest cost implicit in defined benefit employee
cost is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss under finance cost. Gains or losses
on settlement of any defined benefit plan are
recognized when the settlement occurs. Past
service cost is recognized as expense at the
earlier of the plan amendment or curtailment
and when the Company recognises related
restructuring costs or termination benefits. In
case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan
assets is reduced from the gross obligation
under the defined benefit plans to recognize the
obligation on a net basis.
The liabilities for earned leave are not expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render
the related service. They are therefore measured
as the present value of the expected future
payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employee up to the end of reporting
period using the projected unit credit method and
is recognized in a similar manner as in the case of
defined benefit plans. The benefits are discounted
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Long term employee benefit costs comprising
current service cost and gains or losses on
curtailments and settlements, re-measurements
including actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
as employee benefit expenses. Interest cost
implicit in long term employee benefit cost is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under finance cost.
s)

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the
Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments of the Company. Revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole
and are not allocable to segments on reasonable
basis have been included under 'unallocated revenue /
expenses / assets / liabilities'. The Company operates
in a single business segment i.e. lending to members,
having similar risk and returns for the purpose of IND AS
108 on 'Operating Segments'. The Company operates
in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.

t)

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less
any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term.

Leases

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the
Statement of Profit and Loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist
of leases for buildings. The Company, at the inception
of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a
lease or not lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use

The Company has elected not to recognize right-ofuse assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
Company recognizes the lease payments associated
with these leases as anexpense over the lease term.
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of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a
consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts
existing and entered into on or after April 1, 2019.
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using the market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms
of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a
result of experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand
Balance with Banks
In Deposit Accounts ( Less than three months )
Cash and Cash Equivalents

62,30,899

1,75,11,463

2,64,53,62,100

1,43,54,64,342

1,89,92,15,860

33,40,34,661

4,55,08,08,859

1,78,70,10,465

Out of the Fixed Deposits shown above:
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Lien Marked *
Other deposits
Total

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

74,78,49,351

30,90,34,661

1,15,13,66,509

2,50,00,000

1,89,92,15,860

33,40,34,661

*Deposits have been placed with certain banks as cash collateral against term loans and working capital.
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Other Bank Balances
In Deposit Account (Maturity more than 3 months to 12 months)

1,23,65,30,101

60,36,36,953

In Deposit account (Maturity more than 12 months)

1,31,90,98,894

94,07,74,994

2,55,56,28,994

1,54,44,11,947

Total
Out of the Fixed Deposits shown above:

(Amount in `)
Particulars
Lien Marked*
Other deposits
Total

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

2,55,56,28,994

1,54,44,11,947

-

-

2,55,56,28,994

1,54,44,11,947

*Deposits have been placed with certain banks as cash collateral against term loans and working capital.
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per Ind AS 7 Cash flow statement)
Cash on hand
Balance with Banks

62,30,899

1,75,11,463

2,64,53,62,100

1,43,54,64,342

1,89,92,15,860

33,40,34,661

4,55,08,08,859

1,78,70,10,465

2,99,14,757

32,05,91,239

4,52,08,94,102

1,46,64,19,226

-In current accounts
In Fixed Deposit Accounts (Less than three months)
Less: Cash Credit / Overdraft facilities (Refer Note no 18)
Cash and cash equivalents (As per Ind AS-7 Cash flow statement) (A)
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NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Amount in `)
As at March 31, 2021

Fair Value Assets

Fair Value Liabilities

Nominal
Amount

Fair Value Assets

Fair Value Liabilities

4,31,60,885

9,86,93,322

9,86,93,322

5,56,20,000

8,69,85,006

8,69,85,006

4,31,60,885 9,86,93,322 9,86,93,322 5,56,20,000 8,69,85,006

8,69,85,006

Interest Rate Derivatives
Options Purchased *
Total

* Options invested are tied up to Secured Non Convertible Debentures of NIL - P.Y. (` 1,81,31,010/- ) and Unsecured Non
Convertible Debentures of ` 9,86,93,322/- P.Y. (` 6,88,53,996 /-) made as per the terms of issue and on maturity will be
transferred to the investors of the NCD.
NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES
(Amount in `)
Receivables

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Receivables considered good - Unsecured

8,48,45,567

3,05,99,607

Total - Gross

8,48,45,567

3,05,99,607

-

-

8,48,45,567

3,05,99,607

Trade Receivables

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total - Net

The Company follows simplified method of estimation of expected credit loss and hence information required under Part (C)
(i) is not furnished.
5.1 Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022
Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
months
1 year
3 years
2,05,67,053 6,42,78,514
-

Undisputed trade receivables –
considered good
Undisputed trade receivables –
which have significant increase
in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables –
credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables –
considered good
Disputed trade receivables –
which have significant increase
in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables –
credit impaired
Total
2,05,67,053 6,42,78,514

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

Total
8,48,45,567

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 8,48,45,567
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5.2 Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2021
Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 6 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
months
1 year
3 years
1,20,77,074 1,85,22,533
-

Undisputed trade receivables –
considered good
Undisputed trade receivables –
which have significant increase
in credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables –
credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables –
considered good
Disputed trade receivables –
which have significant increase
in credit risk
Disputed trade receivables –
credit impaired
Total
1,20,77,074 1,85,22,533

Total
3,05,99,607

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,05,99,607

NOTE 6. LOANS
Particulars
Loans
(A)
Term Loans
Inter Corporate Deposit to Holding Company
Unamortized Processing Fee
Advance from Customers
Accrued Interest but not due
Total (A) -Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance (including ECL on
Stage 3 of ` 1,30,12,60,240/- P.Y. (` 74,78,19,368/-)
Total (A) - Net
(B)
(i) Secured by tangible assets
Less: Impairment loss allowance (including ECL
on Stage 3 of `1,43,06,074/- P.Y. (` 26,01,963/-)
Total (i)
(ii) Unsecured
Less: Impairment loss allowance (including ECL on
Stage 3 of ` 1,28,69,54,166/- P.Y. (` 74,52,17,405/-)
Total (B)-Net
(C)
(I) Loans in India
(i) Public Sector
(ii) Others
Joint Liability Group
Small Business Loans
Loan Against Property
Inter Corporate Deposit to Holding Company
Less: Impairment loss allowance (including ECL on
Stage 3 of ` 1,30,12,60,240/- P.Y. (`74,78,19,368/-)
Total(C) (I)-Net

As at March 31, 2022
Amortized cost
Total

(Amount in `)
As at March 31, 2021
Amortized cost
Total

57,72,72,00,636 57,72,72,00,636 41,16,77,69,466
(48,04,81,142)
(48,04,81,142)
(33,18,02,606)
48,75,09,843
48,75,09,843
34,87,33,521
57,73,42,29,337 57,73,42,29,337 41,18,47,00,381
(2,54,79,61,492) (2,54,79,61,492) (1,55,44,39,437)

41,16,77,69,466
(33,18,02,606)
34,87,33,521
41,18,47,00,381
(1,55,44,39,437)

55,18,62,67,844 55,18,62,67,844 39,63,02,60,944

39,63,02,60,944

65,66,64,987
(2,58,52,110)

65,66,64,987
(2,58,52,110)

58,03,11,238
(1,19,14,961)

58,03,11,238
(1,19,14,961)

63,08,12,877
57,07,75,64,350
(2,52,21,09,383)

63,08,12,877
57,07,75,64,350
(2,52,21,09,383)

56,83,96,277
40,60,43,89,142
(1,54,25,24,476)

56,83,96,277
40,60,43,89,142
(1,54,25,24,476)

55,18,62,67,844 55,18,62,67,844 39,63,02,60,944

39,63,02,60,944

-

-

-

-

53,74,29,82,555
3,33,45,81,795
65,66,64,987
(2,54,79,61,492)

53,74,29,82,555
3,33,45,81,795
65,66,64,987
(2,54,79,61,492)

37,65,35,06,353
2,95,08,82,789
58,03,11,238
(1,55,44,39,437)

37,65,35,06,353
2,95,08,82,789
58,03,11,238
(1,55,44,39,437)

55,18,62,67,844 55,18,62,67,844 39,63,02,60,944

39,63,02,60,944
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(II) Loans outside India
Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (C) (II)- Net
Total C(I) and C(II)
6.1

Particulars
The loan receivables reflected above excludes microfinance loans assigned
to a third party on direct assignment in accordance with RBI Guidelines
which qualify for derecognition as per Ind AS 109. The amounts given are
net of minimum retention retained in the books:

6.2

Particulars
Provisions as per RBI Prudential Norms
Provisions as per ECL model under Ind AS 109
Amount recorded in the books

As at
March 31, 2022
4,47,58,19,217

As at
March 31, 2021
6,78,79,56,071

As at
March 31, 2022
(1,25,72,42,004)
(2,54,79,61,492)
(2,54,79,61,492)

As at
March 31, 2021
(57,63,48,773)
(1,55,44,39,437)
(1,55,44,39,437)

6.3 Reconciliation of impairment allowance on Loans*
Particulars
Impairment allowance as at 1 April 2020
Add: Impairment allowance provided in statement of Profit & Loss
Less: Impairment allowance Utilised for writing off Loss assets
Impairment allowance as at 31 March 2021
Add: Impairment allowance provided in statement of Profit & Loss
Less: Impairment allowance Utilised for writing off Loss assets
Impairment allowance as at 31 March 2022

Amount
701,375,414
1,281,763,931
(428,699,909)
1,554,439,437
2,311,895,792
(1,318,373,735)
2,547,961,493

* Reconciliation table does not include ECL provision on other receivables (Refer point no.9).
6.4 The Company has not given any loans or advances to directors, promoters, key managerial person and related parties
either repayable on demand or without any terms of repayment.
NOTE 7. INVESTMENTS
Particulars

(A)
Equity instruments
Alpha Microfinance Consultants Private
Limited ( 50,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each)
Total – Gross (A)
i)
Investments outside India
ii) Investments in India
Unquoted equity instruments in India
Quoted equity instruments in India
Total (B)
Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss (C)
Total- Net (D) = A-C

(Amount in `)
As at March 31, 2021
Total At Fair Value
Others*
Total
through profit
or loss

As at March 31, 2022
At Fair Value
Others*
through profit
or loss
-

5,00,000

5,00,000

-

5,00,000

5,00,000

-

5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000

5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000

-

5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000

5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000

-

-

* The Company has carried investment in equity shares at cost.
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(Amount in `)
As at March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2021
Amortized cost
Total Amortized cost
Total
55,18,62,67,844 55,18,62,67,844 39,63,02,60,944 39,63,02,60,944
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NOTE 8. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

Accrued interest on Fixed Deposits
Staff Advances
Security Deposits
Interest Strip Asset on Assignment
Other receivables

As at March 31, 2021

4,57,13,478

2,34,61,796

16,51,888

9,39,651

6,35,52,775

4,92,76,326

36,67,15,640

43,41,12,185

8,81,96,947

Less: Impairment loss allowance towards other
Receivable

(4,62,00,480)

Total

5,24,68,312
4,19,96,467

(5,24,68,312)

51,96,30,247

50,77,89,958

NOTE 9. OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Prepaid expenses

2,24,23,333

1,11,26,742

Vendor Advances

1,95,73,708

7,13,273

Other Assets

9,90,61,496

-

14,10,58,538

1,18,40,015

Total
NOTE 10. CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

(Amount in `)
Particulars
Advance Tax
TDS Receivables
Provision for Taxation
Total
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As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

34,70,57,740

34,68,09,958

4,29,67,238

4,29,67,238

(37,36,50,959)

(37,36,50,959)

1,63,74,019

1,61,26,237
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NOTE 11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:
(Charged) / Effect of
Recognized the Tax
in Profit or
Rate
Loss

Deferred
(Charged) /
Tax Taken Recognized in
to Balance
OCI
Sheet

(Amount in `)
Closing
balance

37,84,63,498

25,14,97,514

-

-

-

62,99,61,013

1,36,75,383

48,27,875

-

-

27,85,268

2,12,88,526

8,38,37,589

3,70,89,904

-

-

13,78,268
3,34,602
47,73,54,738 29,37,49,895

-

1,51,92,632
(2,83,38,037)
(86,93,764)

40,05,488
(3,73,28,337)
50,89,754

-

-

(10,92,57,355)
1,69,62,363
(1,39,813)
(1,41,530)
(13,12,36,337) (1,14,12,263)
34,61,18,402 28,23,37,632

-

-

12,09,27,493
27,85,268

17,12,870
77,38,89,902

-

1,91,98,120
(6,56,66,373)
(36,04,010)

(9,22,94,992)
(2,81,343)
- (14,26,48,600)
27,85,268 63,12,41,303

Significant components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:
Particulars

Deferred tax assets:
Provisions, allowances for
doubtful receivables*
Over Due Interest
Compensated absences and
retirement benefits
Unamortized Processing Fees
Income
Unrealized profit on
investments
Lease Liability
Total Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid expenses claimed
Unamortized Processing Fees
Expense
Interest Strip Assets
Income on Security Deposit
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Assets

Opening
balance

(Charged) / Effect of
Recognized the Tax
in Profit or
Rate
Loss

Deferred
(Charged) /
Tax Taken Recognized in
to Balance
OCI
Sheet

(Amount in `)
Closing
balance

16,97,54,792

20,87,08,706

-

-

-

37,84,63,498

93,27,713

35,70,806

-

-

7,76,865

1,36,75,383

4,69,11,955

3,69,25,634

-

-

-

8,38,37,589

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,17,61,204 (1,03,82,937)
23,77,55,664 23,88,22,210

-

-

7,76,865

13,78,268
47,73,54,738

(12,03,689)
(1,52,94,160)
(1,58,97,647)

1,63,96,321
(1,30,43,877)
72,03,883

-

-

-

1,51,92,632
(2,83,38,037)
(86,93,764)

(14,05,28,947)
3,12,71,592
(53,655)
(86,158)
(17,29,78,097)
4,17,41,761
6,47,77,566 28,05,63,970

-

-
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Deferred tax assets:
Provisions, allowances for
doubtful receivables
Compensated absences and
retirement benefits
Unamortized Processing Fees
Income
Lease Liability
Total Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid expenses claimed
Unamortized Processing Fees
Expense
Interest Strip Assets
Income on Security Deposit
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Assets

Opening
balance

- (10,92,57,355)
(1,39,813)
- (13,12,36,337)
7,76,865 34,61,18,403
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NOTE 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Cost or Valuation as at April 1, 2021

Land

Building

Total

1,14,905

4,92,545

6,07,450

Additions

-

-

-

Deductions /Adjustments during the year

-

-

-

1,14,905

4,92,545

6,07,450

-

75,934

75,934

As at March 31, 2022
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2021
Depreciation For the year

-

26,680

26,680

Deductions/Adjustments during the year

-

-

-

Up to March 31, 2022

-

1,02,614

1,02,614

1,14,905

3,89,931

5,04,836

Net Block as at March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)
Particulars
Cost or Valuation as at April 1, 2020

Land

Building

1,14,905

4,92,545

6,07,450

-

-

-

Additions
Deductions /Adjustments during the year
As at March 31, 2021

Total

-

-

-

1,14,905

4,92,545

6,07,450

Depreciation
As at April 1, 2020

-

49,255

49,255

Depreciation For the year

-

26,680

26,680

Up to March 31, 2021

-

75,934

75,934

1,14,905

4,16,611

5,31,516

Net Block as at March 31, 2021
i)

There are no direct expenses incurred towards above investment property.

ii)

The investment property is given as security against non - convertible debentures.

iii)

There are no contractual obligation existed as on March 31, 2022 in connection to purchase, construct or develop
investment property.

iv)

The title deed of the above property is held in the name of the Company.

v)

The Company does not have any Benami Property and no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 as amended in 2016 and Rules made thereunder.

vi)

The revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers
and Valuation) Rules, 2017.
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2,23,49,137

Additions

(1,56,579)

Deductions/Adjustments

5,50,34,657

Cost as at April 1, 2020

Net Block as at March 31, 2021
* Right to use represent Lease asset

Up to March 31, 2021

Deductions /Adjustments

Reclassification

Depreciation for the year

As at April 1, 2020

Depreciation

As at March 31, 2021

Deductions/Adjustments

Reclassification

73,23,386

5,20,43,203

(3,94,188)

82,78,548

4,41,58,842

5,93,66,589

(3,92,443)

47,24,375

Furniture &
Fixture

Particulars

Additions

79,35,926

Net Block as at March 31, 2022

7,35,99,788

2,17,13,164

Depreciation for the year

Up to March 31, 2022

5,20,43,203

8,15,35,713

As at April 1, 2021

Depreciation

As at March 31, 2022

(1,80,013)

5,93,66,589

Cost as at April 1, 2021

Deductions/Adjustments

Furniture &
Fixture

Particulars

NOTE 13. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1,13,07,197

1,83,49,836

(67,411)

50,66,931

1,33,50,316

2,96,57,032

(58,371)

40,10,536

2,57,04,868

Office
Equipment

1,32,03,579

2,49,73,363

(2,700)

66,26,227

1,83,49,836

3,81,76,942

(2,700)

85,22,610

2,96,57,032

Office
Equipment

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

39,15,723

70,32,844

(3,24,747)

14,10,120

59,47,471

1,09,48,567

(3,40,559)

18,34,890

94,54,236

Electrical
Equipment

55,91,418

92,17,582

(2,34,027)

24,18,765

70,32,844

1,48,08,999

(2,73,833)

41,34,265

1,09,48,567

Electrical
Equipment

3,79,91,736

10,63,38,407

(1,73,830)

3,52,24,298

7,12,87,940

14,43,30,143

(3,22,774)

2,26,39,214

12,20,13,703

Computers

6,23,33,592

13,97,31,276

(9,650)

3,34,02,520

10,63,38,407

20,20,64,869

(27,319)

5,77,62,045

14,43,30,143

Computers

Financial Statements

17,87,918

11,60,575

-

5,68,235

5,92,340

29,48,493

-

28,945

29,19,548

Air
Conditioner

19,38,251

17,84,139

6,23,564

11,60,575

37,22,390

-

7,73,897

29,48,493

Air
Conditioner

11,89,36,718

20,59,66,864

(9,60,175)

-

6,10,48,306

14,58,78,734

-

32,49,03,582

(11,14,146)

-

5,30,08,504

27,30,09,225

Total

(Amount in `)

15,86,15,022

28,16,87,465

(19,49,727)

7,76,70,328

20,59,66,864

-

44,03,02,487

(20,30,636)

11,74,29,541

32,49,03,582

Total

Corporate Overview

5,62,88,979

1,57,36,894

-

98,27,348

59,09,546

7,20,25,873

-

1,97,70,544

5,22,55,329

Right to Use*

6,73,77,250

2,83,71,245

-

1,26,34,351

1,57,36,894

9,57,48,495

-

2,37,22,621

7,20,25,873

Right to Use*

Statutory Reports

3,21,778

53,05,106

-

6,72,827

46,32,279

56,26,884

-

-

56,26,884

Vehicles

2,35,006

40,10,073

(15,46,771)

2,51,737

53,05,106

42,45,079

(15,46,771)

1,64,965

56,26,884

Vehicles

(Amount in `)

NOTES

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)
NOTE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN INTERNALLY GENERATED)
(Amount in `)
Software
76,22,317

Particulars
Cost as at April 1, 2021
Additions
Deductions /Adjustments during the year
As at March 31, 2022
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2021
Depreciation For the year
Reclassification
Deductions/Adjustments during the year
Up to March 31, 2022
Net Block as at March 31, 2022

76,22,317
65,85,030
9,04,896
74,89,926
1,32,391
(Amount in `)

Particulars

Software

Cost as at April 1, 2020

76,22,317

Additions

-

Deductions /Adjustments during the year

-

As at March 31, 2021

76,22,317

Depreciation
As at April 1, 2020

44,36,823

Depreciation For the year

21,48,207

Reclassification

-

Deductions/Adjustments during the year

-

Up to March 31, 2021

65,85,030

Net Block as at March 31, 2021

10,37,287

14.1 There are no intangible assets under development.
NOTE 15. TRADE PAYABLE
(Amount in `)
Particulars
(1)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Trade Payables
(i)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(Refer note 16.1) *

-

-

(ii)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises

8,06,03,416

8,60,14,864

8,06,03,416

8,60,14,864

Total

* Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management. There are no interest due or outstanding on the same.
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The following disclosure is made as per the requirement under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2016 (MSMED) on the basis of confirmations sought from suppliers on registration with the specified authority
under MSMED:
Particulars

(d)

(e)
(f)

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the year end
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the year end
Amount of interest paid and payments made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during the year
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Act

Financial Statements

(a)
(b)
(c)

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2022

15.2 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

-

-

-

-

(i)

MSME

-

(ii)

Others

8,06,03,416

-

-

-

8,06,03,416

-

-

-

-

-

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Total

-

-

-

-

-

8,06,03,416

-

-

-

8,06,03,416

As at March 31, 2021
Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Less than 1
year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

-

-

-

-

(i)

MSME

-

(ii)

Others

8,60,14,864

-

-

-

8,60,14,864

-

-

-

-

-

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
Total

-

-

-

-

-

8,60,14,864

-

-

-

8,60,14,864

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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15.1 Disclosure under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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NOTES

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)
NOTE 17. DEBT SECURITIES
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

At Amortized
Cost

Total

At Amortized
Cost

Total

4,68,80,00,000

4,68,80,00,000

7,94,00,00,000

7,94,00,00,000

-

-

(1,24,95,000)

(1,24,95,000)

Less : Unamortized Debenture Issue Expenses

(2,58,96,818)

(2,58,96,818)

(5,80,16,078)

(5,80,16,078)

Interest Accrued on Debt Securities

23,38,03,554

23,38,03,554

95,97,86,032

95,97,86,032

4,89,59,06,737

4,89,59,06,737

8,82,92,74,954

8,82,92,74,954

25,90,00,000

25,90,00,000

-

-

(68,22,967)

(68,22,967)

-

-

5,14,80,83,770

5,14,80,83,770

8,82,92,74,954

8,82,92,74,954

5,14,80,83,770

5,14,80,83,770

8,82,92,74,954

8,82,92,74,954

Secured Non Convertible Debentures
Less : Derivative Financial Liability

Others (Bonds/ Debenture etc.)
Commercial Paper
Less : Unexpired Discount on CP
Total
Debt Securities in India
Debt Securities outside India
Total

-

-

-

-

5,14,80,83,770

5,14,80,83,770

8,82,92,74,954

8,82,92,74,954

(a)

These Non convertible debentures are secured by way of first pari-passu charge on investment property, book debts,
loans and advances including receivables other than those specifically charged.

(b)

Non Convertible Debentures – Secured includes redeemable Non convertible debenture amounting to ` NIL - P.Y.
(` 14,00,00,000/-) which carries call option effective from July 13, 2018.

16.1 Details of commercial paper - Unsecured
Particulars
India Energy Exchange Limited
Total
(i)

Tenor

Interest Rate (%)

182 Days

7.50%

As at
March 31, 2022
25,90,00,000
25,90,00,000

As at
March 31, 2021
-

Details of commercial paper issued/repaid during the current year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars

Tenor

Discount Rate p.a Date of Transaction

India Energy Exchange Limited

182 Days

7.50%

Aug 12, 2021

India Energy Exchange Limited

182 Days

7.50%

Feb 11, 2022

Redemption Date
Feb 10, 2022

(ii) Details of commercial paper issued/repaid during the current year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars
SBI Caps (SLS trust)

Tenor
90

Discount Rate p.a Date of Transaction
7.60%

Sept 24, 2020

Redemption Date
Dec 23, 2020

16.2 The funds received through above borrowings have been utilized for the purpose, it is generated.
16.3 All the charges against the receivable has been registered with the ROC and there are no charges which are to be
registered as on March 31, 2022.
16.4 During the year, the Company has submitted quarterly statement of book debts with all the lenders and the value of book
debts statement submitted is as per the books of accounts.
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-

-

-

-

INE413U07079 - NCD

INE413U07079 - NCD

INE413U07053 - NCD

INE413U07061 - NCD

20,00,00,000

20,00,00,000

59,00,00,000

74,80,00,000

25,00,00,000

INE413U07103 - Canara
Bank - NCD

INE413U07178 - NCD

INE413U07178 - NCD

INE413U07129 - Indian
Bank - NCD

25,00,00,000

-

59,00,00,000

50,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

25,00,00,000

-

-

25,00,00,000

50,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

1,11,00,00,000

14,00,00,000

5,00,00,000

INE413U07137 - Bank of
Maharashtra - NCD

15,00,00,000

-

INE413U07079 - NCD

INE413U07103 - Bank of
Maharashtra - NCD

-

INE413U07079 - NCD

25,00,00,000

-

INE413U07087 - NCD

INE413U07103 - Bank of
India - NCD

5,00,00,000

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

INE413U07020 - NCD

Particulars

16.5 Debt securities

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

7/10/2020

3/30/2021

3/30/2021

6/5/2020

8/11/2020

6/5/2020

6/18/2020

5/24/2018

9/28/2017

7/10/2018

7/3/2018

6/19/2018

7/13/2018

7/13/2018

6/30/2016

Date of
borrowing

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7/10/2023

4/30/2024

4/30/2024

6/5/2023

2/11/2022

6/5/2023

6/5/2023

5/22/2020

12/28/2017

10/19/2021

10/19/2021

10/19/2021

10/19/2021

3/14/2022

6/29/2022

Repayment
start date

Security Offered

(Amount in `)

Financial Statements

7/10/2023 Rate of Interest - 11.50% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

Corporate Overview

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts ,Immovable
property

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts ,Immovable
property

Hypothecation of book debts ,Immovable
property

Hypothecation of book debts ,Immovable
property

Hypothecation of book debts ,Immovable
property

Hypothecation of book debts ,Immovable
property

Statutory Reports

4/30/2024 Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. principal repayable
on maturity.

4/30/2024 Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. principal repayable
on maturity.

6/5/2023 Rate of Interest - 11.50% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

2/11/2022 Rate of Interest - 10.00% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

6/5/2023 Rate of Interest - 11.50% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

6/5/2023 Rate of Interest - 11.50% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

5/22/2020 Rate of Interest - 10.80% p.a. , principal
repayable on maturity.

9/28/2020 Rate of Interest - 11.08% p.a. calculated
on a XIRR basis, principal repayable in 12
Quarterly instalments of `1,66,66,667/-

10/19/2021 Rate of Interest - 9.93% p.a. calculated on a
XIRR basis, principal repayable on maturity.

10/19/2021 Rate of Interest - 9.87% p.a. calculated on a
XIRR basis, principal repayable on maturity.

10/19/2021 Rate of Interest - 9.75% p.a. calculated on a
XIRR basis, principal repayable on maturity.

10/19/2021 Rate of Interest - 9.96% p.a. calculated on a
XIRR basis, principal repayable on maturity.

3/14/2022 Rate of Interest - 8.73% p.a. calculated on a
XIRR basis, principal repayable on maturity.

6/29/2022 Rate of Interest - 15.25% , principal repayable Hypothecation of book debts
on maturity.

Maturity date Terms of repayment
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15,00,00,000

INE413U07152 - UNIFIAIF - NCD

Total

INE413U07194 - NCD

INE413U07137 - Union
Bank of India - NCD

4,68,80,00,000

50,00,00,000

-

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

INE413U07145 - UNIFIAIF - NCD

INE413U07111 - Union
Bank of India - NCD

1,00,00,00,000

-

50,00,00,000

7,94,00,00,000

-

25,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

25,00,00,000

1,00,00,00,000

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

INE413U07111 - State
Bank of India - NCD

INE413U07137 - Punjab
National Bank - NCD

INE413U07160 - Northern
Arc - NCD

Particulars

10/26/2021

8/11/2020

6/26/2020

3/2/2021

3/2/2021

6/26/2020

8/11/2020

3/18/2021

Date of
borrowing

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

12/26/2022

2/11/2022

4/21/2023

1/2/2023

6/2/2022

4/21/2023

2/11/2022

3/18/2023

Repayment
start date

(Amount in `)

Hypothecation of book debts.

Security Offered

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

12/26/2022 Rate of Interest - 7.75.% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

Hypothecation of book debts.

2/11/2022 Rate of Interest - 10.% p.a. principal repayable Hypothecation of book debts.
on maturity.

4/21/2023 Rate of Interest - 11.50% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

1/2/2023 Rate of Interest - 10.20% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

6/2/2022 Rate of Interest - 10.20% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

4/21/2023 Rate of Interest - 11.50% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

2/11/2022 Rate of Interest - 10.% p.a. principal repayable Hypothecation of book debts.
on maturity.

3/18/2023 Rate of Interest - 10.50% p.a. principal
repayable on maturity.

Maturity date Terms of repayment

NOTE 17. BORROWINGS
(Amount in `)
At Amortized
Cost

Total

At Amortized
Cost

Total

-(i) From Banks

34,76,23,36,631

34,76,23,36,631

17,71,61,97,898

17,71,61,97,898

-(ii) From Other Parties

11,32,43,64,748

11,32,43,64,748

7,45,84,10,812

7,45,84,10,812

(24,68,99,902)

(24,68,99,902)

(8,23,83,093)

(8,23,83,093)

16,39,43,294

16,39,43,294

12,83,01,514

12,83,01,514

46,00,37,44,771 46,00,37,44,771 25,22,05,27,132

25,22,05,27,132

Term Loans

Unamortized Processing Fees
Interest Accrued on Borrowings
(b)

As at March 31, 2021

Other loans (specify nature)
Cash Credit / Overdraft Facilities

Total
Borrowings in India

2,99,14,757

32,05,91,239

32,05,91,239

46,03,36,59,529 46,03,36,59,529 25,54,11,18,371

25,54,11,18,371

46,03,36,59,529

46,03,36,59,529

25,54,11,18,371

-

-

-

-

46,03,36,59,529 46,03,36,59,529 25,54,11,18,371

25,54,11,18,371

Borrowings outside India
Total

2,99,14,757

25,54,11,18,371

17.1 Security on Term Loans from Banks and Others
(Amount in `)
Particulars
a)

Deposits with Banks & Others

b)

Deposits with NBFCs

Total

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

1,70,66,66,558

1,07,69,09,593

68,80,76,352

37,28,55,079

2,39,47,42,910

1,44,97,64,672

17.2 The funds received through above borrowings have been utilized for the purpose, it is generated.
17.3 All the charges against the receivable has been registered with the ROC and there are no charges which are to be
registered as on March 31, 2022.
17.4 During the year, the Company has submitted quarterly statement of book debts with all the lenders and the value of book
debts statement submitted is as per the books of accounts.
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1,431,818,182

Axis Bank Limited

Catholic Syrian Bank
Limited
DBS Bank Limited

Canara Bank

499,996,949
-

579,545,455

-

150,000,000

-

26,428,412

-

-

-

1,000,000,000

571,428,571

-

375,000,000

125,000,000

125,000,000

125,000,000

March 31, 2021

363,465,336

2,727,272,727

103,975,899

1,363,635,371

Bank of Maharashtra

Capital Small Finance
Bank Limited

1,434,897

Bank of Maharashtra

416,666,672

1,000,000,000

Bandhan Bank Limited

Bank of Baroda

1,000,000,000

Bandhan Bank Limited

714,227,143

204,545,450

Axis Bank Limited

Bandhan Bank Limited

68,181,820

Axis Bank Limited

-

-

Axis Bank Limited

Bandhan Bank Limited

-

March 31, 2022

Axis Bank Limited

Particulars

17.5 Loan from Banks

8/31/2021

1/29/2021

9/22/2021

3/31/2021

9/28/2021

3/28/2018

9/24/2021

2/18/2022

12/22/2021

3/26/2021

2/28/2020

12/9/2021

3/11/2021

3/11/2021

3/11/2020

10/24/2019

Loan taken

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

Repayment Maturity date
Terms of repayment
start date
1/24/2020
10/24/2021 Rate of Interest 3M MCLR+2.55% spread loan
repayable in 8 quarterly installments of ` 3,12,50,000/6/11/2020
3/11/2022 Rate of Interest 3M MCLR+2.65% spread, loan
repayable in 8 quarterly installments of ` 3,12,50,000/6/9/2021
3/9/2023 Rate of Interest 3M MCLR+2.95% spread loan
repayable in 22 monthly installments of ` 56,81,818/6/9/2021
3/9/2023 Rate of Interest 3M MCLR+2.95% spread loan
repayable in 22 monthly installments of ` 1,70,45,454/2/9/2022
11/9/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% Spread, loan repayable
in 22 monthly installments of ` 6,81,81,818.18
8/28/2020
2/28/2022 Rate of Interest 11.30% , loan repayable in 7 quarterly
installments of `14,28,57,143/10/1/2021
3/25/2023 Rate of Interest 11%, loan
repayable in 7 quarterly installments of `14,28,57,143/7/1/2022
12/22/2023 Rate of Interest 9.50%, loan
repayable in 7 quarterly installments of
`14,28,57,142.86/9/1/2022
2/18/2024 Rate of Interest 9.50%, loan
repayable in 7 Quarterly installments of
`14,28,57,142.86/10/31/2021
9/30/2024 Rate of Interest 7.35% (1Y MCLR)+ 1.00% Spread, loan
repayable in 36 monthly Installments of ` 1,38,88,888/4/30/2018
3/31/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.25%+0.95% spread, loan
repayable in 47 monthly installments of `20,84,000/- &
last instalment of `20,52,000/3/1/2022
9/1/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.00% Spread, loan repayable
in 10 quarterly installments of ` 1,36,36,36,37/- and last
installment of ` 1,36,36,36,30/5/1/2021
3/21/2024 Rate of Interest 11%, loan
repayable in 35 monthly installments of `48,85,983/- &
last instalment of `49,41,161/3/22/2022
9/22/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.00% spread, loan repayable
in 10 quarterly installments of ` 27,27,27,273/- and last
installment of ` 27,27,27,270/7/29/2021
1/29/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR, loan
repayable in 11 quarterly installments of `4,54,54,550/11/25/2021
9/1/2023 Rate of Interest 9.50%, loan
repayable in 22 Monthly installments of `3,40,90,909.09/-

and

and

and

and

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts

and

(Amount in `)
Security Offered

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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NOTES

181,799,197

Bank

-

600,000,000

400,000,000

34,090,909

31,818,182

102,352,941

61,176,471

252,352,941

976,470,588

51,764,706

ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

-

600,000,000

342,857,143

The Hongkong and
Shanghai
Banking
Corporation Limited
The Hongkong and
Shanghai
Banking
Corporation Limited
The Hongkong and
Shanghai
Banking
Corporation Limited
ICICI Bank Limited

-

-

-

-

290,000,000

86,363,636

115,909,091

500,000,000

-

718,750,000

HDFC Bank Limited

-

-

250,000,000

215,625,000

-

March 31, 2021

174,988,330

318,181,817

103,115,731

Bank

Bank

174,947,193

Credit

March 31, 2022

Federal Bank

Dhanlakshmi
Limited

Development
Bank
Dhanlakshmi
Limited
Dhanlakshmi
Limited

Particulars

8/31/2021

7/31/2021

10/26/2021

5/28/2021

3/31/2021

10/29/2020

8/31/2020

2/29/2020

3/15/2022

3/23/2022

3/19/2021

2/25/2022

12/30/2021

9/29/2021

3/12/2021

3/21/2020

9/28/2021

Loan taken

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

10/10/2021

9/10/2021

12/10/2021

7/10/2021

5/10/2021

1/10/2021

11/10/2020

5/10/2020

4/16/2022

4/23/2022

Financial Statements

Statutory Reports

3/10/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.55% spread, loan
repayable in 22 monthly installments of `4,54,54,545/8/10/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.55% spread, loan
repayable in 22 monthly installments of `68,18,181/10/10/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.55% spread, loan
repayable in 22 monthly installments of `45,45,454/9/10/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.45% spread, loan
repayable in 17 monthly installments of `1,70,58,823/11/10/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.45% spread, loan
repayable in 17 monthly installments of `-76,47,058.83/4/10/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% spread , loan repayable
in 17 monthly installments of ` 1,94,11,764.71/1/10/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% spread , loan repayable
in 17 monthly installments of ` 9,76,47,058.83/2/10/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% spread , loan repayable
in 17 monthly installments of ` 47,05,882.36/-

3/15/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.35% spread, loan repayable
in 24 monthly Installments of ` 1,66,66,666.67/-

3/23/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.35% spread, loan repayable
in 24 monthly Installments of ` 2,50,00,00,000/-

Repayment Maturity date
Terms of repayment
start date
1/4/2022
12/4/2023 Rate of Interest 3M MCLR + 0.00% spread, loan
repayable in 24 monthly installments of `83,33,333.33/6/21/2020
2/21/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.30% spread ,loan repayable
in 32 monthly installments of `93,75,000/7/12/2021
3/12/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.30% spread ,loan repayable
in 32 monthly installments of `75,75,758/- and last
installment of `75,75,744/1/29/2022
9/29/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.20% spread, loan repayable
in 32 monthly Installments of ` 1,06,06,061/- and last
installment of ` 1,06,06,048/1/29/2022
12/29/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.00% spread, loan
repayable in 24 monthly installments of `83,33,333.33/3/25/2022
2/25/2024 Rate of Interest 9.00%, loan
repayable in 24 monthly installments of `3,12,50,000/7/19/2021
3/19/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.60% spread, loan repayable
in 21 monthly installments of `2,85,71,428/-

(Amount in `)

of book debts and

of book debts and

of book debts and

of book debts and

of book debts and

of book debts and

of book debts and

of book debts and

Corporate Overview

Hypothecation
cash collateral
Hypothecation
cash collateral
Hypothecation
cash collateral
Hypothecation
cash collateral
Hypothecation
cash collateral
Hypothecation
cash collateral
Hypothecation
cash collateral
Hypothecation
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Security Offered
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207,981,173

249,844,999

999,998,805

999,999,840

500,000,000

Indian Bank

Indian Bank

Indian Bank

Indian Bank

Indian Overseas Bank

48,394,276

166,333,374

Indian Bank

Finance

-

Indian Bank

Jana Small
Bank Limited

-

875,000,000

IDFC First Bank Limited

Indian Bank

499,999,996

750,000,000

IDBI Bank Limited

IDFC First Bank Limited

916,666,666

IDBI Bank Limited

362,499,994

690,000,000

ICICI Bank Limited

IDFC First Bank Limited

440,000,000

ICICI Bank Limited

-

194,117,647

ICICI Bank Limited

IDFC First Bank Limited

164,705,882

March 31, 2022

ICICI Bank Limited

Particulars

500,000,000

-

-

-

416,666,667

374,966,334

333,270,743

83,233,196

83,233,196

-

1,000,000,000

1,087,499,998

157,676,055

-

-

-

-

-

-

March 31, 2021

3/15/2021

3/30/2022

3/30/2022

3/17/2022

6/4/2020

3/19/2020

12/18/2019

12/28/2018

10/26/2018

12/31/2021

3/18/2021

9/28/2020

2/26/2019

3/24/2022

10/30/2021

3/31/2022

2/23/2022

12/29/2021

11/30/2021

Loan taken

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

Repayment Maturity date
Terms of repayment
start date
1/10/2022
5/10/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% spread ,loan repayable
in 17 monthly installments of ` 1,17,64,705.89/2/10/2022
6/10/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% spread, loan repayable
in 17 monthly installments of ` 1,29,41,176.48/4/10/2022
8/10/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% spread, loan repayable
in 17 monthly installments of ` 2,58,82,352.95/6/10/2022
3/10/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.45% spread , loan repayable
in 22 monthly installments of ` 3,13,63,636.37/2/1/2022
10/29/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.15% spread, loan repayable
in 24 monthly installments of ` 4,16,66,667/7/1/2022
6/30/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.25% spread, loan repayable
in 24 monthly installments of `3,12,50,000/3/31/2019
2/28/2021 Rate of Interest 11.50%,loan repayable in 24 monthly
installments of `6,25,00,000/10/31/2020
9/28/2022 Rate of Interest 11%,loan repayable in 24 monthly
installments of `6,04,16,667/4/30/2021
3/18/2023 Rate of Interest 10.25%,loan repayable in 24 monthly
installments of `4,16,66,667/1/31/2022
12/31/2023 Rate of Interest 9.50%, loan repayable in 24 monthly
installments of ` 4,16,66,667/4/1/2019
12/31/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.90% spread, loan
repayable in 12 quarterly installments of `2,08,33,333/4/1/2019
2/28/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.90% spread, loan
repayable in 12 quarterly installments of `2,08,33,333/6/18/2020
3/18/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.65% spread, loan
repayable in 12 quarterly installments of `4,16,66,667/6/18/2020
3/18/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.65% spread, loan
repayable in 12 quarterly installments of `4,16,66,667/1/4/2021
9/4/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.75% spread, loan
repayable in 12 quarterly installments of `4,16,66,667/9/17/2022
3/17/2025 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 3.00% spread, loan repayable
in 11 quarterly installments of ` 9,09,09,090.91/9/30/2022
3/30/2025 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 3.00% spread, loan repayable
in 11 quarterly installments of ` 9,09,09,090.91/12/31/2022
9/30/2025 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.55% spread, loan repayable
in 12 quarterly installments of ` 4,16,66,666.67/5/3/2021
4/3/2023 Rate of Interest 11%, loan repayable in 23 equal monthly
installments of `2,33,03,920/- and last instalment of
`2,33,87,657/-

Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts.

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

and

(Amount in `)
Security Offered

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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-

499,994,540

437,496,993

Kotak Mahindra Bank

999,997,318

-

-

Bank

South Indian
Limited

Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited

Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited

12,664,856

Bank

South Indian
Limited

250,000,000

Ratankar Bank Limited

19,985,094

400,000,000

Ratankar Bank Limited

Bank

1,120,000,000
-

249,974,773

South Indian
Limited

212,113,567

84,845,697

250,000,000

125,000,000

-

25,985,165

39,996,000

-

700,000,000

83,208,494

41,679,207

-

-

8,335,840

-

Lakshmi Vilas Bank
Limited
Lakshmi Vilas Bank
Limited
Oriental
Bank
of
Commerce
(Punjab
National Bank)
Oriental
Bank
of
Commerce
(Punjab
National Bank)
Punjab and Sindh Bank
Punjab and Sindh Bank

-

-

March 31, 2021

401,402,441

March 31, 2022

Jana Small Finance
Bank Limited
Karnataka Bank Limited

Particulars

11/20/2020

1/28/2020

3/21/2022

3/23/2020

3/23/2020

6/24/2021

3/30/2021

3/31/2021
3/8/2022

12/31/2019

5/24/2019

3/21/2018

2/28/2018

12/29/2021

9/29/2021

7/31/2021

Loan taken

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

11/19/2021

4/28/2021

4/21/2022

4/23/2020

4/23/2020

10/24/2021

7/30/2021

5/3/2021
9/30/2022

3/31/2020

Financial Statements

Statutory Reports

11/19/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.90% spread, principal is
bullet repayment

5/3/2021 Rate of interest - 3.41%. Bullet Repayment
3/31/2025 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.50% spread, loan repayable
in 10 quarterly installments of ` 2,28,00,000/- and last
installment of ` 2,20,00,000/3/30/2023 Rate of Interest - 1Y MCLR + 1.35%, loan repayable in 21
monthly installments’ 3,33,33,333/6/24/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.35% spread, loan repayable
in 21 monthly installments of ` 1,66,66,666.67/4/23/2023 Rate of Interest - 12M MCLR i.e. 8.90% +2.30% spread,
loan repayable in 35 monthly installment of `16,67,000/and last installment of `16,55,000/4/23/2023 Rate of Interest - 12M MCLR i.e. 8.90% +2.30% spread,
loan repayable in 35 monthly installments of `11,11,111/and last installment of ` 11,15,000/3/21/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.35% spread, loan repayable
in 23 monthly installments of ` 4,17,00,000/- and last
installment of ` 4,09,00,000/4/28/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.90% spread, principal is
bullet repayment

12/31/2022 Rate of Interest 1Year MCLR+2.20% spread, loan
repayable in 33 monthly installments of `1,06,06,061/-

Repayment Maturity date
Terms of repayment
start date
8/3/2021
8/3/2024 Rate of Interest - 10.00%, loan repayable in 36 monthly
installments.
6/28/2022
12/28/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 0.95% spread, loan repayable
in 4 half-yearly installments of ` 12,50,00,000/1/29/2022
12/29/2023 Rate of Interest 9.45%, loan repayable in 24 monthly
installments of ` 2,08,33,333.33/7/31/2018
4/30/2021 Rate of Interest -1Y MCLR + 0.15% spread, loan
repayable in 12 quarterly installments of `41,66,667/9/30/2018
6/30/2021 Rate of Interest -1Year MCLR + 0.15% spread, loan
repayable in 12 quarterly installments of `2,08,33,333/8/29/2019
4/29/2022 Rate of Interest 1Year MCLR+1.75% spread, loan
repayable in 33 monthly installments of `75,75,758/-

(Amount in `)

Corporate Overview

Hypothecation of book debts
and Letter of Comfort from India
Infoline Finance Limited.
Hypothecation of book debts
and Letter of Comfort from India
Infoline Finance Limited.

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Cash Collateral
Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Security Offered
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-

125,000,000

58,772,000

Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited
Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited
Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited
State Bank (Mauritius)
Limited
State Bank (Mauritius)
Limited
State Bank (Mauritius)
Limited
State Bank (Mauritius)
Limited
State Bank (Mauritius)
Limited
State Bank Of India

1,900,000,000

-

3,000,000,000

State Bank Of India

State Bank Of India

State Bank Of India

319,991,557

-

-

-

300,000,000

State Bank of India

-

200,000,000

-

1,500,000,000

1,500,000,000

27,792,732

319,991,557

-

225,000,000

279,983,111

170,625,000

73,125,000

State Bank Of India

80,000,000

-

112,500,000

-

400,000,000

-

-

Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited

237,500,000

-

Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited

225,000,000

March 31, 2021

-

March 31, 2022

Standard
Chartered
Bank Limited

Particulars

2/11/2022

12/21/2020

10/28/2020

9/9/2018

3/13/2020

3/5/2020

3/24/2022

12/30/2021

4/28/2021

11/3/2020

1/14/2020

5/26/2021

12/29/2021

5/6/2021

3/4/2021

2/8/2021

12/8/2020

Loan taken

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

6/30/2022

4/27/2021

4/27/2021

11/30/2018

5/20/2020

5/20/2020

7/24/2022

6/30/2022

10/28/2021

2/3/2021

4/13/2020

5/26/2022

12/29/2022

5/6/2022

3/3/2022

2/7/2022

5/6/2022 Rate of Interest - 1Y MCLR principal repayable on
maturity.
12/29/2022 Rate of Interest - 1Y MCLR principal repayable on
maturity.
5/26/2022 Rate of Interest - 1Y MCLR principal repayable on
maturity.
4/13/2022 Rate of Interest - 12 M MCLR (i.e.11.25%), loan repayable
in 8 quarterly installments of `2,00,00,000/11/3/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR, loan repayable in 8 quarterly
installments of `2,43,75,000/7/28/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR loan repayable in 8 quarterly
installments of ` 3,75,00,000/3/30/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR loan repayable in 8 quarterly
installments of ` 2,50,00,000/4/24/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR loan repayable in 8 quarterly
installments of ` 3,75,00,000/3/5/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.10% spread, loan
repayable in 32 monthly installments of `1,50,00,000/and last installment of `.2,00,00,000 /3/5/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.10% spread, loan
repayable in 32 monthly installments of `1,50,00,000/and last installment of `2,00,00,000 /7/31/2021 Rate of Interest - 1Y MCLR+1.60% spread, loan repayable
in 32 monthly installments of `1,50,00,000 and last
instalment of `2,00,00,000 /9/27/2023 Rate of Interest 6 M MCLR+2.05% spread, loan
repayable in 30 monthly installments of `5,00,00,000 /9/27/2023 Rate of Interest 6 M MCLR+2.05% spread, loan
repayable in 30 monthly installments of `5,00,00,000 /1/31/2025 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.60% spread, loan repayable
in 32 monthly installments of ` 9,37,50,000/-

3/3/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.90% spread, principal is
bullet repayment

2/7/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.90% spread, principal is
bullet repayment

Repayment Maturity date
Terms of repayment
start date
12/7/2021
12/7/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.90% spread, principal is
bullet repayment

(Amount in `)

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts
and Letter of Comfort from India
Infoline Finance Limited.
Hypothecation of book debts
and Letter of Comfort from India
Infoline Finance Limited.
Hypothecation of book debts
and Letter of Comfort from India
Infoline Finance Limited.
Hypothecation of book debts

Security Offered

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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Total

34,762,336,631

275,000,000

330,434,783

Woori Bank

YES Bank Limited

114,285,714

Woori Bank

-

-

Woori Bank

YES Bank Limited

-

-

237,500,000

Utkarsh Small Finance
Bank
Woori Bank

YES Bank Limited

450,000,000

Union Bank

-

100,000,000

139,393,900

Union Bank

YES Bank Limited

-

-

Union Bank

17,716,197,898

575,000,000

23,750,000

34,375,000

50,000,000

-

342,857,143

16,666,666

-

200,000,000

35,356,524

145,780,770

62,447,437

Union Bank

-

394,829

-

500,000,000

-

March 31, 2021

170,055,222

March 31, 2022

UCO Bank

Suryoday
Small
Finance Bank Limited
UCO Bank

Particulars

2/1/2021

6/28/2019

5/21/2019

3/29/2019

12/24/2021

9/29/2020

6/19/2018

7/19/2019

10/29/2021

3/24/2022

2/26/2021

11/16/2018

9/30/2019

2/7/2022

3/2/2017

10/26/2021

Loan taken

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

3/1/2021

7/28/2019

6/21/2019

Financial Statements

Statutory Reports

2/1/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.9% spread, loan repayable in
24 monthly installments of `2,50,00,000/-

6/28/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.3% spread, loan repayable in
24 monthly installments of `39,58,333/-

5/21/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.3% spread, loan repayable in
24 monthly installments of `68,75,000/-

Repayment Maturity date
Terms of repayment
start date
12/5/2021
11/5/2023 Rate of Interest - RR+6.65% spread , loan repayable in 24
equal monthly installments.
5/26/2017
5/25/2021 Rate of Interest MCLR+3.15% spread, loan repayable in
45 monthly installments
6/30/2022
3/31/2025 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 2.15% spread, loan repayable
in 12 quarterly installments of ` 4,16,66,666.67/1/31/2020
1/31/2023 Rate of Interest - 1Y MCLR+1.90%+0.25% (T.P) spread
loan repayable in 36 monthly installments of `69,44,444
/2/28/2019
12/31/2019 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.40% spread, loan repayable
in 11 quarterly installments of `1,81,81,818 /5/26/2021
1/26/2024 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.85% spread, loan repayable
in 33 monthly installments of `60,60,606 /9/24/2022
3/31/2025 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.90% spread, loan repayable
in 10 quarterly installments of ` 4,09,00,000/- and last
installment of ` 4,10,00,000/11/29/2021
10/25/2023 Rate of Interest (364 Treasury bill) + 6.30% spread, loan
repayable in 24 monthly installments of ` 1,25,00,000/10/19/2019
7/19/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+2.35% spread, loan repayable
in 8 quarterly installments of `5,00,00,000 /9/30/2018
6/30/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+0.90% spread, loan repayable
in 12 quarterly installments of `1,66,66,667/3/26/2021
9/29/2022 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.65% spread, loan repayable
in 7 quarterly installments of `5,71,42,857/1/31/2021
11/30/2023 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+ 1.10% Spread, loan repayable
in 23 Monthly Installments of ` 1,65,21,739.13/4/29/2019
3/29/2021 Rate of Interest 1Y MCLR+1.3% spread, loan repayable in
24 monthly installments of `1,66,66,667/-

(Amount in `)

Corporate Overview

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts
and cash collateral and Letter
of Comfort from India Infoline
Finance Limited.
Hypothecation of book debts
and cash collateral and Letter
of Comfort from India Infoline
Finance Limited.
Hypothecation of book debts
and cash collateral and Letter
of Comfort from India Infoline
Finance Limited.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

Hypothecation of book debts.

Security Offered
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-

Hero Fin Corp Limited

-

101,282,215

500,000,000

500,000,000

750,000,000

Nabsamrudhi Finance Limited

Nabsamrudhi Finance Limited

Northern Arc

Northern Arc

NABARD

250,000,000

140,000,000

59,682,681

Nabkisan Finance Limited

-

131,250,000

1,050,000,000

-

-

146,470,797

74,984,589

-

200,000,000

-

125,000,012

133,333,333

500,000,000

130,619,869

40,834,611

-

93,749,494

-

March 31, 2021
100,000,000

333,320,000

Nabkisan Finance Limited

Maanaveeya Development &
Finance Private Limited
MAS Financial
Services Limited
MAS Financial
Services Limited
Nabkisan Finance Limited

2,306,767

250,000,000

Bajaj Finance Limited

Hero Fin Corp Limited

-

260,000,000

Aditya Birla Finance Limited

Bajaj Finance Limited

March 31, 2022
33,333,340

Particulars
Aditya Birla Finance Limited

17.6 Loan from others
Start date Repayment date Maturity date Terms of repayment
3/31/2021
5/1/2021
10/1/2022 Rate of Interest - LTRR(-6.85%), loan repayable in
18 Monthly instalments of `55,55,555.56
3/30/2022
5/1/2022
4/1/2024 Rate of Interest - LTRR(-7.85%), loan repayable in
24 Monthly instalments of `1,08,33,333.33
12/30/2019
12/30/2019
12/30/2021 Rate of Interest - HDFC 1Year MCLR +2.50%,
loan repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments
of `1,04,16,666.67
10/28/2021
12/2/2021
10/28/2023 HDFC’s 1Y MCLR+ 2.05% , loan repayable in 24
Monthly instalments of `1,25,00,000/4/16/2019
3/3/2019
5/3/2021 Rate of Interest - Herofincorp PLR(-0.85%)spread
loan repayable in 21 equated monthly instalment
of ` 1,32,75,146
2/13/2020
7/3/2020
5/3/2022 Rate of Interest - Herofincorp PLR(-1.40%)spread
loan repayable in 21 equated monthly instalment
of `1,05,68,961
3/26/2021
6/26/2021
3/26/2024 Rate of Interest - 11%, loan repayable in 12
Quarterly instalments of `4,16,66,666.67
7/1/2021
7/23/2021
7/1/2023 Rate of Interest - PLR (-4.75%) , loan repayable in
24 Monthly instalments of `83,33,332/12/31/2021
1/23/2022
12/25/2023 Rate of Interest - PLR (-4.75%) , loan repayable in
24 Monthly instalments of `62,50,000
9/19/2019
2/1/2020
8/1/2022 Rate of Interest - 12.00%, loan repayable in 11
Quarterly instalments of `2,00,00,000
3/1/2021
6/1/2021
3/1/2024 Rate of Interest - 10.40%, loan repayable in 12
Quarterly instalments of `1,66,66,666.67
2/25/2022
5/1/2022
2/1/2025 Rate of Interest - 9.90%, loan repayable in 12
Quarterly instalments of `2,08,33,333.33
10/31/2019
1/31/2020
10/31/2021 Rate of Interest - 11.25%, loan repayable in 8
Quarterly instalments of `2,50,00,000
2/9/2021
3/31/2021
2/29/2024 Rate of Interest - 10.65%, loan repayable in 36
Monthly instalments of `55,55,555.56
3/21/2024
4/25/2022
3/25/2024 Rate of Interest - 7.35% (3M FBLR) , loan
repayable in 24 Monthly instalments.
3/25/2024
4/25/2022
3/25/2024 Rate of Interest - 7.35% (3M FBLR) , loan
repayable in 24 Monthly instalments.
10/31/2019
1/31/2020
1/31/2025 Rate of Interest - 11.50%, loan repayable in 10
Half instalments of `15,00,00,000

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

Hypothecation of book debts.

(Amount in `)
Security Offered
Hypothecation of book debts.
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1,000,000,000

600,000,000

2,000,000,000

NABARD

NABARD

NABARD

133,333,348

-

-

600,000,000

350,000,000

1,500,000,000

11,324,364,748

SIDBI

SIDBI

SIDBI

SIDBI

SIDBI

Total

-

SIDBI

Hinduja Leyland Finance
Limited

6,523,052

1,080,000,000

NABARD

Hinduja Leyland Finance
Limited

300,000,000

March 31, 2022
325,000,000

NABARD

Particulars
NABARD

7,458,410,812

-

-

750,000,000

125,000,000

156,250,000

333,333,340

99,067,096

43,101,016

-

-

-

1,500,000,000

1,000,000,000

March 31, 2021
975,000,000

11/12/2021

11/12/2021

3/31/2021

9/25/2020

7/17/2020

12/10/2019

5/10/2022

1/10/2022

10/10/2021

11/10/2020

9/10/2020

12/10/2019

Hypothecation of book debts
and letter of comfort from Indian
Infoline Finance Limited
Hypothecation of book debts
and letter of comfort from Indian
Infoline Finance Limited
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral
Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

Hypothecation of book debts

Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.

(Amount in `)
Security Offered
Hypothecation of book debts and
cash collateral.
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11/10/2022 Rate of Interest 12.00%+loan repayable in 30
Monthly instalments of `1,66,66,666
4/10/2021 Rate of Interest RBI Repo rate+ 2.38%, loan
repayable in 8 Monthly instalments of `15,62,50,000
4/10/2021 Rate of Interest RBI Repo rate+ 2.38%%+loan
repayable in 6 Monthly instalments of `12,50,00,000
3/10/2024 Rate of Interest 10.50%+loan repayable in 30
Monthly instalments of `2,50,00,000
10/10/2022 Rate of Interest 6%+loan repayable in 10 Monthly
instalments of `5,00,00,000
10/10/2024 Rate of Interest 9.50 %+loan repayable in 30 Hypothecation of book debts and
Monthly instalments of `5,00,00,000
cash collateral

Start date Repayment date Maturity date Terms of repayment
6/8/2020
4/30/2021
4/30/2022 Rate of Interest -7% upto 30-04-2021 % 10.85%
post that, loan repayable in 4 Half yearly
instalments of `32,50,00,000
2/18/2021
1/31/2022
8/31/2022 Rate of Interest -7% upto 30-04-2021 % 8.10%
post that, loan repayable in 1st instalments
of `70,00,00,000 and 2nd instalment of
`30,00,00,000.
2/18/2021
6/30/2021
3/31/2026 Rate of Interest - 8.70%, loan repayable in 11
quarterly instalments of `10,50,00,000 and 8
quarterly instalments of `3,00,00,000
8/11/2021
5/31/2022
1/31/2023 Rate of Interest - 7.05% Till 31-05-2022 post
that 9.25%, loan repayable in 2 instalments of
`70,00,00,000 and `30,00,00,000 respectively.
12/17/2021
11/30/2022
6/30/2023 Rate of Interest - 7.10% Till 30-11-2022 post
that 9.35%, loan repayable in 2 instalments of
`42,00,00,000 and `18,00,00,000 respectively.
3/29/2022
6/30/2022
12/31/2026 Rate of Interest - 9.80%, loan repayable in 5
quarterly instalments of `16,00,00,000 and 6
quarterly instalments of `12,00,00,000 and 8
quarterly instalments of `6,00,00,000
5/31/2019
6/30/2019
5/28/2022 Rate of Interest - 11.30% HBLR+0.45%, loan
repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments of
`33,09,503
12/22/2018
1/27/2019
12/27/2021 HBLR +0.2%, loan repayable in 36 equal monthly
instalments of `1,15,41,602

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 18. SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES:
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2022
At Amortized
Cost

Total

At Amortized
Cost

Total

1,05,00,00,000

1,05,00,00,000

1,05,00,00,000

1,05,00,00,000

(4,31,60,885)

(4,31,60,885)

(4,31,60,885)

(4,31,60,885)

(72,39,115)

(72,39,115)

(1,07,62,318)

(1,07,62,318)

40,76,04,341

40,76,04,341

28,24,85,913

28,24,85,913

1,40,72,04,341

1,40,72,04,341

1,27,85,62,710

1,27,85,62,710

1,40,72,04,341

1,40,72,04,341

1,27,85,62,710

1,27,85,62,710

-

-

-

-

1,40,72,04,341

1,40,72,04,341

1,27,85,62,710

1,27,85,62,710

Unsecured Non convertible debentures
Less : Derivative Financial Liability
Less : Debenture Issue Expenses
Interest Accrued on Subordinated Liabilities
Total
Subordinated Liabilities in India
Subordinated Liabilities outside India
Total

As at March 31, 2021

18.1 Unsecured Non convertible Debentures includes debentures amounting to ` 11,00,00,000 /- P.Y. (` 11,00,00,000 /-) in
respect of which the Company is having a call option at the end of the 5th year from July 20, 2018.
18.2 The funds received through above borrowings have been utilized for the purpose, it is generated.
18.3 All the charges against the receivable has been registered with the ROC and there are no charges which are to be
registered as on March 31, 2022.
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67,15,00,000

11,00,00,000

INE413U08036 - NCD*

INE413U08028 - NCD*

11,00,00,000

67,15,00,000

21,85,00,000

5,00,00,000

March 31, 2021

* Represents Market Linked Debenture invested by various Parties

1,05,00,00,000 1,05,00,00,000

21,85,00,000

INE413U08036 - NCD*

Total

5,00,00,000

March 31, 2022

INE413U08010 - NCD

Particulars

18.4 Loan from Other Parties- Unsecured NCD

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7/20/2018

7/20/2018

7/20/2018

6/29/2016

Borrowing Date

Financial Statements

Statutory Reports

4/19/2024 Rate of Interest - 9.05% p.a. calculated on a XIRR basis,
principal repayable on maturity.

4/19/2024 Rate of Interest - 10.15% p.a. calculated on a XIRR basis,
principal repayable on maturity.

4/19/2024 Rate of Interest - 10.24% p.a. calculated on a XIRR basis,
principal repayable on maturity.

6/30/2022 Rate of Interest - 16.90% , principal repayable on maturity.

Maturity date Terms of repayment

(Amount in `)

Corporate Overview

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Security Offered

NOTES
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NOTE 19. LEASE LIABILITY
Particulars
Lease Liability
Total

As at
March 31, 2022
7,41,82,995
7,41,82,995

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021
6,17,65,249
6,17,65,249

As at
March 31, 2022
5,15,31,464
79,39,24,876
21,97,580
6,59,30,272
91,35,84,192

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021
5,40,44,436
1,49,67,05,940
21,78,944
1,90,05,517
2,76,24,892
1,59,95,59,729

As at
March 31, 2022
80,49,81,269
(70,70,39,690)
(4,28,25,567)
5,51,16,011

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021
63,59,92,803
(59,56,90,504)
(2,87,20,344)
1,15,81,955

As at
March 31, 2022
3,71,18,078
4,74,67,610
8,45,85,688

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021
2,38,35,376
3,05,01,017
5,43,36,393

As at
March 31, 2022
5,57,55,501
5,57,55,501

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021
3,78,79,578
3,78,79,578

NOTE 20. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars
Interest accrued but not due
Employee payables
Payable to assignee
Money held under trust
Payable / Refundable to Borrowers
Insurance payable
Total
NOTE 21. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Particulars
Provision for Taxation
Advance Tax
TDS Receivable
Total
NOTE 22. PROVISIONS:
Particulars
Leave encashment
Gratuity
Total
NOTE 23. OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Particulars
Statutory Dues Payable
Total
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(a) The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up share capital comprises of equity shares having a par value of
` 10/- as follows:
Particulars

As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares
Amount in `

Authorised Share Capital
(a) Equity Shares of ` 10 each
(b) Preference Shares of ` 10 each
(Out of 20,00,000 shares 1,45,000 are
Redeemable Non Convertible Preference
Shares of ` 10 each)
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:
Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid
(b

(Amount in `)
As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares
Amount in `

59,80,00,000
20,00,000

5,98,00,00,000
2,00,00,000

39,80,00,000
20,00,000

3,98,00,00,000
2,00,00,000

49,82,23,190

4,98,22,31,900

32,08,13,336

3,20,81,33,360

Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

No. of shares

Amount in `

No. of shares

Amount in `

At the beginning of the year

32,08,13,336

3,20,81,33,360

26,42,45,140

2,64,24,51,400

Add: Issued during the year

17,74,09,854

1,77,40,98,540

5,65,68,196

56,56,81,960

49,82,23,190

4,98,22,31,900

32,08,13,336

3,20,81,33,360

Outstanding at the end of the year
(c) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having at face value of ` 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amount exists
currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
(d) Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares and details of shares held by the Holding Company:
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

No. of shares

Amount in `

No. of shares

Amount in `

IIFL Finance Limited

37,07,40,413

74.41%

23,76,83,022

74.09%

IIFL Home Finance Limited

12,45,55,797

25.00%

8,02,03,334

25.00%

Equity shares of `10 each fully paid

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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(e) Details of Equity Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at March 31, 2022
Promoter Name

IIFL Finance Limited
Narayanaswamy Venkatesh
Shivaprakash Deviah

No. of shares at Changes during No. of shares at
the beginning
the year
the end of the
of the year
year

% of Total
shares

% change
during the year

23,76,83,022

13,30,57,391

37,07,40,413

74.41%

55.98%

13,35,840

-

13,35,840

0.27%

0.00%

3,45,000

-

3,45,000

0.07%

0.00%

No. of shares at Changes during No. of shares at
the beginning
the year
the end of the
of the year
year

% of Total
shares

% change
during the year

As at March 31, 2021
Promoter Name

IIFL Finance Limited
Narayanaswamy Venkatesh
Shivaprakash Deviah
(f)

26,13,18,160

2,36,35,138

28,49,53,298

88.82%

9.04%

13,35,840

-

13,35,840

0.42%

0.00%

3,45,000

-

3,45,000

0.11%

0.00%

During the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company had allotted equity shares
by converting its Optionally Convertible Preference Shares at a Face Value of ` 10 and at a premium of ` 1.43 on
January 20, 2017.

(g) The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders. The assessment of Capital level and
requirements are assessed having regard to long-and short term strategies of the Company and regulatory capital
requirements of its businesses and constituent entities.
(h) Statement of changes in equity share capital
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of the
reporting period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the year

Balance at the end of
the reporting period

As at March 31, 2022

3,20,81,33,360

1,77,40,98,540

4,98,22,31,900

As at March 31, 2021

2,64,24,51,400

56,56,81,960

3,20,81,33,360
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NOTE 25. OTHER EQUITY

Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of the
April 01, 2020
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Additions
Sub Total
Interim Dividend
Dividend Distribution
Tax
Balance at the end of
the March 31,2021

(Amount in `)
Total
Re-measurement
of Actuarial Gains
and Losses

(1,18,68,805)

3,28,69,35,933

-

-

-

50,60,44,363

(82,81,436)

49,77,62,927

1,22,59,01,416
2,54,27,10,360
2,54,27,10,360

10,12,09,000
56,84,13,977
56,84,13,977

25,01,556
25,01,556

(10,12,09,000)
1,91,71,24,624
1,91,71,24,624

(2,01,50,241)
(2,01,50,241)

1,22,59,01,416
5,01,06,00,276
5,01,06,00,276

Attributable to the Owners
Securities
Special Reserve
Capital
Retained
Premium Pursuant to Section
Reserve
Earnings
45 IC of Reserve
Bank of India Act,
1934*
98,24,90,906
33,39,57,977
25,01,556 1,13,97,11,009

(Amount in `)
Total
Re-measurement
of Actuarial Gains
and Losses

(95,58,954)

2,44,91,02,494

-

-

-

66,62,31,919

(23,09,851)

66,39,22,068

33,43,18,038
1,31,68,08,944
-

13,32,47,000
46,72,04,977
-

25,01,556
-

(13,32,47,000)
1,67,26,95,928
(16,04,06,667)
-

(1,18,68,805)

33,43,18,038
3,44,73,42,600
(16,04,06,667)
-

1,31,68,08,944

46,72,04,977

25,01,556

1,51,22,89,261

(1,18,68,805)

3,28,69,35,933

*As per section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company is required to create a reserve fund at a rate of
20% of the net profit after tax of the Company every year. Considering the profit after tax for the year ended March 31, 2022,
` 10,12,09,000 /- (P.Y. ` 13,32,47,000) being 20% of the profit after taxes for the year has been transferred from the Statement
of Profit and Loss to Special Reserve.
The Board of Directors have recommended a final dividend of ` 0.10 per equity share amounting to ` 4,98,22,319/- for the
FY 2021-22 on April 23, 2022 which is subject to the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the
Company to be held for the FY 2021-22.

Accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000515S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

G.Srinivas
Partner
M. No. 086761

N. Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN : 01018821

D. Shivaprakash
Whole-Time Director
DIN : 02216802

Anantha Kumar T
Chief Financial Officer

Manoranjan Biswal
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022
IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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Balance at the
beginning of the
April 01, 2021
Total Comprehensive
Income for the year
Additions
Sub Total
Interim Dividend
Balance at the end of
the March 31, 2022

Attributable to the Owners
Securities
Special Reserve
Capital
Retained
Premium Pursuant to Section
Reserve
Earnings
45 IC of Reserve
Bank of India Act,
1934*
1,31,68,08,944
46,72,04,977
25,01,556 1,51,22,89,261
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT MARCH 31, 2022
NOTE 26. INTEREST INCOME
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended March 31, 2022

Year Ended March 31, 2021

On Financial
On Financial
Interest On Financial
Assets
Assets
Income on
Assets
measured
measured at Financial Assets
measured
at fair value Amortized Cost classified at fair at fair value
through OCI
value through through OCI
profit or loss

On Financial
Interest
Assets
Income on
measured at Financial Assets
Amortized Cost classified at fair
value through
profit or loss

Interest on Loans

-

9,73,58,61,863

-

-

6,80,36,05,012

-

Interest on deposits
with Banks

-

10,64,62,829

-

-

8,23,18,551

-

Total

- 9,84,23,24,692

-

-

6,88,59,23,563

-

NOTE 27. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
Disaggregation of fee and commission income
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Income from Referral Fee

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

On Financial
Assets measured
at Amortized Cost

On Financial
Assets measured
at Amortized Cost

9,82,50,226

5,66,79,333

Income from Business Correspondents

7,21,33,412

-

Commission Income

8,24,89,451

4,31,38,910

Documentation Charges
Total

80,31,451

30,46,028

26,09,04,540

10,28,64,271

NOTE 28. NET GAIN ON DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS UNDER AMORTIZED COST CATEGORY
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Bad debts recovered
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

2,46,39,020

7,23,314

2,46,39,020

7,23,314

NOTE 29. OTHER INCOME
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Interest on Income tax refund
Profit on sale of investments
Miscellaneous Income
Total
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Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

-

12,17,574

7,01,55,716

3,05,96,802

12,51,789

6,96,026

7,14,07,505

3,25,10,402

NOTE 30. FINANCE COST
(Amount in `)
On Financial
liabilities
measured at fair
value through
profit or loss
Interest on Debt Securities

Year Ended March 31, 2021

On Financial
On Financial
liabilities
liabilities
measured at measured at fair
Amortized Cost
value through
profit or loss

On Financial
liabilities
measured at
Amortized Cost

5,83,559

78,28,14,638.21

15,19,872

61,66,08,561

29,99,083

13,36,87,957

27,50,204

12,21,89,167

Interest on Borrowings

-

2,77,59,35,734

-

1,57,29,61,381

Discount on Commercial Paper

-

1,18,50,416

-

4,13,88,750

Interest on subordinated liabilities

Interest Expense on Other borrowings

-

7,55,60,657

-

8,72,76,439

Amortization of Processing Fees

-

13,76,33,725

-

6,19,51,972

Interest on Lease Liability

-

68,11,339

-

61,60,885

Documentation Charges

-

25,75,188

-

20,93,997

Amortization of Debenture Issue Expenses

-

2,00,16,730

-

2,95,33,142

Other Borrowing Cost

-

5,56,162

-

12,06,153

35,82,642

3,94,74,42,545

42,70,076

2,54,13,70,446

Total

NOTE 31. NET LOSS ON DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS UNDER AMORTIZED COST CATEGORY
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Amortization of Interest only strip
Bad Debts Written off
Total

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

6,73,96,545

12,42,51,401

1,31,83,73,735

42,86,99,909

1,38,57,70,281

55,29,51,309

NOTE 32. IMPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended March 31, 2022
On Financial
instruments
measured at fair
value through
OCI

Year Ended March 31, 2021

On Financial
On Financial
instruments
instruments
measured at measured at fair
Amortized Cost
value through
OCI

On Financial
instruments
measured at
Amortized Cost

Loans - Expected Credit Loss

-

98,72,54,224

-

85,29,14,313

Total

-

98,72,54,224

-

85,29,14,313

NOTE 33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Salaries and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Leave Encashment

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

2,06,99,91,345

1,38,58,20,443

18,27,87,449

12,05,75,193

3,94,42,128

2,24,29,864

Gratuity

1,51,11,968

1,49,96,527

Staff Welfare Expenses

5,91,70,077

3,15,32,841

2,36,65,02,967

1,57,53,54,868

Total
IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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NOTE 34. OTHER EXPENSES
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Rent Expenses
Rates and Taxes
Exchange and statutory Charges
Marketing Expense
Bank Charges

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

12,78,26,690

9,42,87,858

73,55,672

50,00,768

-

33,69,000

2,25,922

1,99,519

9,51,80,081

7,47,31,307

Repairs and maintenance

1,11,23,897

86,00,528

Electricity

1,54,53,246

1,11,64,120

Communication Costs

3,94,74,478

2,69,74,156

Printing and stationery

2,81,72,317

1,80,62,963

Postage and courier

1,53,30,831

76,17,754

5,23,012

2,26,173

9,00,000

8,00,000

Advertisement and publicity
Payment to Auditors
(i)

As Auditors

(ii)

For taxation matters

-

1,00,000

(iii) For Certification Works

1,00,000

1,00,000

(iv) Out of pocket expenses

1,70,317

1,51,164

Legal and Professional charges

9,50,61,211

7,19,29,530

Software Charges/ Technology Cost

10,57,09,275

8,77,75,026

Travelling and conveyance

22,21,45,380

14,83,49,679

Miscellaneous Expenses *

7,59,18,968

5,09,62,249

84,06,71,298

61,04,01,795

Total

**Under this head, there is no expenditure which is in excess of 1% of revenue from operations or ` 10 lakhs, whichever is
higher.
33.1 Gratuity Abridged Disclosure Statement as per Indian Accounting Standard - 19 “Employee Benefits” for the period
April 01, 2021 - March 31, 2022
Details of defined benefit plan of gratuity are given below:
Particulars
i) Changes in the Present Value of Obligation (PVO)
PVO as at the beginning of the period
Interest Cost
Current service cost
Past service cost - (non vested benefits)
Past service cost - (vested benefits)
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions
Benefits paid
The Effect Of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation -Due to Change in Demographic
Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial
Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience
PVO as at the end of the year
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For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)
For the year ended
March 31, 2021

4,17,60,219
21,63,179
1,35,32,016
(6,54,772)
39,864

2,66,92,489
14,54,741
1,24,99,395
(6,47,079)
(40,50,563)

-65,97,578

34,20,437

1,64,72,360
6,67,15,288

23,90,799
4,17,60,219

Particulars
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the period
Interest Income

iii)

5,75,355

92,12,079

21,00,000

(6,54,772)

(6,47,079)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

(11,52,058)

(13,26,043)

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the period

1,92,47,678

1,12,59,202

(6,67,15,288)

(4,17,60,219)

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet and Related Analysis

Funded Status - Deficit
Net Liability recognized in the balance sheet

1,92,47,678

1,12,59,202

(4,74,67,610)

(3,05,01,017)

(4,74,67,610)

(3,05,01,017)

Net Interest Cost for Current Period
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period
Net Liability at the Beginning

4,17,60,219

2,66,92,489

(1,12,59,202)

(1,05,56,969)

3,05,01,017

1,61,35,520

Interest Cost

21,63,179

14,54,741

Interest Income

(5,83,227)

(5,75,355)

Net Interest Cost for the Period

15,79,952

8,79,386

1,35,32,016

1,24,99,395

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period
Current service cost
Net Interest Cost

15,79,952

8,79,386

Past Service Cost

-

-

Expected Contributions by the Employees

-

-

(Gains)/Losses on Curtailments And Settlements

-

-

Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

-

-

1,51,11,968

1,33,78,781

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period

99,14,646

17,60,673

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income

11,52,058

13,26,043

1,10,66,704

30,86,716

Discount Rate

5.66%

5.18%

Salary escalation rate

8.00%

8.50%

For service 4 years
and below: 35%p.a
For service 5 years
and above: 10% p.a

For service 4 years
and below: 35%p.a
For service 5 years
and above: 10% p.a

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Urban

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

5.66%

5.18%

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss
vi)

1,05,56,969

5,83,227

Benefits paid from the Fund

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period

v)

1,12,59,202

Contributions by the Employer

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period

iv)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)
For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Corporate Overview

Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for
Current Period

Change in Asset Ceiling

-

Net Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI
vii) Principal Actuarial Assumptions (Expressed as weighted averages)

Attrition rate

Mortality Rate

Expected rate of return on Plan Assets
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Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
6,67,15,288
(58,25,264)
68,59,955
66,32,113
(57,57,856)
(19,35,452)
21,40,285

(Amount in `)
For the year ended
March 31, 2021
4,17,60,219
(39,93,606)
47,44,404
45,40,822
(39,14,268)
(17,36,939)
19,46,541

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the Defined Benefit Obligation
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied
in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation as recognized in the balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
Notes
Gratuity is payable as per company’s scheme as detailed in the report.
Actuarial gains/losses are recognized in the period of occurrence under Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). All above
reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation.
Salary escalation & attrition rate are considered as advised by the entity; they appear to be in line with the industry
practice considering promotion and demand & supply of the employees.
Maturity Analysis of Benefit Payments is undiscounted cashflows considering future salary, attrition & death in respective
year for members as mentioned above.
Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employment Benefit Obligation.
Defined Benefit Plan
The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plan via provident fund of ` 18,24,00,308 (PY. ` 12,05,75,192) has
been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
33.2 Leave Encashment
Particulars
Projected Benefit obligation
Expense recognized in the Statement of P&L
Discount rate
Salary Escalation rate
Attrition rate

FY 2021-22
3,73,55,671
3,94,42,128
5.66%
8.00%
For service 4 years
and below: 35%p.a
For service 5 years
and above: 10% p.a
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Urban

Mortality rate During the Employment
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(Amount in `)
FY 2020-21
2,38,35,376
2,24,29,864
5.18%
8.50%
For service 4 years
and below: 35%p.a
For service 5 years
and above: 10% p.a
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08) Ultimate

NOTES

Corporate Overview

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)
33.3 Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company has recognized the following amounts as an expense and included in the Employee Benefit Expenses.
Particulars
Contribution to Provident fund

FY 2021-22

FY 2020-21

14,30,51,931

9,21,77,267

3,93,48,377

2,82,00,280

3,87,141

1,97,645

18,27,87,449

12,05,75,192

Contribution to ESIC
Contribution to Labor Welfare Fund
Total

Statutory Reports

(Amount in `)

NOTE 35. INCOME TAXES

(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

36,76,90,322

43,49,98,351

(19,47,155)

8,69,253

(28,23,37,633)

(28,05,63,971)

Current tax expense
Current year
Changes in estimates related to prior years
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Amounts recognized in OCI
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended March 31, 2022
Before tax

Year Ended March 31, 2021

Tax expense

Net of tax

Before tax

Tax expense

Net of tax

27,85,268

(82,81,436)

(30,86,716)

7,76,865

(23,09,851)

Items that will not be
reclassified to profit
or loss
Remeasurements of
defined benefit liability
(asset)

(1,10,66,704)

Reconciliaion of Effective Tax Rate:
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended
Year Ended
Year Ended
Year Ended
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
(Rate)
(Amount)
(Rate)
(Amount)

Profit before tax
Tax using the Bank’s domestic
tax rate

58,94,49,896
25.17%

14,83,52,750

82,15,35,552
25.17%

20,67,64,068

Tax effect of:
Non-deductible

1,62,68,143

40,94,366

1,05,57,643

26,57,148

Tax-exempt income

-

-

-

-

Changes in the Estimates Taxes
to previous year

-

(19,47,155)

-

8,69,253

10,53,806

2,65,222

1,21,76,074

30,64,474

(27,06,56,096)

(6,81,18,726)

(24,38,26,257)

(6,13,66,192)

30,16,041

7,59,077

1,31,71,021

33,14,883

Interest for deferment of
advance tax
Deductible Income
Changes in the Deferred Tax
Assets/ Liabilities
Total income tax expense

8,34,05,534
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NOTE 36. CAPITAL, OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AT BALANCE SHEET DATE:
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

16,953

-

-

-

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments(to the extent not provided for)
Claims against the Companynot acknowledged as debt*
Guarantee excluding finance guarantee
Other money for which a company is contingently liable
Total

-

-

16,953

-

-

-

Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
and not provided for
Other Commitments

-

Total

-

-

*Income Tax Demand
36.1 The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
36.2 As per the information available with us, the Company is not having any relationship with struck off Companies during
the year.
36.3 During the year, the Company has not entered into any merger/amalgamations. Accordingly, Compliance with approved
mergers is not applicable for the Company.
36.4 The Company does not have any undisclosed income that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
36.5 During the year, the Company has not invested / traded in crypto currency or in virtual currency.
NOTE 37. EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share [“EPS”] computed in accordance with INDAS 33 ‘Earnings per share”.
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Face value of equity shares in ` fully paid up

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

4,98,22,31,900

3,20,81,33,360

BASIC
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Total operations)

A

50,60,44,363

66,62,31,919

Profit after tax (after minority) as per Statement of Profit and Loss from
Continuing Operations

B

50,60,44,363

66,62,31,919

C

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding
Basic EPS (In `) (i) Total operations
(ii) Continuing operations

41,37,40,803

27,98,98,257

A/C

1.22

2.38

B/C

1.22

2.38

41,37,40,803

27,98,98,257

-

-

41,37,40,803

27,98,98,257

A/D

1.22

2.38

B/D

1.22

2.38

DILUTED
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for computation
of basic EPS
Add: Potential Equity Shares on Account conversion of Employees
Stock Options.
Weighted Average Number of Equity shares for computation of diluted
EPS
Diluted EPS (In `) (i) Total operations
(ii) Continuing operations
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NOTE 38. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD – 24 “RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE”
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Nature of Relationship

Name of the Related Party

Holding Company

IIFL Finance Limited*

Group Company

IIFL Home Finance Limited

Others

IIFL Management Services Limited

Statutory Reports

(a) Name of the related parties with whom transactions have been entered during the year and description of relationship:
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IIFL Investment Adviser And Trustee Services Limited
IIFL Facilities Services Limited
IIFL Wealth Management Limited
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Erstwhile IIFL Wealth Finance Limited)
Mr. N. Venkatesh, Managing Director

Financial Statements

Key Management Personnel

Mr. D. Shivaprakash, Whole-time Director
Mr. Anantha Kumar T, Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Manoranjan Biswal, Company Secretary wef July 21, 2021
Mr. Pramod Kulkarni, Company Secretary upto July 21, 2021
Mr. Shreyas D, Company Secretary upto August 14, 2020
Non Executive Director

Mr..Sumit Bali, Non Executive Director upto June 23, 2020
Mr. Monu Ratra, Non Executive Director wef June 24, 2020

Independent Directors

Mr. A. Vikraman, Independent Director
Mr. A. Ramanathan, Independent Director
Ms. Malini B Eden, Women Director
Mr. Badrinarayan Seshadri, Independent Director

(b) Disclosure of Transactions and Outstanding Balances with Related Parties
(Amount in `)
Nature of Transaction

FY 2021-22

FY2020-21

7,21,33,412

-

7,45,06,849

6,76,97,260

-

1,95,61,644

Service Fee on Business Correspondence- Income
IIFL Finance Limited
Interest Expense
IIFL Finance Limited
IIFL Home Finance Limited
IIFL Facilities Services Limited

6,260

-

1,96,65,418

-

IIFL Finance Limited

-

4,36,50,000

IIFL Facilities Services Limited

-

20,13,699

IIFL Finance Limited

-

11,88,41,511

IIFL Home Finance Limited

-

4,01,01,667

67,54,853

82,78,290

65,71,715

-

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Erstwhile IIFL Wealth Finance Limited)
Interest Income

Dividend Paid

Arranger Fee Expenses
IIFL Wealth Management Limited
Reimbursement of Expenses
IIFL Finance Limited
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(Amount in `)
Nature of Transaction

FY 2021-22

FY2020-21

Inter Corporate Deposit Received from IIFL Finance Limited

5,50,00,00,000

9,48,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit Repaid to IIFL Finance Limited

5,50,00,00,000

9,48,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit Received from IIFL Home Finance Limited

-

1,00,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit Repaid to IIFL Home Finance Limited

-

1,00,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit Given to IIFL Finance Limited

-

3,45,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit Repaid by IIFL Finance Limited

-

3,95,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit Given to IIFL Facilities Services Limited

-

1,00,00,00,000

Inter Corporate Deposit Repaid by IIFL Facilities Services Limited

-

1,00,00,00,000

Loans and Advances Received

Loans and Advances Given

Share Capital and Securities Premium
Equity Share Capital Received
IIFL Finance Limited

1,33,05,73,910

42,42,61,470

44,35,24,630

14,14,20,490

IIFL Finance Limited

91,94,26,065

25,07,38,529

IIFL Home Finance Limited

30,64,75,350

8,35,79,510

IIFL Home Finance Limited
Securities Premium

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
Sitting Fees paid
Short term Employee benefit

10,42,668

5,43,546

2,78,31,433

2,00,35,987

-

91,47,510

Outstanding Balance as on March 31 ,2022
IIFL Wealth Management Limited
Sundry Receivable - IIFL Finance Limited (after TDS deduction)

2,50,30,552

Market Linked Debentures
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Erstwhile IIFL Wealth Finance Limited)

26,70,00,000

-

1,96,65,418

-

ICD / Loan Portfolio outstanding (Payable) / Receivable
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Erstwhile IIFL Wealth Finance Limited)

Disclosures of Transactions Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015:
Name of the Entity

As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding Maximum Amount
Amount outstanding during
the year
3,50,00,00,000

IIFL Finance Limited
Name of the Entity

As at March 31, 2021
Outstanding Maximum Amount
Amount outstanding during
the year
3,70,00,00,000
1,00,00,00,000

IIFL Finance Limited
IIFL Home Finance Limited
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March 31, 2022

Current

(Amount in `)
Non Current

4,55,08,08,859
2,55,56,28,994
9,86,93,322

4,55,08,08,859
1,23,65,30,101
-

1,31,90,98,894
9,86,93,322

8,48,45,567
55,18,62,67,844
5,00,000
51,96,30,247

8,48,45,567
35,12,95,58,597
14,76,61,706

20,05,67,09,247
5,00,000
37,19,68,541

14,10,58,538
1,63,74,019
63,12,41,303
5,04,836
9,12,37,772
6,73,77,250
1,32,391
63,94,43,00,942

13,63,20,714
1,63,74,019
41,30,20,99,563

47,37,824
63,12,41,303
5,04,836
9,12,37,772
6,73,77,250
1,32,391
22,64,22,01,379

9,86,93,322

-

9,86,93,322

8,06,03,416

8,06,03,416

-

5,14,80,83,770
46,03,36,59,529
1,40,72,04,341
7,41,82,995
91,35,84,192

1,69,73,47,299
25,35,14,05,934
4,64,76,797
1,13,62,205
91,35,84,192

3,45,07,36,471
20,68,22,53,595
1,36,07,27,545
6,28,20,790
-

5,51,16,011
8,45,85,688
5,57,55,501

5,51,16,011
6,52,03,599
5,57,55,501

1,93,82,089
-

4,98,22,31,900
5,01,06,00,276
63,94,43,00,942

28,27,68,54,954

4,98,22,31,900
5,01,06,00,276
35,66,74,45,988

-
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Particulars
ASSETS
1
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above
(c) Derivative financial instruments
(d) Receivables
Trade Receivables
(e) Loans
(f) Investments
(g) Other Financial assets
2
Non-financial Assets
(a) Other non-financial assets
(b) Current tax assets (Net)
(c) Deferred tax Assets (Net)
(d) Investment Property
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
(f) Right to Use
(g) Capital work-in-progress
(h) Other Intangible assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1
Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Payables
(I) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(c) Debt Securities
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
(e) Subordinated Liabilities
(f) Lease Liability
(g) Other financial liabilities
2
Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net)
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-financial liabilities
3
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity
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Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021
Particulars
ASSETS
1
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above
(c) Derivative financial instruments
(d) Receivables
Trade Receivables
(e) Loans
(f) Investments
(g) Other Financial assets
2
Non-financial Assets
(a) Other non-financial assets
(b) Current tax assets (Net)
(c) Deferred tax Assets (Net)
(d) Investment Property
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
(f) Right to Use
(g) Capital work-in-progress
(h) Other Intangible assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1
Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments
(b) Payables
(I) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(c) Debt Securities
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
(e) Subordinated Liabilities
(f) Lease Liability
(g) Other financial liabilities
2
Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net)
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-financial liabilities
3
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity
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(Amount in `)
Non Current

March 31, 2021

Current

1,78,70,10,465
1,54,44,11,947
8,69,85,006

1,78,70,10,465
60,36,36,953

3,05,99,607
39,63,02,60,944
5,00,000
50,77,89,958

3,05,99,607
23,50,53,65,178
42,34,00,176

1,18,40,015
1,61,26,237
34,61,18,403
5,31,516
6,26,47,738
5,62,88,979
10,37,287
44,08,21,48,102

1,16,29,668
1,61,26,237
26,37,77,68,285

2,10,347
34,61,18,403
5,31,516
6,26,47,738
5,62,88,979
10,37,287
17,70,43,79,818

8,69,85,006

-

8,69,85,006

-

-

-

8,60,14,864

8,60,14,864

-

8,82,92,74,954
25,54,11,18,371
1,27,85,62,710
6,17,65,249
1,59,95,59,729

5,41,68,14,266
14,08,33,74,325
93,43,814
1,59,95,59,729

3,41,24,60,688
11,45,77,44,046
1,27,85,62,710
5,24,21,435
-

1,15,81,955
5,43,36,393
3,78,79,578

1,15,81,955
3,58,38,801
3,78,79,578

1,84,97,592
-

3,20,81,33,360
3,28,69,35,933
44,08,21,48,102

21,28,04,07,332

3,20,81,33,360
3,28,69,35,933
22,80,17,40,770
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94,07,74,994
8,69,85,006
16,12,48,95,766
5,00,000
8,43,89,782

Credit Risk
Credit Risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Company. The Company. has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The exposure is
continuously monitored.
Trade Receivables and Other financial assets
Credit risk with respect to trade receivables and other financial assets are extremely low. Trade receivables are primarily
from other services provided, historically company has not suffered any defaults. Based on the credit assessment the
historical trend of low default is expected to continue. No provision for expected credit loss has been Trade Receivables
and Other financial assets.
Loans
The following table sets out information about credit quality of loan assets measured at amortized cost based on Number
of Days past due information. The amount represents gross carrying amount.
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

52,30,64,90,123

38,85,05,96,071

Stage-2 (30-90 Days)

3,64,62,44,127

1,56,93,54,027

Stage-3 (More than 90 Days)

1,77,44,66,385

74,78,19,368

57,72,72,00,635

41,16,77,69,466

Gross Carrying value of loan Assets
Stage-1 (Less than 30 Days)

Total Gross Carrying value on Reporting Date
Credit Quality

Financial services business has a comprehensive framework for monitoring credit quality of its retail and other loans
based on days past due monitoring. Repayment by individual customers and portfolio is tracked regularly and required
steps for recovery is taken through follow ups and legal recourse.
Inputs considered in the ECL model
In assessing the impairment of loans assets under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the loan assets have been
segmented into three stages.
The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial instrument. The differences in accounting
between stages relate to the recognition of expected credit losses and the calculation and presentation of interest
revenue.
The Company categorises loan assets into stages based on the Days Past Due status:
i)

Stage 1: 30 Days Past Due

ii)

31-90 Days Past Due

iii)

More than 90 Days Past Due

Exposure at default (EAD) is the maximum exposure as on the date of provision which includes both principal outstanding
and interest. Interest is the total of interest outstanding and interest accrued but not due.
Loss given default (LGD) estimates the normalized loss which company incurs post customer default. It is computed
through recovery observed in delinquent accounts over a period of time. It is always expressed as % of outstanding
amount and not in count. LGD is common for all three stages and is based on loss in past portfolio.
Effective Interest rate (EIR) is the rate that discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of financial
instrument.
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Estimation Technique
Probability of default (PD) is the likelihood that customer will default on loan in time horizon. It is computed on count
basis .The reason is customer defaulting on loan is captured by its count and there is no relationship with his outstanding
dues. Calculated PD is on Stage 1 and Stage 2 on portfolio basis and for Stage 3 PD is 100%.
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial recognition, the financial services
business considers both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the business historical
experience, including forward-looking information. The financial services business considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost and effort.
The financial services business uses the number of days past due to classify a financial instrument in low credit risk
category and to determine significant increase in credit risk in retail. As a backstop, the financial services business
considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 days past due.
Impairment loss
The expected credit loss allowance provision is determined as follows:
(Amount in `)
Particulars
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2022
Expected Credit Loss

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

52,30,64,90,123

3,64,62,44,127

1,77,44,66,385

57,72,72,00,635

1,08,85,98,877

15,81,02,375

1,30,12,60,240

2,54,79,61,492

2.08%

4.34%

73.33%

4.41%

51,21,78,91,246

3,48,81,41,751

47,32,06,145

55,17,92,39,142

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

38,85,05,96,071

1,56,93,54,027

74,78,19,368

41,16,77,69,466

74,06,60,848

6,59,59,220

74,78,19,368

1,55,44,39,436

1.91%

4.20%

100.00%

3.78%

38,10,99,35,222

1,50,33,94,807

-

39,61,33,30,029

Expected Credit Loss Rate
Net of Impairment Provision

(Amount in `)
Particulars
Gross Balance as at March 31, 2021
Expected Credit Loss
Expected Credit Loss Rate
Net of Impairment Provision
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61,66,11,395

(3,86,53,722)

(2,53,26,016)

73,53,00,056

Stage same in both years- change in
provisioning

Movement of stages due to asset
reclassification

Closing ECL March 31, 2021

(16,39,22,106)

34,65,90,505

Principal

"Incremental loans disbursed in
FY 2020-21"

Loans closed/written off during the year

67,37,660

(3,28,242)

(13,93,263)

(21,48,093)

52,46,465

53,60,793

Interest

53,60,793

(3,02,068)

(8,78,449)

(14,84,512)

42,57,970

37,67,853

Interest

Financial Assets where loss
allowance measured at
12-month ECL

1,08,18,61,217

Opening ECL March 01, 2020

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Closing ECL March 31, 2022

(4,67,09,334)

(17,55,99,431)

Stage same in both years- change in
provisioning

Movement of stages due to asset
reclassification

(30,81,09,391)

87,69,79,317

Loans closed/written off during the year

73,53,00,056

Incremental loans disbursed in
FY 2021-22

Principal

Financial Assets where loss
allowance measured at
12-month ECL

Opening ECL April 01, 2021

Reconciliation of loss allowance

6,29,05,844

3,21,06,171

(48,285)

(25,90,740)

2,56,24,740

78,13,957

Principal

46,22,94,020

(4,31,37,077)

(59,34,90,302)

72,77,74,231

74,78,19,369

Principal

74,78,19,369

62,69,74,910

(9,68,776)

(32,60,79,204)

10,47,71,888

34,31,20,550

Principal

46,09,39,167

(21,91,24,210)

(93,30,93,411)

1,68,11,46,777

63,37,55,065

(3,96,70,783)

(49,25,92,050)

74,70,08,023

69,75,25,012

Principal

Statutory Reports

84,14,170

13,75,274

(8,74,811)

(14,95,710)

55,59,016

38,50,402

Others

(Amount in `)

1,20,67,902

6,36,951

(14,42,267)

(39,47,000)

84,06,049

84,14,169

Others

(Amount in `)

Corporate Overview

- 1,54,60,25,267

-

-

-

-

-

Interest

Total

- 2,53,58,93,592

Financial assets for which credit
risk has increased significantly
and credit impaired

Financial Statements

30,53,377

16,77,342

3,638

(11,198)

13,01,046

82,548

Interest

Principal

Total

- 1,54,60,25,268

Interest

Financial assets for which credit
risk has increased significantly
and credit impaired

53,30,242 1,30,12,60,240

9,65,193

(49,004)

(17,98,907)

31,59,584

30,53,377

Interest

Financial assets for which
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit not
impaired

15,27,72,134

4,53,54,481

(3,87,703)

(3,14,93,717)

7,63,93,229

6,29,05,844

Principal

Financial assets for which
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit not
impaired

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance by class of financial instrument.
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(4,20,27,74,069)

(1,65,50,90,484)

38,85,05,96,071

Movement of stages due to asset
reclassification

Closing EAD March 31, 2021

(10,85,18,03,625)

Stage same in both years- change in
provisioning

Loans closed/written off during the year

32,62,88,81,799

Incremental loans disbursed in
FY 2020-21

Principal

22,93,13,82,448

Opening EAD March 01, 2020

Principal

1,05,40,98,467

(1,48,06,604)

(78,56,94,771)

1,82,32,93,007

Interest

Principal

78,46,80,586

(23,28,506)

(7,69,83,178)

63,24,25,459

23,15,59,667

27,37,58,782 1,56,93,54,027

(1,95,56,402)

(7,02,86,294)

(9,79,33,214)

21,91,77,217

24,23,57,475

63,64,20,856

(87,14,466)

(59,34,90,302)

99,24,30,929

74,78,19,368

Principal

Interest

7,49,74,739

4,12,02,337

70,823

(3,24,274)

3,15,96,903

24,28,949

74,78,19,368

62,69,74,910

(9,68,776)

(32,60,79,204)

10,47,71,888

34,31,20,550

Principal

(83,67,05,039)

(10,16,66,50,987)

(17,63,96,13,255)

45,20,24,00,450

33,36,60,79,145

(24,34,34,987)

(4,20,60,71,350)

- 41,16,77,69,466

-

-

- (11,25,48,66,007)

-

- 23,50,60,62,665

Principal

Total

- 57,72,72,00,635

Interest

Financial assets for which
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit
impaired

Principal

Total

- 41,16,77,69,466

Interest

Financial assets for which
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit
impaired

13,12,66,237 1,77,44,66,385

2,38,42,885

(11,89,866)

(4,41,71,624)

7,78,10,102

7,49,74,739

Financial assets for which
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit not
impaired

35,62,43,606 3,64,62,44,127

(1,65,91,603)

(6,86,26,158)

(10,96,96,316)

27,73,98,901

Interest

Financial assets for which
credit risk has increased
significantly and credit not
impaired

27,37,58,782 1,56,93,54,027

Interest

Financial Assets where loss
allowance measured at
12-month ECL

52,30,64,90,123

Closing EAD March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of Exposure at default

(2,52,72,24,363)

(10,14,31,29,917)

Movement of stages due to asset
reclassification

(16,26,04,28,182)

Stage same in both years- change in
provisioning

42,38,66,76,514

Loans closed/written off during the year

38,85,05,96,071

Opening EAD April 01, 2021

Principal

Financial Assets where loss
allowance measured at
12-month ECL

Incremental loans disbursed in
FY 2021-22

Reconciliation of Exposure at default

34,87,33,521

2,16,45,935

(7,02,15,471)

(9,82,57,487)

25,07,74,120

24,47,86,424

Others

(Amount in `)

48,75,09,843

72,51,282

(6,98,16,023)

(15,38,67,940)

35,52,09,003

34,87,33,521

Others

(Amount in `)

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the exposure at default (EAD) (Principal & Interest) by class of financial instrument.
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Liquidity risk
(i)

Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

3,27,62,28,000

86,50,00,000

-

-

3,27,62,28,000

86,50,00,000

Floating rate
Expiring within one year
Expiring beyond one year
Total

Statutory Reports

(Amount in `)

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyze the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their
contractual maturities for:
1.

all non-derivative financial liabilities, and

2.

net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
(Amount in `)
Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities March 31, 2022

Less than 3
months

3 to 6 months

6 months to 1 Between 1 and 5 More than 5
year
years
years

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

7,21,55,86,318 6,90,14,06,398 12,90,35,42,693 25,09,30,80,727

-

-Term Loans - Banks

4,79,90,27,673

5,01,88,00,893

9,38,98,49,387

15,55,46,58,677

-Term Loans - Others

2,01,16,43,888

1,49,86,05,505

2,61,36,93,306

5,20,04,22,050

-

-

25,90,00,000

-

-

-

32,50,00,000

12,50,00,000

90,00,00,000

3,33,80,00,000

-

-NCD-Unsecured

5,00,00,000

-

-

1,00,00,00,000

-

-Cash Credit/Overdraft

2,99,14,757

-

-

-

-

-Commercial Paper
-NCD-Secured

-Saudization
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Lease Liability
Total non-derivative
liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,36,03,416

-

(30,00,000)

-

-

88,18,90,929

3,16,93,263

-

-

-

28,44,656

28,01,807

57,15,742

5,20,20,720

1,08,00,070

8,18,39,25,320 6,93,59,01,467 12,90,62,58,434 25,14,51,01,447 1,08,00,070

Derivative liabilities
Embedded Derivative

-

-

Total derivative liabilities

-

-
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(Amount in `)
Contractual maturities of
financial liabilities March 31, 2021

Less than 3
months

3 to 6 months

6 months to 1 Between 1 and 5 More than 5
year
years
years

Non-derivatives
Borrowings

4,75,87,92,671 2,75,91,57,733 11,31,72,77,225 15,64,99,72,320

-

-Term Loans - Banks

3,28,73,92,831

2,09,38,96,221

5,04,94,28,646

7,28,54,80,198

-

-Term Loans - Others

1,02,58,08,600

54,02,61,512

2,01,78,48,579

3,87,44,92,121

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,50,00,000

12,50,00,000

4,25,00,00,000

3,44,00,00,000

-

-

-

-

1,05,00,00,000

-

32,05,91,239

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,38,14,469

-

6,22,00,395

-

-

1,59,73,80,785

-

21,78,944

-

-

22,44,783

23,24,603

47,74,428

3,21,62,313

2,02,59,122

-Commercial Paper
-NCD-Secured
-NCD-Unsecured
-Cash Credit/Overdraft
-Saudization
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Lease Liability
Total non-derivative
liabilities

6,38,22,32,707 2,76,14,82,336 11,38,64,30,992 15,68,21,34,633 2,02,59,122

Derivative liabilities
Embedded Derivative

-

-

1,81,31,010

6,88,53,996

-

Total derivative liabilities

-

-

1,81,31,010

6,88,53,996

-

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market factor. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest
rates, credit, liquidity, and other market changes. The Company is exposed to two types of market risk as follows:
c)

Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(Amount in `)
Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Variable rate borrowings

31,70,93,72,363

14,35,88,06,598

Fixed Rate of Borrowings

20,40,42,43,773

20,12,63,93,350

52,11,36,16,136

34,48,51,99,948

Total

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had the following variable rate borrowings outstanding:
(Amount in `)
Particulars

March 31, 2022
Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate

Bank Loans

March 31, 2021

Balance

% of total
loans

9.52% 31,70,93,72,363

60.85%

Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate

Balance

% of total
loans

9.09% 14,35,88,06,598

41.64%

Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. Other
components of equity change as a result of an increase/decrease in the fair value of the cash flow hedges related to
borrowings.
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d)

Impact on profit after tax

Impact on other
components of equity

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2020

Interest rates – increase by 30 basis points

(8,16,67,751)

(3,49,33,224)

Nil

Nil

Interest rates – decrease by 30 basis points

8,16,67,751

3,49,33,224

Nil

Nil

Price Risk Exposure
The Company’s exposure to assets having price risk is as under
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Equity Shares
(Other than
Subsidiary)

Mutual Funds

Market Value as on March 31, 2022

5,00,000

-

Market Value as on March 31, 2021

5,00,000

-

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification
of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Company.
Sensitivity
The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the index on the Company’s equity and profit for the
period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased by 5% or decreased by 5% with all
other variables held constant, and that all the Company’s equity instruments moved in line with the index.
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Impact on profit after tax
March 31, 2022

Increase by 5%
Decrease by 5%
e)

Impact on other
components of equity

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2020

21,463

20,274

Nil

Nil

(21,463)

(20,274)

Nil

Nil

Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency fluctuation risk for its External Commercial Borrowings (ECB).

NOTE 41. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
During the year, the Company incurred an aggregate amount of ` 1,42,67,543/- P.Y. (` 71,86,540/-) towards corporate social
responsibility in compliance of Section 135 of Companies Act 2013 read with relevant schedule and rules made thereunder.
The details of CSR Spend are given below:
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

(1) Gross amount required to be spent by the Companyduring the Year

1,96,60,925

1,44,75,992

(2) Amount spent by the Company during the Year

1,42,67,543

71,86,540

53,93,382

72,89,452

The unspent amount transferred to the CSR Account during the year

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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Particulars
Where the Company covered under section 135 of the
Companies Act, the following shall be disclosed with regard
to CSR activities:(i) amount required to be spent by the Company during
the year,
(ii) amount of expenditure incurred,
(iii) shortfall at the end of the year,
(iv) total of previous years shortfall,
(v) reason for shortfall,

Amount Remarks

1,96,60,925
69,78,091 This amount is reduced by unspent amount of
FY 2020-21 amounting to ` 72,89,452/1,26,82,834
- Due to covid crises we couldn’t take up new CSR
project. This unspent amount will be utilized for
the ongoing project in the FY 2022-23
All the CSR activities of IIFL Samasta Finance are
aligned towards improving the quality of life of the
community. However, Our CSR activities focuses
on Livestock Development, Women empowerment,
education, health and skill development .

(vi) nature of CSR activities,

(vii) details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution
to a trust controlled by the Company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard,
(viii) where a provision is made with respect to a liability
incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the
movements in the provision during the year shall be
shown separately.
NOTE 42. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
a)

Asset Classification & Provisioning:
As per MCA press release no 11/10/2009 CL - V dated January 18, 2016, the Company adopted Ind AS notified under
Sec 133 of CA 2013, from April 01, 2018. Pursuant to which the Company has made provision for loss as per ECL under
Ind As 109, Financial Instruments. Consequently the provision for loss is not on the basis of the Prudential Norms of the
Reserve Bank of India.

b)

Disclosure Pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Notification DNBS.200/CGM (PK)-2008 dated August 1, 2008
i)

Capital to risk Assets ratio (CRAR) (computed as per the method prescribed by RBI)
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As on
March 31, 2022

As on
March 31, 2021

Tier I Capital

8,69,17,21,333

5,98,52,83,039

Tier II Capital

1,08,55,11,795

1,35,06,60,849

Total Capital Funds

9,77,72,33,128

7,33,59,43,888

54,84,09,43,594

39,52,02,57,212

CRAR - Tier I Capital (%)

15.85%

15.14%

CRAR - Tier II Capital (%)

1.98%

3.42%

17.83%

18.56%

Total Risk Weighted Assets

CRAR (%)
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iii)

Amount of Subordinated Debt raised as Tier II Capital – Nil (PY: Nil)

iv)

Exposure to Capital Markets –Nil

v)

Ratings assigned during the year
(Amount in `)
Particulars
a)

MFI Grading

As on
March 31, 2022

As on
March 31, 2021

CRISIL M1C1

CRISIL M1C1

b)

Bank loan rating

CRISIL AA-/Stable

CRISIL A+/Stable

c)

NCD rating-

CRISIL AA-/Stable

CRISIL A+/Stable

d)

MLD rating

CRISIL PP- MLD
AA-r/Stable

CRISIL PP- MLD
A+r/Stable

e)

CP rating-

CRISIL A1+

CRISIL A1+

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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9,38,98,49,387

Over 5 years

Over 3 years to 5 years

34,76,23,36,631

-

8,33,33,333

15,47,13,25,344

5,01,88,00,893

Over 3 months up to 6 months

Over 6 months to 1 year

Over 1 year to 3 years

1,95,96,14,723

Over 2 months up to 3 months

-

-

3,33,80,00,000

90,00,00,000

38,40,00,000

32,50,00,000

-

-

NCD-Secured
/ Commercial
Paper

-

-

1,00,00,00,000

-

-

5,00,00,000

-

-

NCDUnsecured

11,32,43,64,748 4,94,70,00,000 1,05,00,00,000

-

54,00,00,000

4,66,04,22,050

2,61,36,93,306

1,49,86,05,505

55,01,39,378

97,36,26,614

48,78,77,896

1,24,02,71,315

1,59,91,41,636

Up to one month

Over one month to 2 months

Borrowings from
NBFC/FI

Borrowings from
Banks

Liabilities

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2022

Maturity Pattern of Assets and Liabilities

Particulars

vi)

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

3,90,94,953

20,08,79,699

22,55,44,20,811

17,69,97,36,367

8,84,22,44,587

2,90,11,06,899

2,86,71,05,245

2,62,26,12,074

Advances
(Loan portfolio
outstanding)

2,99,14,757 57,72,72,00,636

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,99,14,757

Cash Credit/
Overdraft

1,15,13,66,509

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,15,13,66,509

FD with Banks
(Free of Lien)

Assets

9,86,93,322

-

9,86,93,322

-

-

-

-

-

Investments

(Amount in `)

c)

Disclosure as required under DNBS (PD) CC. No. 300/03.10.038/2012-13 dated August 03, 2012
The cap on margins (as defined by Malegam Committee) and in compliance with RBI circular RBI/2012-13/161 DNBS
(PD) CC.No.300 /03.10.038/2012-13 August 03, 2012 is 9.39% as at March 31, 2022 (9.39% as at March 31, 2021)

d)
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Details of average interest paid on borrowings and charged on loans given to JLGs :
FY 2021-22

FY 2020-21

Rate of Interest in
% for Microfinance
loan

Rate of Interest in
% for Microfinance
loan

Average Rate of Interest on Borrowings

10.71%

11.94%

Average Rate of Interest on Loans given

19.47%

21.33%

8.75%

9.39%

Net Interest Margin

NOTE 43. DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA NOTIFICATION DNBS.193DG (VL) 2007 DATED
FEBRUARY 22, 2007
(Amount in `)
Sl
Particulars
No.

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Overdue

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Overdue

-

-

-

-

Liabilities
1

Loan and Advances availed by the NBFC
inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but
not paid:

A

Debentures
-

Secured

4,92,18,03,554

-

8,89,97,86,032

-

-

Unsecured

1,45,76,04,341

-

1,33,24,85,913

-

-

-

-

-

(Other than falling the meaning of Public
Deposits)
B

Deferred Credits

C

Term Loan

-

-

-

-

46,25,06,44,673

-

25,30,29,10,225

-

D

Inter-corporate Loans & Borrowings

E

Commercial Paper

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

F

Public Deposits

-

-

-

-

G

Other Loans – Vehicle Loan

-

-

-

-

Other Loans – Non Convertible
Debentures

-

-

-

-

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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(Amount in `)
Sl
Particulars
No.
2

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Outstanding

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Break-up of (1) (f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid)

(a)

In the form of Unsecured debentures

-

-

(b)

In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a
shortfall in the value of security

-

-

(c)

Other Public Deposit

-

-

Assets
3

Break-up of Loans & Advances including Bills Receivables [ Other than
those included in (4) below]

(a)

Secured

(b)

Unsecured

4

Breakup of Leased and Stock on Hire and other Assets counting
towards AFC activities

(i)

Lease assets including Lease rentals under sundry debtors:

65,66,64,987

58,03,11,238

57,07,75,64,350

40,60,43,89,142

(a)

Finance Lease

-

-

(b)

Operating Lease

-

-

(ii)

Stock on Hire including Hire Charges under sundry debtors:

(a)

Assets on Hire

-

-

(b)

Repossessed Assets

-

-

(iii)

Other Loans counting towards AFC Activities

(a)

Loans where assets have been repossessed

-

-

(b)

Loans other than (a) above

-

(Amount in `)

Sl
Particulars
No.
5

Break-up of Investments Current Investments

I

Quoted:

(i)

Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Outstanding

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

-

-

-

-

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii)

Units of Mutual Funds

-

-

(iv)

Government Securities

-

-

(v)

Others

-

-

-

-

II

Unquoted:

(i)

Shares: (a) Equity

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

(iii)

Units of Mutual Funds

(b) Preference

-

-

-

-

(iv)

Government Securities

-

-

(v)

Others

-

-
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Particulars
No.

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Outstanding

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021
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Quoted:

(i)

Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

-

-

-

-

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii)

Units of Mutual Funds

-

-

(iv)

Government Securities

(v)

Others

II

Unquoted:

(i)

Shares: (a) Equity

(ii)

Debentures and Bonds

(iii)

Units of Mutual Funds

-

-

(iv)

Government Securities

-

-

(v)

Others

-

-

(b) Preference

-

-

9,86,93,322

8,69,85,006

5,00,000

5,00,000

-

-

-

-

(6) Borrower Group wise classification of Assets Financed as in (3) and (4) above
(Amount in `)
Sl
Particulars
No.

As at March 31, 2022
Amount in (`) (Gross of Provisions)
Secured

1

Total

Unsecured

Related Parties

(a)

Subsidiaries

-

-

-

(b)

Companies in the same group

-

-

-

(c)

Other Related Parties

2

Other than related parties
Total

-

-

-

65,66,64,987

57,07,05,35,649

57,72,72,00,636

65,66,64,987 57,07,05,35,649 57,72,72,00,636
(Amount in `)

Sl
Particulars
No.

As at March 31, 2021
Amount in (`) (Gross of Provisions)
Secured

1

Unsecured

Total

Related Parties

(a)

Subsidiaries

-

-

-

(b)

Companies in the same group

-

-

-

(c)

Other Related Parties

2

Other than related parties
Total

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

-

-

-

58,03,11,238

40,58,74,58,228

41,16,77,69,466

58,03,11,238 40,58,74,58,228

41,16,77,69,466
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7.

Investor Group-wise classification of all investments (Current and Long Term) in Share and Securities (both Quoted
and Unquoted):
(Amount in `)
Sl
Category
No.

1

Market Value /
Breakup value or
Fair Value or Net
Assets Value

Book Value (`)

Related Parties

(a)

Subsidiaries

-

-

(b)

Companies in the same group

-

-

(c)

Other Related Parties

2

Other than related parties
Total

-

-

9,91,93,322

9,91,93,322

9,91,93,322

9,91,93,322
(Amount in `)

(8)

Other Information

(i)

Gross Non - Performing Assets

(a)

Related Parties

(b)

Other than Related Parties

As on
March 31, 2022

As on
March 31, 2021

Amount

Amount

-

-

1,30,12,60,240

74,78,19,368

(ii)

Net Non - Performing Assets

(a)

Related Parties

-

-

(b)

Other than Related Parties

-

-

(iii)

Assets acquired in Satisfaction of Debt

-

-

NOTE 44. THE COMPANY HAS NOT DISBURSED ANY LOAN AGAINST SECURITY OF GOLD.
NOTE 45. SECURITIZATION / ASSIGNMENT OF LOANS
During the year the Company has sold loans through direct Securitization / assignments. The information on direct assignment
activity of the Company as an Originator / Assignor is as shown below:
Particulars
Total number of loans securitized / assigned
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
Total book value of loans securitized / assigned
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
Sale consideration received for loans securitized / assigned
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
MFI Loans Subordinated as Credit Enhancement on Assets Derecognized
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
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Year Ended
March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)
Year Ended
March 31, 2021

2,46,415
2,46,415

2,88,021
2,88,021

5,55,55,55,578
5,55,55,55,578

5,55,55,55,707
5,55,55,55,707

5,00,00,00,000
5,00,00,00,000

5,00,00,00,000
5,00,00,00,000

-

-

Income recognized in the statement of profit and loss
a. Through Direct assignment
b.
Through Pass through Certificates
Total
Income deferred on securitized transactions
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
Balance of loans assigned / securitized as at the balance sheet date
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
Cash collateral provided and outstanding as at the balance sheet date
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total

(Amount in `)
Year Ended
March 31, 2021

61,67,04,806
61,67,04,806

87,79,81,788
87,79,81,788

6,73,96,545
6,73,96,545

12,42,51,401
12,42,51,401

4,97,23,97,895
4,97,23,97,895

7,53,57,74,062
7,53,57,74,062

-

-

Disclosure to be made under Securitization guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India vide policy no. DNBS. PD. No.
301/3.10.01/2012-13 dated August 21, 2012.
Sl
Particulars
No.
1
No. of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for Securitization transactions
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
2
Total amount of securitized assets as per the books of the SPVs
sponsored by the Company
a. Through Direct assignment
b. Through Pass through Certificates
Total
3
Total amount of exposures retained by the Company to comply with MRR
as on the date of balance sheet
i)
Off-Balance Sheet exposures
a)
First Loss
b)
Others
ii)
On-Balance Sheet exposures
a)
First Loss (in the form of Fixed Deposit)
b)
Others
4
Amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than MRR
i)
Off-Balance Sheet exposures
a) Exposure to own securitization
First Loss
Others
b) Exposure to third party securitization transaction
First Loss
Others
ii)
On-Balance Sheet exposures
a) Exposure to own securitization
First Loss
Others
b) Exposure to third party securitization transaction
First Loss
Others

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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As on
March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)
As on
March 31, 2021

2
2

2
2

5,55,55,55,578
5,55,55,55,578
-

5,55,55,55,707
5,55,55,55,707
-

-

-

-

0
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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More than 3 Years

Total

Subtotal

Other Items such as guarantees, Loan Commitments etc. Which are
in the scope of IND AS 109 but not covered under current income
recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Subtotal for NPA

Loss

-

Stage 2
Stage 3

1,61,85,55,461

Stage 3

Total 53,73,64,44,422

3,43,17,74,771

Stage 2

Stage 1 48,68,61,14,191

-

-

-

1,61,85,55,461

-

78,63,372

28,30,74,060

1,32,76,18,029

52,11,78,88,961

3,43,17,74,771

48,68,61,14,191

3

3,28,21,98,320

47,65,88,82,983

5

Net Carrying
Amount

-

-

-

-

-

42,92,29,042

-

20,85,309

7,50,69,165

35,20,74,568

42,92,29,042

3,28,21,98,320
2,36,61,34,077 51,37,03,10,345

1,18,93,26,419

14,95,76,451

1,02,72,31,207 47,65,88,82,983

-

-

-

-

-

1,18,93,26,419

-

57,78,063

20,80,04,895

97,55,43,461

1,17,68,07,658 50,94,10,81,303

14,95,76,451

1,02,72,31,207

4

Gross Carrying Loss Allowances
Amount as per (Provisions) as
IND AS 109
required under
IND AS 109

Stage 1

Stage 3

Stage 3
Stage 3

1 to 3 Years

Subtotal for Doubtful

Stage 3

Stage 2

Stage 1

Stage 3

2

Doubtful- upto 1 Year

1

Asset
Classification as
per IND AS 109

Substandard

Non Performing Assets (NPA)

Subtotal

Standard

Performing Assets

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

MFI loan book

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amount in `)

1,17,03,27,234

3,52,50,556

7,47,40,700

1,06,03,35,978

-

-

-

-

-

3,52,50,556

-

1,71,257

61,65,076

2,89,14,223

1,13,50,76,678

7,47,40,700

1,06,03,35,978

6

1,19,58,06,843

1,15,40,75,863

7,48,35,751

(3,31,04,771)

-

-

-

-

-

1,15,40,75,863

-

56,06,807

20,18,39,818

94,66,29,238

4,17,30,980

7,48,35,751

(3,31,04,771)

7= 4-6

Provisions
Difference
required as per between IND AS
IRACP Norms 109 provisions &
IRACP Norms

NOTE 46. DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA NOTIFICATION DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.NO.109/22.10.106/2019-20 DATED MARCH 13, 2020:
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More than 3 Years

Total

Subtotal

Other Items such as guarantees, Loan Commitments etc. Which are
in the scope of IND AS 109 but not covered under current income
recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Subtotal for NPA

Loss

-

Stage 3

3,62,03,75,932
21,44,69,356
15,59,10,924
3,99,07,56,213

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total

-

-

Stage 2

-

15,59,10,924

-

53,813

36,62,178

15,21,94,933

Stage 1

Stage 3

Stage 3
Stage 3

1 to 3 Years

Subtotal for Doubtful

Stage 3

Doubtful- upto 1 Year

21,44,69,356

Stage 2
3,83,48,45,288

3,62,03,75,932

3

Financial Statements

18,18,27,415

11,19,33,822

85,25,924

6,13,67,669

-

-

-

-

-

11,19,33,822

-

38,634

26,29,204

10,92,65,984

6,98,93,594

85,25,924

6,13,67,669

4

Gross Carrying Loss Allowances
Amount as per (Provisions) as
IND AS 109
required under
IND AS 109

Stage 1

Stage 3

2

Asset
Classification as
per IND AS 109

Substandard

Non Performing Assets (NPA)

Subtotal

Standard

Performing Assets

1

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

Non - MFI loan book
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8,69,14,769

33,95,588

46,70,933

7,88,48,249

-

-

-

-

-

33,95,588

-

1,172

79,759

33,14,657

8,35,19,182

46,70,933

7,88,48,249

6
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9,49,12,646

10,85,38,234

38,54,991

(1,74,80,580)

-

-

-

-

-

10,85,38,234

-

37,462

25,49,445

10,59,51,327

(1,36,25,588)

38,54,991

(1,74,80,580)

7= 4-6

Provisions
Difference
required as per between IND AS
IRACP Norms 109 provisions &
IRACP Norms

Statutory Reports

3,80,89,28,797

4,39,77,103

20,59,43,432

3,55,90,08,263

-

-

-

-

-

4,39,77,103

-

15,179

10,32,974

4,29,28,950

3,76,49,51,695

20,59,43,432

3,55,90,08,263

5

Net Carrying
Amount

(Amount in `)
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Stage 3

More than 3 Years

Total

Subtotal

Other Items such as guarantees,Loan Commitments etc.Which are
in the scope of IND AS 109 but not covered under current income
recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Subtotal for NPA

Loss

-

Stage 3

1,42,08,76,854
71,20,63,418

Stage 2
Stage 3

Total 37,63,80,44,439

35,50,51,04,167

Stage 1

-

-

Stage 2

-

71,20,63,418

-

10,20,435

1,12,75,553

69,97,67,430

Stage 1

Stage 3

Stage 3

1 to 3 Years

Subtotal for Doubtful

Stage 3

Doubtful- upto 1 Year

1,42,08,76,854

Stage 2
36,92,59,81,022

35,50,51,04,167

3

1,35,83,05,963

34,81,84,91,994

5

Net Carrying
Amount

-

1,35,83,05,963

34,81,84,91,994

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,46,12,46,483 36,17,67,97,957

71,20,63,418

6,25,70,891

68,66,12,173

-

-

-

-

-

71,20,63,418

-

10,20,435

1,12,75,553

69,97,67,430

74,91,83,065 36,17,67,97,957

6,25,70,891

68,66,12,173

4

Gross Carrying Loss Allowances
Amount as per (Provisions) as
IND AS 109
required under
IND AS 109

Stage 1

Stage 3

2

Asset
Classification as
per IND AS 109

Substandard

Non Performing Assets( NPA)

Subtotal

Standard

Performing Assets

1

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

MFI loan Book

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms for the year ended March 31, 2021
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52,69,32,622

99,68,888

1,98,92,276

49,70,71,458

-

-

-

-

-

99,68,888

-

14,286

1,57,858

97,96,744

51,69,63,734

1,98,92,276

49,70,71,458

6

93,43,13,860

70,20,94,530

4,26,78,615

18,95,40,715

-

-

-

-

-

70,20,94,530

-

10,06,149

1,11,17,695

68,99,70,686

23,22,19,330

4,26,78,615

18,95,40,715

7= 4-6

Provisions
Difference
required as per between IND AS
IRACP Norms 109 provisions &
IRACP Norms

(Amount in `)
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Stage 3

More than 3 Years

Total

Subtotal

Other Items such as guarantees,Loan Commitments etc.Which are
in the scope of IND AS 109 but not covered under current income
recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Subtotal for NPA

Loss

-

Stage 3

3,34,54,91,903
14,84,77,173
3,57,55,950
3,52,97,25,026

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Total

-

-

Stage 2

-

3,57,55,950

-

1,78,157

26,88,935

3,28,88,858

Stage 1

Stage 3

Stage 3

Subtotal for Doubtful

Stage 3

1 to 3 Years

14,84,77,173
3,49,39,69,076

3,34,54,91,903

Stage 1

3

Financial Statements

9,31,92,954

3,57,55,950

33,88,329

5,40,48,675

-

-

-

-

-

3,57,55,950

-

1,78,157

26,88,935

3,28,88,858

5,74,37,004

33,88,329

5,40,48,675

4

Gross Carrying Loss Allowances
Amount as per (Provisions) as
IND AS 109
required under
IND AS 109

Stage 2

Doubtful- upto 1 Year

2

Stage 3

1

Asset
Classification as
per IND AS 109

Substandard

Non Performing Assets( NPA)

Subtotal

Standard

Performing Assets

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms

NON MFI loan Book
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(Amount in `)

4,94,16,150

5,00,583

20,78,680

4,68,36,887

-

-

-

-

-

5,00,583

-

2,494

37,645

4,60,444

4,89,15,567

20,78,680

4,68,36,887

6
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4,37,76,803

3,52,55,367

13,09,648

72,11,788

-

-

-

-

-

3,52,55,367

-

1,75,663

26,51,290

3,24,28,414

85,21,436

13,09,648

72,11,788

7= 4-6

Provisions
Difference
required as per between IND AS
IRACP Norms 109 provisions &
IRACP Norms
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3,43,65,32,072

-

14,50,88,844

3,29,14,43,229

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,43,65,32,072

14,50,88,844

3,29,14,43,229

5

Net Carrying
Amount
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NOTE 47. DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. NO.102/03.10.001/2019-20 DATED
NOVEMBER 04, 2019:
(i)

Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings):
As at March 31, 2022
Number of Significant Counterparties

Amount % of Total Deposits

23

43,82,51,53,861

Not Applicable

% of Total
Liabilities
81.23%

As at March 31, 2021
Number of Significant Counterparties

Amount % of Total Deposits

25

31,71,61,47,937

Not Applicable

% of Total
Liabilities
84.38%

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in lakhs and % of total deposits) - Not applicable
(iii) Top 10 borrowings
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Top 10 Borrowings

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Amount

% of total
Borrowings

Amount

% of total
Borrowings

31,44,15,36,895

60.33%

22158113557

64.25%

(iv) Funding concentration based on significant instrument / product
(Amount in `)
Name of the instrument/product

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Amount

% of total
Liabilities

Amount

% of total
Liabilities

46,11,66,13,129

85.48%

25,49,51,99,943

67.83%

Debt securities

4,68,80,00,000

9.17%

7,94,00,00,000

21.12%

Subordinated liabilities

1,30,90,00,000

1.95%

1,05,00,00,000

2.79%

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Notes: A “significant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/
products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI’s, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other
non-deposit taking NBFCs.
Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surplus and computed basis
extant regulatory ALM guidelines
(v) Stock Ratio
Particulars
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities
Commercial papers as a % of total assets
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a %
of total liabilities
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a %
of total assets
Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities
Other short-term liabilities as a % of total assets
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March 31, 2022
0.48%
0.41%
0.00%

(Amount in `)
March 31, 2021
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

51.93%
43.82%

57.30%
48.86%

NOTE 48. HIGH QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.
NO.102/03.10.001/2019-20 DATED NOVEMBER 04, 2019
(Amount in `)
Name of the instrument/product

As at March 31, 2022
Total
Unweighted
Value (average)

As at March 31, 2021

Total
Weighted
Value (average)

Total
Unweighted
Value (average)

Total
Weighted
Value (average)

High Quality Liquid Assets
Cash and bank balances

2,65,15,92,999

2,65,15,92,999

1,45,29,75,805

1,45,29,75,805

Unencumbered fixed deposits

1,15,13,66,509

1,15,13,66,509

2,50,00,000

2,50,00,000

3,80,29,59,508

3,80,29,59,508

1,47,79,75,805

1,47,79,75,805

Unsecured wholesale funding

-

-

-

-

Secured wholesale funding

-

-

-

-

Additional requirements, of which

-

-

-

-

Outflows related to derivative exposures and
other collateral requirements

-

-

-

-

Outflows related to loss of funding of debt
products

-

-

-

-

Credit and liquidity facilities

-

-

-

-

2,92,84,69,578

3,36,77,40,015

3,54,79,76,324

4,08,01,72,773

-

-

-

-

2,92,84,69,578

3,36,77,40,015

3,54,79,76,324

4,08,01,72,773

-

-

2,62,26,12,074

1,96,69,59,056

1,82,83,49,560

1,37,12,62,170

Total
Cash Outflows

Other contractual funding obligations
Other contingent funding obligations
Total
Cash Inflows
Secured lending
Inflows from fully performing exposures
Other cash inflows
Total

1,55,73,65,681

1,16,80,24,261

47,89,58,840

35,92,19,130

4,17,99,77,755

3,13,49,83,316

2,30,73,08,400

1,73,04,81,300
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The Board of Directors of the Company has an overall responsibility and oversight for the management of all the risks,
including liquidity risk, to which the Company is exposed to in the course of conducting its business. The Board approves
the governance structure, policies, strategy and the risk limits for the management of liquidity risk. The Board of Directors
approves the constitution of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) for the effective supervision, evaluation, monitoring
and review of various aspects and types of risks, including liquidity risk, faced by the Company. The meetings of RMC
are held at quarterly interval. Further, the Board of Directors also approves constitution of Asset Liability Committee
(ALCO), which functions as the strategic decision making body for the asset-liability management of the Company from
risk-return perspective and within the risk appetite and guard-rails approved by the Board. The main objective of ALCO
is to assist the Board and RMC in effective discharge of the responsibilities of asset liability management, market risk
management, liquidity and interest rate risk management and also to ensure adherence to risk tolerance/limits set up by
the Board. ALCO provides guidance and directions in terms of interest rate, liquidity, funding sources, and investment of
surplus funds. ALCO meetings are held once in a month or more frequently as warranted from time to time. The minutes
of ALCO meetings are placed before the RMC and the Board of Directors in its next meeting for its perusal/ approval/
ratification.
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Liquidity coverage ratio
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022
3,80,29,59,508
84,19,35,004
451.69%

Total high quality liquid assets (a)
Total net cash outflows (b) (Refer, note below)
Liquidity coverage ratio (a)/(b)

(Amount in `)
As at
March 31, 2021
1,47,79,75,805
2,34,96,91,472
62.90%

Note Total net cash outflows over the next 30 days = Stressed Outflows - Minimum of (Stressed Inflows; 75% of Stressed
Outflows).
Qualitative disclosures
The Reserve Bank of India has prescribed monitoring of sufficiency of NBFC’s liquid assets pursuant to RBI/2019-20/88
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is aimed
at measuring and promoting short-term resilience of NBFCs to potential liquidity disruptions by ensuring maintenance of
sufficient high quality liquid assets (HQLAs) to survive an acute stress scenario lasting for 30 days.
Liquidity of the Company is managed by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) under the supervision of
Borrowings committee.
The ratio comprises of high quality liquid assets (HQLAs) as numerator and net cash outflows in 30 days as denominator.
Cash outflows are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories or types of liabilities by 1.15 times
and cash inflows are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories of contractual receivables by
0.75 times.
The weighted cash outflows are primarily driven by secured and unsecured from loans from banks, financial institutions , nonconvertible debentures and securitization/direct assignment transactions. Borrowings contributed 52.20% and 43.07% of the
total weighted cash outflows as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively. The weighted cash inflows are primarily
driven by unsecured micro loans and secured loans to MSME and individuals.
The Company has implemented the LCR framework and has consistently maintained LCR well above the regulatory threshold.
The average LCR for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 was 451.69% which is above the regulatory requirement of 50.00%.
NOTE 49. LEASES
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind
AS 17 – Leases and related interpretation and guidance. The Company did not have contract qualifying as Lease as on April
1, 2019 except short term leases which are exempted from the application of Ind AS 116.
Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on the statement of profit and loss
(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

68,11,339

61,60,885

5,62,342

3,42,332

Depreciation on Right to Use

1,26,34,351

98,27,348

Total cash outflow for leases

1,60,07,652

1,18,25,727

12,88,61,189

9,24,39,836

Interest on lease liabilities
Income recognized- Security deposit

Lease expense on Low Value Assets / Short term assets
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(Amount in `)
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Right to Use Asset

6,73,77,250

5,62,88,979

Lease Liability

7,41,82,995

6,17,65,249

The Company has discounted lease payments at weighted average borrowing rate which is 10.56%.
Maturity analysis of Lease Liabilities (valued on undiscounted basis)

Corporate Overview

Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on the Balance Sheet
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Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Year 1

1,85,56,327

1,33,20,722

Year 2

1,80,80,805

1,26,20,152

Year 3

1,72,07,183

1,19,33,621

Year 4

1,68,37,482

1,13,99,335

Year 5

1,57,90,372

1,16,76,795

More than 5 years

1,13,83,247

1,16,53,118

NOTE 50. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Amount in `)
Name of the instrument/product

Carrying Value

Fair Value

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

9,86,93,322

8,69,85,006

9,86,93,322

8,69,85,006

5,00,000

5,00,000

5,00,000

5,00,000

55,18,62,67,844

39,63,02,60,944

55,18,62,67,844

39,63,02,60,944

4,57,13,478

2,34,61,796

4,57,13,478

2,34,61,796

Financial assets
Derivative Financial Instruments
Investments
Loans
Accrued interest on Fixed Deposits
Staff Loans
Security Deposits
Interest Strip Asset on Assignment
Other Receivable
TDS Receivable
Trade Receivables

16,51,888

9,39,651

16,51,888

9,39,651

6,35,52,775

4,92,76,326

6,35,52,775

4,92,76,326

36,67,15,640

43,41,12,185

36,67,15,640

43,41,12,185

4,19,96,467

-

4,19,96,467

-

-

-

-

-

8,48,45,567

3,05,99,607

8,48,45,567

3,05,99,607

Cash and cash equivalents

4,55,08,08,859

1,78,70,10,465

4,55,08,08,859

1,78,70,10,465

Bank Balance

2,55,56,28,994

1,54,44,11,947

2,55,56,28,994

1,54,44,11,947

62,99,63,74,833 43,58,75,57,926 62,99,63,74,833

43,58,75,57,926

Total Financial Assets
Financial liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments
Debt Securities
Borrowings
Subordinated Liabilities
Lease Liability
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

9,86,93,322

8,69,85,006

9,86,93,322

8,69,85,006

5,14,80,83,770

8,82,92,74,954

5,14,80,83,770

8,82,92,74,954

46,03,36,59,529

25,54,11,18,371

46,03,36,59,529

25,54,11,18,371

1,40,72,04,341

1,27,85,62,710

1,40,72,04,341

1,27,85,62,710

7,41,82,995

6,17,65,249

7,41,82,995

6,17,65,249

8,06,03,416

8,60,14,864

8,06,03,416

8,60,14,864

91,35,84,192

1,59,95,59,729

91,35,84,192

1,59,95,59,729

53,75,60,11,565 37,48,32,80,883 53,75,60,11,565

37,48,32,80,883
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Fair value hierarchy
Ind AS 113, ‘Fair Value Measurement’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair
value in the Statement of Balance sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used
in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to un-observable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Fair value of
derivative financial assets and liabilities are estimated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevailing
market interest rate curves. The three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 113 are described below.
Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value - recurring
fair value measurements -As at
March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Derivative Financial Instruments
Investments
(i) Mutual Funds
(ii) Government Securities
(iii) Debt Securities
(iv) Equity
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments
Total financial liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

(Amount in `)
Carrying cost

-

9,86,93,322
9,86,93,322

-

9,86,93,322
9,86,93,322

9,86,93,322
9,86,93,322

-

9,86,93,322
9,86,93,322

-

9,86,93,322
9,86,93,322

9,86,93,322
9,86,93,322

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value - recurring
fair value measurements - As at
March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Derivative Financial Instruments
Investments
(i) Mutual Funds
(ii) Government Securities
(iii) Debt Securities
(iv) Equity
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments
Total financial liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

(Amount in `)
Carrying cost

-

8,69,85,006
8,69,85,006

-

8,69,85,006
8,69,85,006

8,69,85,006
8,69,85,006

-

8,69,85,006
8,69,85,006

-

8,69,85,006
8,69,85,006

8,69,85,006
8,69,85,006
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Level 2

Level 3

Total

(Amount in `)
Carrying cost

-

-

-

-

4,55,08,08,859
2,55,56,28,994

-

8,48,45,567
8,48,45,567
8,48,45,567
- 55,18,62,67,844 55,18,62,67,844 55,18,62,67,844
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
51,96,30,247
51,96,30,247
51,96,30,247
- 55,79,12,43,658 55,79,12,43,658 62,89,76,81,511

-

-

-

1,40,72,04,341
7,41,82,995
7,41,82,995
7,41,82,995
91,35,84,192
91,35,84,192
91,35,84,192
- 47,10,20,30,132 47,10,20,30,132 53,65,73,18,243

Assets and liabilities which are
measured at amortized cost for
which fair values are disclosed As at March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than included
above
Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables
Loans
Investment in Equity
Other Financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
Debt Securities
Borrowings
(Other than Debt Securities)
Subordinated Liabilities
Lease Liability
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

(Amount in `)
Carrying cost

-

-

-

-

1,78,70,10,465
1,54,44,11,947

-

3,05,99,607
3,05,99,607
3,05,99,607
- 39,63,02,60,944 39,63,02,60,944 39,63,02,60,944
5,00,000
5,00,000
5,00,000
50,77,89,958
50,77,89,958
50,77,89,958
- 40,16,91,50,508 40,16,91,50,508 43,50,05,72,920

-

-

-

96,99,09,077
96,99,09,077
1,27,85,62,710
6,17,65,249
6,17,65,249
6,17,65,249
1,59,95,59,729
1,59,95,59,729
1,59,95,59,729
- 37,08,76,42,244 37,08,76,42,244 37,39,62,95,877

8,06,03,416
46,03,36,59,529

8,60,14,864
8,82,92,74,954
25,54,11,18,371
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8,06,03,416
46,03,36,59,529

8,60,14,864
8,82,92,74,954
25,54,11,18,371

8,06,03,416
5,14,80,83,770
46,03,36,59,529

8,60,14,864
8,82,92,74,954
25,54,11,18,371
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Assets and liabilities which are
measured at amortized cost for
which fair values are disclosed - As
at March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank Balance other than included
above
Receivables
(i) Trade Receivables
Loans
Investment in Equity
Other Financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
Debt Securities
Borrowings
(Other than Debt Securities)
Subordinated Liabilities
Lease Liability
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
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NOTE 51. MOVEMENT OF NON PERFORMING ASSETS (NPA)
(Amount in `)
Sl
Particulars
No.
(i)

Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)

(ii)

Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance
b) Addition during the year
c) Reduction during the year
d) Closing balance

(iii)

March 31, 2020

74,78,19,368

34,31,20,550

1,64,71,18,155

73,27,59,587

62,04,71,138

32,80,60,769

1,77,44,66,385

74,78,19,368

Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance
b) Addition during the year

(iv)

March 31, 2021

-

-

43,92,45,533

-

c) Reduction during the year

(3,39,60,612)

-

d) Closing balance

47,32,06,145

-

74,78,19,368

34,31,20,550

Movement of provision for NPAs (excluding provision on standard assets)
a) Opening balance
b) Provision made during the year
c) Write off / write-back of excess provisions
d) Closing balance
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1,20,78,72,622

73,27,59,587

65,44,31,750

32,80,60,769

1,30,12,60,240

74,78,19,368
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Term Loans-Financial
Institutions

Term Loans- Banks

Debentures

Yearly

Half-yearly

Quarterly

Monthly

Bullet

Quarterly

Monthly

Bullet

Up to 1 Year
1-3 years

Bullet
Quarterly

CP

1-3 years
Above 3 Years
1-3 years

Above 3 Years

1-3 years

1-3 years
1-3 years

Above 3 Years

Above 3 Years
1-3 years

1-3 years

Above 3 Years

1-3 years

Original
maturity of
loan

Frequency
of
Repayment

Type of
instrument /
institution

As at March 31, 2022

7.00%-8.00%
10.00%-11.00%
7.00%-8.00%
9.00%-10.00%
11.00%-12.00%
9.00%-10.00%
10.00%-11.00%
15.00%-16.00%
16.00%-17.00%
8.00%-9.00%
9.00%-10.00%
10.00%-11.00%
11.00%-12.00%
10.00%-11.00%
8.00%-9.00%
9.00%-10.00%
10.00%-11.00%
9.00%-10.00%
10.00%-11.00%
9.00%-10.00%
5.00%-6.00%
9.00%-10.00%
10.00%-11.00%
11.00%-12.00%
9.00%-10.00%
10.00%-11.00%
11.00%-12.00%
8.00%-9.00%
9.00%-10.00%
10.00%-11.00%
11.00%-12.00%
7.00%-8.00%
8.00%-9.00%
9.00%-10.00%

Interest Range
Due within 1 year
No. of Amount
Instalments
1
25.90
4
50.00
1
50.00
2
30.00
1
5.00
1
5.00
81 272.12
312 817.33
110 188.48
24
3.26
1
0.14
3
6.84
48 359.75
23 139.53
14
58.26
4
16.67
3
58.38
7
35.00
34
81.92
78 103.13
11
14.22
4
8.33
8
23.33
3
5.97
4
42.00
4
64.00
1
32.50
2
30.00
2 112.00
1
30.00
1
30.00
793
2,699

Due within 1-2 year
No. of Amount
Instalments
6 200.00
67 213.43
155 464.94
32
21.76
4
9.12
47 376.61
8
72.73
9
37.50
2
8.32
32
83.00
59
95.96
4
8.33
8
23.33
4
42.00
4
52.00
2
30.00
1
18.00
444
1,757

NOTE 52. DETAILS OF TERMS OF REPAYMENT - TERM LOANS FROM BANKS AND OTHERS
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Due within 4-5 year
No. of Amount
Instalments
3
18.00
3
18

Statutory Reports

Due within 3-4 year
No. of Amount
Instalments
2
8.33
4
12.00
4
24.00
10
44

Financial Statements

Due within 2-3 year
No. of Amount
Instalments
2
144.80
1
89.00
9
17.71
21
107.99
4
9.04
9
101.94
8
72.73
8
33.33
8
36.08
4
8.33
4
12.00
4
42.00
2
15.00
84
690

Corporate Overview

(Amount in `)
Over 5 years
No. of Amount
Instalments
-
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Term LoansFinancial
Institutions

Term LoansBank

Debentures

Type of
instrument /
institution”

Yearly

Half-yearly

Quarterly

Monthly

Bullet

Quarterly

Monthly

Bullet

1,851.46

499

8.00%-9.00%

30.00
70.00

7.00%-8.00%

2
1

11.00%-12.00%

32.50

32.50

42.00

15.50

23.33

4.08

45.35

35.00

28.13

82.50

112.00

66.65

4.17

57.14

93.82

38.99

0.04

2.43

19.10

315.44

250.78

-

-

-

286.00

14.00

-

1-3 years

1

1

4

7

50.00
100.00

Above 3 Years

10.00%-11.00%

8.00%-9.00%

6.00%-7.00%

1-3 years

11.00%-12.00%

8

4

12.00%-13.00%

10.00%-11.00%

45

11.00%-12.00%

2
38

10.00%-11.00%

6.00%-7.00%

1
4

3.00%-4.00%

20

10.00%-11.00%

9.00%-10.00%

2

9.00%-10.00%

4

21

10.00%-11.00%

11.00%-12.00%

10

1

9.00%-10.00%

12

9.00%-10.00%

11.00%-12.00%

27

163

11.00%-12.00%

10.00%-11.00%

112

9.00%-10.00%

16.00%-17.00%

Above 3 Years

1-3 years

1-3 years

1-3 years

Above 3 Years

1-3 years

Above 3 Years

1-3 years

-

10.00%-11.00%

15.00%-16.00%

1

1

4

9.00%-10.00%

8.00%-9.00%

-

11.00%-12.00%

Above 3 Years

3

10.00%-11.00%

9.00%-10.00%

1-3 years

1-3 years

No. of
Instalments

Amount

Due within 1 year

Quarterly

Interest Range

Original
maturity of
loan

Frequency of
Repayment

As at March 31, 2021
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334

1

-

2

1

-

4

3

8

-

12

31

-

-

-

12

-

-

8

6

-

1

24

117

96

1

1

-

-

-

-

2

4

No. of
Instalments

922.42

30.00

-

30.00

32.50

-

42.00

6.00

23.33

-

15.27

38.91

-

-

-

49.99

-

-

78.74

29.61

-

0.21

3.26

206.21

246.38

5.00

5.00

-

-

-

-

30.00

50.00

Amount

Due within 1-2 year

97

-

-

2

-

-

4

-

8

-

-

23

-

-

-

3

-

-

-

4

-

-

-

25

22

-

-

-

-

-

6

-

-

No. of
Instalments

444.09

-

-

30.00

-

-

42.00

-

23.33

-

-

35.10

-

-

-

12.50

-

-

-

18.18

-

-

-

16.91

66.06

-

-

-

-

-

200.00

-

-

Amount

Due within 2-3 year

11

-

-

2

-

-

4

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

-

-

-

2

1

1

-

-

-

No. of
Instalments

186.49

-

-

15.00

-

-

12.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.49

-

-

-

89.00

11.00

59.00

-

-

-

Amount

Due within 3-4 year

4

-

-

-

-

-

4

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

No. of
Instalments

12.00

-

-

-

-

-

12.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amount

Due within 4-5 year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

No. of
Instalments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amount

Over 5 years

(Amount in `)
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52,45,22,415
52,45,22,415

-

1,08,05,99,374

15 days to 31
days

1,57,35,67,245
1,57,35,67,245

52,45,22,415
52,45,22,415

39,85,73,975 1,08,05,99,374

-

-

27,88,57,286

39,85,73,975

8 days to 14
days

27,88,57,286

1 to 7 days

2,86,71,05,245
2,86,71,05,245

2,57,27,34,917

-

2,57,27,34,917

Over 1 month
upto 2 months

2,90,11,06,899
2,90,11,06,899

2,88,47,20,767

37,50,00,000

2,50,97,20,767

Over 2 months
upto 3 months

Liabilities
Borrowings
from Banks,
Financial
institution and
NBFCs
Market
Borrowings
Securitization
Total
Assets
Advances
Investments
Total

Particulars

37,47,34,848

-

37,47,34,848

42,66,14,897
42,66,14,897

-

37,50,98,509

42,66,14,897
42,66,14,897

8 days to 14
days

37,50,98,509

1 to 7 days

97,51,19,766
97,51,19,766

1,00,73,28,705

-

1,00,73,28,705

15 days to 31
days

1,85,64,66,466
1,85,64,66,466

1,74,53,53,606

-

1,74,53,53,606

Over 1 month
upto 2 months

1,96,13,11,837
1,96,13,11,837

1,25,62,76,997

12,50,00,000

1,13,12,76,997

Over 2 months
upto 3 months

Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2021:

Liabilities
Borrowings
from Banks,
Financial
institution and
NBFCs
Market
Borrowings
Securitization
Total
Assets
Advances
Investments
Total

Particulars

Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2022:

NOTE 53. ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5,95,16,56,398
5,95,16,56,398

2,75,91,57,733

12,50,00,000

2,63,41,57,733

Over 3 months
upto 6 months

8,84,22,44,587
8,84,22,44,587

6,90,13,06,398

38,40,00,000

6,51,73,06,398

Over 3 months
upto 6 months

16,93,04,66,574
16,93,04,66,574

13,69,63,26,770

2,90,00,00,000

10,79,63,26,770

Over 1 year &
upto 3 years

3,90,94,953
5,00,000
3,95,94,953

-

-

-

Over 5 years

25,09,64,728
25,09,64,728

1,98,48,95,549

1,59,00,00,000

39,48,95,549

41,16,77,69,466
5,00,000
41,16,82,69,466

34,48,51,99,943

8,99,00,00,000

25,49,51,99,943

Total

57,72,72,00,636
5,00,000
57,72,77,00,636

52,11,36,16,136

5,99,70,00,000

46,11,66,16,136

Total

Corporate Overview

2,13,22,862
5,00,000
2,18,22,862

-

-

-

Over 3 years & Over 5 years
upto 5 years

20,08,79,699
20,08,79,699

62,33,33,333

-

62,33,33,333

Over 3 years
& upto 5
years

Statutory Reports

22,55,44,20,811
22,55,44,20,811

24,47,01,47,394

4,33,80,00,000

20,13,21,47,394

Over 1 year &
upto 3 years

Financial Statements

12,36,72,31,041
12,36,72,31,041

11,28,60,27,225

4,25,00,00,000

7,03,60,27,225

Over 6 months &
upto 1 year

17,69,97,36,367
17,69,97,36,367

12,90,33,42,693

90,00,00,000

12,00,33,42,693

Over 6 months &
upto 1 year

NOTES
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Capital Management
The Company manages capital risk in order to maximize shareholders’ profit by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure.
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes equity share capital and other equity. Debt includes
term loans from banks, NBFC and debentures net of cash and bank balances. The Company monitors capital on the basis of
the following gearing ratio. There is no change in the overall capital risk management strategy of the Company compared to
last year.
(Amount in `)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Borrowings

52,11,36,16,136

34,48,51,99,949

7,10,64,37,853

3,33,14,22,412

45,00,71,78,283

31,15,37,77,537

Equity share capital

4,98,22,31,900

3,20,81,33,360

Other equity

4,75,29,87,775

2,92,96,90,787

Total Equity (B)

9,73,52,19,675

6,13,78,24,147

4.62

5.08

Cash and bank balance
Net Debt (A)

Net Debt to Equity Ratio
NOTE 54 : RESTRUCTURE DETAILS
(i)

Details of resolution plan implemented under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress as per RBI
circular dated August 6, 2020 are given below (Resolution Framework 1.0):
Type of Borrower

Microfinance Loans
Dairy Cattle Loans
Individual Loans
Total

Number of
accounts where
resolution
plan has been
implemented
under this
window
(A)

exposure to
accounts
mentioned
at (A) before
implementation
of the plan
(B)

Of (B), aggregate
amount of
debt that was
converted into
other securities
(C)

-

-

-

Additional
funding
sanctioned, if
any, including
between
invocation of
the plan and
implementation
(D)
-

Increase in
provisions on
account of the
implementation
of the resolution
plan
(E)

-

Exposure
Of (A), aggregate
Of (A) amount
Of (A) amount
Exposure
to accounts
debt that slipped written off during
paid by the
to accounts
classified
into NPA during
the half-year
borrowers during
classified
as Standard
the half-year
(C)
the half-year
as Standard
consequent to
(B)
(D)
consequent to
implementation
implementation
of resolution plan
of resolution plan
– Position as at
– Position as at
the end of the
the end of this
previous halfhalf-year
year
(E)
(A)
Microfinance Loans
Dairy Cattle Loans
Individual Loans
Total
-

Type of Borrower
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(ii)

Microfinance
Loans
2,25,662

Dairy Cattle Loans

Individual Loans

4,955

445

2,25,662

4,955

445

4,69,60,40,603

14,65,40,017

6,28,67,011

-

-

-

52,37,81,559

3,57,22,535

2,37,21,914

4,83,24,85,246

7,27,63,443

5,80,80,508

Requests from 61,439 customers received for relief under restructuring plan 2.0 were not reported in earlier quarters due
to delay by the branches in sending the necessary documents to Head office for compilation and reporting purposes.
However the Company has provided the necessary provision as per circular.

NOTE 55. FINANCIAL RATIOS
Ratio

Numerator

Current ratio
Debt-equity
ratio
Debt service
coverage ratio

Current assets
Current liabilities
Total
debt
[Non-current
Total equity
borrowings + Current borrowings]
Earnings before depreciation Interest expense
and amortization and interest
(including
[Earnings = Profit after tax +
capitalized)
Depreciation and amortization
+ Principal
expense + Finance costs
repayment
(excluding interest on lease
(including
liabilities)]
prepayments)
Profit after tax
Average of total
equity
Costs of materials consumed
Average
inventories
Revenue from operations
Average trade
receivables

Return on
equity ratio
Inventory
turnover ratio
Trade
receivables
turnover ratio
Trade payables Purchases
turnover ratio
Net capital
Revenue from operations
turnover ratio

Net profit ratio

Profit after tax

Denominator

Average trade
payables
Working capital
[Current assets Current liabilities
Revenue from
operations

% Change

As at
March 31,
2022
Ratio
1.46
5.37

As at
March 31,
2021
Ratio
1.24
5.45

NA

NA

0.06

0.12

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

0.78

1.37

0.05

0.10

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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Reason for variance

17.84%
(1.30%)
NA

(46.49%) Due to decrease in
profitability by 24% YoY
NA

(43.29%) Due to increase in revenue
from operations by 46%
YoY and Capital employed
increased by 156% YoY.
(47.95%) Due to increase in revenue
from operations by 46%
YoY, PAT got declined
by 24% YoY and due to
writeoff’s being on higher
side by 208% YoY.

Corporate Overview

S. Description
No.
(A) Number of requests received for invoking
resolution process
(B) Number of accounts where resolution plan has
been implemented under this window
(C ) Exposure to accounts mentioned at (B) before
implementation of the plan
(D) Of (C ) aggregate amount of debt that was
converted into other securities
(E) Additional funding sanctioned, if any,
including between invocation of the plan and
implementation
(F) Increase in provisions on account of the
implementation of the resolution plan
(G) Exposure to accounts mentioned at (B) as on
March 31, 2022.

Statutory Reports

(ii) Information as required by Reserve Bank of India Circular on resolution framework 2.0: Resolution of Covid - 19
related stress of individuals and small businesses dated May 5, 2021

Financial Statements

NOTES
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Ratio

Numerator

Return
on capital
employed

Earnings before depreciation
Capital
and amortization, interest and employed [Total
tax [Earnings = Profit after tax + assets - Current
Tax expense + Depreciation and
liabilities
amortization expense + Finance
+ Current
costs (excluding interest on
borrowings]
lease liabilities)]
Profit after tax
Equity share
capital +
Instruments
entirely equity
in nature +
Securities
premium

Return on
investment

Denominator

As at
March 31,
2022
Ratio
0.07

As at
March 31,
2021
Ratio
0.11

0.07

0.15

% Change

Reason for variance

(31.17%) Due to decrease in
profitability by 24% YoY

(54.33%) Due to decrease in
profitability by 24% YoY

NOTE 56. DISCLOSURES OF FRAUDS REPORTED DURING THE YEAR VIDE DNBS PD.CC.NO. 256 / 03.10.042 / 2011-12
DATED MARCH 02, 2012:

Particulars

A) Person involved
Staff
Customer
Staff and Customer
Total
B) Type of fraud
Misappropriation and
criminal
breach of trust
Fraudulent encashment
/ Manipulation of books
of Accounts
Unauthorized credit
facility extended
Cheating and forgery
Total

(Amount in `)
Less than ` 1 lakhs
` 1 - 5 lakhs
` 5 - 25 lakhs
Total
No. of
Value `
No. of Value `
No. of
Value `
No. of
Value `
Accounts
Accounts
Accounts
Accounts
122
122

26,12,332
26,12,332

3 6,36,921
3 6,36,921

3
3

31,48,467
31,48,467

128
128

63,97,720
63,97,720

122

26,12,332

2

3,04,320

1

14,08,322

125

43,24,974

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

122

26,12,332

1 3,32,601
3 6,36,921

2
3

17,40,145
31,48,467

3
128

20,72,746
63,97,720
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NOTE 57. DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO MASTER DIRECTION DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 ISSUED BY RESERVE
BANK OF INDIA
Customer complaints

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

38

-

No. of complaints received during the year

667

494

No. of complaints redressed during the year

701

456

4

38

No. of complaints pending as at beginning of the year

No. of complaints pending as at end of the year

Statutory Reports

(Amount in `)
Particulars

Regulator

Registration No

Ministry of Company Affairs

U65191KA1995PLC057884

Reserve Bank of India

B-02.00250

Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators : There are no penalty imposed by Reserve Bank of India and
other regulators during the financial year.
NOTE 58. COVID-19 PANDEMIC
The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic had led to a nation wide lockdown in April - June 2020. This was followed by localized
lockdowns in areas with a significant number of COVID-19 cases. Following the easing of lockdown measures, there was an
improvement in economic activity in the second half of fiscal 2021. Since then India experienced two waves of the COVID-19
pandemic following the discovery ot mutant coronavirus variants, leading to the reimposition of regional lockdowns which
were subsequently lifted.
The impact of COVID-19, including changes in customer behavior and pandemic fears, as well as restrictions on business
and individual activities, led to significant volatility in global and Indian financial markets and a significant decrease in global
and local economic activities. The disruptions following the outbreak, impacted loan originations, and the efficiency in
collection efforts resulting in increase in customer defaults and consequent increase in provisions and write off there against.
India is emerging from the COVID-19 pandemic. The extent to which any new wave of COVID-19 will impact the Company’s
results will depend on ongoing as well as future developments, including, among other things. any new information concerning
the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its impact whether governmentmandated or elected by us.
NOTE 59. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES
Previous year’s figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s classification / presentation wherever
applicable.
Accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000515S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

G.Srinivas
Partner
M. No. 086761

N. Venkatesh
Managing Director
DIN : 01018821

D. Shivaprakash
Whole-Time Director
DIN : 02216802

Anantha Kumar T
Chief Financial Officer

Manoranjan Biswal
Company Secretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 23, 2022
IIFL Samasta Finance Limited

147

Financial Statements

Details of registration with financial regulators

NOTICE
offered themselves for appointment, be and are hereby
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
for the first term of rest of the two years to hold
office from the conclusion of the 27th annual general
meeting till the conclusion of the 29th Annual general
meeting of the Company.”

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 27th Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited, will be
held on Thursday, the 30th day of June, 2022 at 4:00 P.M. at
the Registered Office of the Company located at No. 110/3,
Lalbagh Road, Krishnappa Layout, Bangalore -560027,
Karnataka, India to consider the following business items:

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT approval be and is hereby
accorded for payment of audit fee of as agreed mutually
between the Statutory Auditors and the Company
besides applicable taxes, out of pocket expenses for
the FY 2022-23 and the Board of Directors be and is
hereby authorized to fix and pay the statutory fee and
other charges as may be deemed fit for the remaining
tenure.”

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.

To consider and adopt the Annual Audited financial
statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022 consisting of the Balance Sheet,
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement
together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon and if though fit, to pass, with
or without modification(s) the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of
the Company for the financial year ended March 31,
2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and
are hereby considered and adopted.

2.

Appointment of Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah, Whole time
Director, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for reappointment and in this regard pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company read with other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.
Shivaprakash Deviah (DIN: 02216802) who retires by
rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, be and
is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

3.

To declare Final dividend on equity shares and in this
regard pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of
the Board of Directors of the Company, final dividend
at the rate of ` 0 .10/- (Ten paisa Only) per equity share
be and is hereby declared to be paid to the members of
the Company.”

4.

To appoint Statutory Auditors for the first term of
rest two years and in this regard pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions.
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
in line with the RBI circular number RBI/2021-22/25
Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22
M/s. Brahmayya & Co (Regn. No. 000515S) having
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FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the remuneration of the
Statutory Auditors for the FY 2022-23 shall be agreed
upon mutually between the Statutory Auditors and the
Company.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5.

Revision in the Managerial Remuneration of Mr.
Venkatesh N., Managing Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modifications(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section
196, 197 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
and other applicable provisions, if any, consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded for the revision in
the managerial remuneration (Total Cost to Company-`
1,60,00,008 pa) payable to Mr. Venkatesh N., Managing
Director, effective from April 1, 2021 and same be
recommended to the members for their approval.
Further revisions as may be decided by the Board /
Nomination & Remuneration Committee from time to
time. Mr. Venkatesh N., Managing Director will not be
entitled to any sitting fees for attending meetings of
the Board or of any committee thereof.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, in the event of inadequacy
of profits in any financial year, the remuneration by
way of salary, allowances, commission, perquisites
and retirement benefits to Mr. Venkatesh N., Managing
Director be paid in accordance with Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, for the financial year and if
necessary, with the necessary approval.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, anyone of the Directors
/ Company Secretary of the Company be and hereby
authorized take to such steps as may be necessary to
give effect to the above resolution/s.
6.

Revision in the Managerial Remuneration of Mr.
Shivaprakash Deviah, Whole-time Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modifications(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
196, 197 read with the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, and other applicable provisions, if any, consent
of the members be and is hereby accorded for the
revision in the managerial remuneration (Total Cost to
Company-` 73,00,008 pa) payable to Mr. Shivaprakash
Deviah, Whole-time Director, effective from April 1,
2021 and same be recommended to the members. (In
addition to that under Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
Plan: 80% of the Gross Salary will be paid in the next

three financial years with 30:30:40 percentages basis
and Mobile allowance.)
Further revisions as may be decided by the Board /
Nomination & Remuneration Committee from time to
time. Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah, Whole-time Director
will not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending
meetings of the Board or of any committee thereof.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, in the event of inadequacy
of profits in any financial year, the remuneration by
way of salary, allowances, commission, perquisites
and retirement benefits to Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah,
Whole-time Director be paid in accordance with
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, for the financial
year and if necessary, with the necessary approval.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, anyone of the Directors
/ Company Secretary of the Company be and hereby
authorized take to such steps as may be necessary to
give effect to the above resolution/s.

By Order of the Board
For IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
Sd/Manoranjan Biswal
Company Secretary

Place: Bangalore
Date: June 17,2022

Registered Office:
No. 110/3, Lalbagh Main Road, Krishnappa Layout,
Near Urvashi Theatre Bangalore – 560 027
CIN:U65191KA1995PLC05784 Tel No. + 91 80 4291 3500
Website: www.iiflsamasta.co.in
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to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
requested to send to the Company, a certified copy

NOTES:
i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

The relative Explanatory Statements, pursuant to
Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,in respect
of the business under Item No. 5, Item No. 6 of
the accompanying Notice is annexed hereto as
Annexure –I
A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself/ herself and such proxy
need not to be a member of a company. The Instrument
appointing a proxy, in order to be effective must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company,
duly completed and signed, not less than forty eighty
(48) hours before the commencement of meeting. The
Proxy Form is annexed hereto as Annexure II
A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members
not exceeding fifty (50) in number and holding in
aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A
Member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the
total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and
such person shall not act as proxy for any other person
or shareholder.
Corporate Members intending to send their authorized
representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant
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of the relevant Board Resolution together with their
respective specimen signatures authorizing their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at
the Meeting.
v.

Notice of twenty sixth AGM, full version of the Annual
Reports will also be available under the ‘Investor
Services’ section on the website of the Company
www.samasta.co.in. Relevant documents referred
to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory
Statement are open for inspection by the members at
the Registered Office of the Company on all working
days, except Saturdays and Sundays (including Public
Holidays), during business hours up to the date of the
Meeting.

vi.

Entry to the place of meeting will be regulated by
an Attendance Slip which is annexed hereto as
Annexure III to the Notice. Members/Proxies attending
the meeting are kindly requested to complete the
enclosed Attendance Slip and affix their signature
at the place provided thereon and hand it over at the
entrance.

vii.

Route map for the Meeting is provided after the
Explanatory Statement
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Annexure –I
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

SPECIAL BUSINESS

AGENDA ITEM 6:

AGENDA ITEM 5:

Revision in the Managerial Remuneration
Shivaprakash Deviah, Whole-time Director.

Revision in the Managerial Remuneration of Mr. Venkatesh
N., Managing Director.
Considering the contribution of Mr. Venkatesh N, Managing
Director towards the growth of the Company in recent
years, it was felt that there is a need to increase the
remuneration paid to them w.e.f. April 1, 2021. Hence
the proposal to recommend the same was placed to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and acknowledged the
contribution made by Mr. Venkatesh N and recommended
to the Board for their approval. The Board vide its Meeting
dated April 22, 2022 approved the same.
Therefore, the Board hereby seeks your approval in passing
this resolution as Special Resolution.

of

Mr.

Considering the contribution of Mr. Shivaprakash D., Whole
Time Director through his technological expertise and
management skills, towards the growth of the Company
in recent years, it was felt that there is a need to increase
the remuneration paid to him w.e.f. April 01, 2021. Hence
the proposal to recommend the same was placed before
the members of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and acknowledged the contribution made by
Mr. Shivaprakash Deviah and recommended to the Board
for their approval. The Board vide its Meeting dated April 22,
2022 approved the same.
Therefore, the Board hereby seeks your approval in passing
this resolution as Special Resolution.

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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ANNEXURE II
PROXY FORM - MGT-11
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014]
Name of the Company: IIFL SAMASTA FINANCE LIMITED
CIN No.: U65191KA1995PLC057884
Registered Office: No. 110/3, Krishnappa Layout, Lalbagh Main Road, Bangalore, Karnataka - 560027
Name of the Member (s): ___________________________________________ residing at/having registered office at __________________
_______________________________________________ & E-mail Id: _____________________ bearing Folio No. ______________.
I / We, being the member(s) of ___________ (In words_____________________________) equity shares of IIFL Samasta Finance
Limited hereby appoint –
1.

Name:________________________________________________Address:_______________________________________________________________
E-mail Id: ______________________Signature:______________, or failing him / her

2.

Name:__________________________________________________________________Address:______________________________________
__________________________E-mail Id: ______________________Signature:______________, or failing him / her

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting for the FY
2021-22 of IIFL Samasta finance Limited on the 30th Day of June, 2022 at 4:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company
located at No. 110/3, Lalbagh Road, Krishnappa Layout, Bangalore -560027, Karnataka and at any adjournment thereof, in
respect of resolutions set out in the Notice convening the meeting.

Affix Re. 1
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this ____ day of_______, 2022

Signature of Shareholder (s)

_____________________
Signature of Proxy Holder (s)
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, executed and deposited at the registered office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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ANNEXURE III
ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue)
I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting for the FY 2021-22 of IIFL Samasta Finance Limited on Thursday
the 30th Day of June, 2022 at 4:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company located at No. 110/3, Lalbagh Road, Krishnappa
Layout, Bangalore -560027, Karnataka
Full Name of the Shareholder/ Authorized Representative:
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
residing at/having registered office at_______________________________________________________________________________________
Folio No. ______________.
No. of Shares held: ______________ (In words___________________________________)
Name of Proxy (if any): _______________________________________________________
Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy/Corporate Representative*
* Strike out whichever is not applicable
Route map

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
No. 110/3, Lalbagh Main Road,
Krishnappa Layout, Bangalore – 560 027

IIFL Samasta Finance Limited
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iiFl sAmAstA FinAnce limited
(Erstwhile Samasta Microfinance Limited)
CIN: U65191KA1995PLC057884
110/3, Lalbagh Main Road,
Krishnappa Layout,
Bangalore- 560027, Karnataka, India.
www.iifl.com/www.iiflsamasta.com.

